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Square, 225 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut 06103.

The Bonds and the Notes are offered for delivery when, as and if issued, subject to the approving opinion of Robinson
& Cole LLP, Bond Counsel, of Hartford, Connecticut and certain other conditions. It is expected that delivery of the Bonds and
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City of Danbury, Connecticut

$31,620,000

General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2006

Due: Serially on August 1, 2007-2026

Dated:  August 1, 2006

Principal ~ Coupon
Year Amount Rate Yield CUSIP
2007 $1,620,000 4.250%  3.600% 235865G97
2008 1,620,000 4.250%  3.660% 235865H21
2009 1,620,000 4.250%  3.710% 235865H39
2010 1,615,000 4.250%  3.740% 235865H47
2011 1,615,000 4.250%  3.780% 235865H54
2012 1,615,000 4.250%  3.810% 235865H62
2013 1,610,000 5.000%  3.870% 235865H70
2014 1,610,000 4.250%  3.970% 235865H88
2015 1,610,000 4.250%  4.000% 235865H96
2016 1,610,000 4.250%  4.100% 235865129

Principal ~ Coupon
Year Amount Rate Yield CUSIP
2017 $1,550,000 4.250%  3.985% 235865]37
2018' 1,550,000 4.250%  4.064% 235865J45
2019 1,550,000 4.250%  4.117% 235865152
2020" 1,550,000 4.250%  4.188% 235865160
2021 1,550,000 4.250%  4.247% 235865]78
2022 1,545,000 4.250%  4.282% 235865J86
2023' 1,545,000 4.250%  4.315% 235865194
2024 1,545,000 4.375%  4.301% 235865K27
20251 1,545,000 4.375%  4.346% 235865K35
2026 1,545,000 4.375%  4.384% 235865K43

Y Maturities 2017 — 2026 insured by MBIA and as a result are rated Aaa, AAA and AAA4 by Moody s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and
Fitch Ratings, respectively.



the affairs of the City since the date of this Official Statement.

No person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to make any representations not contained in this
Official Statement or any supplement, which may be issued hereto, and if given or made, such other information or
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or
the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds and the Notes by any person in any jurisdiction in
which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

This Official Statement has been prepared only in connection with the initial offering and sale of the Bonds and the Notes
and may not be reproduced or used in whole or in part for any other purpose. The information, estimates and expressions of
opinion in this Official Statement are subject to change without notice. Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any
sale of the Bonds and the Notes shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no material change in

The independent auditors for the City are not passing upon and do not assume responsibility for the accuracy or
completeness of the financial information presented in this Official Statement (other than matters expressly set forth in their
opinion in Appendix A), and they make no representation that they have independently verified the same.

Other than as to matters expressly set forth in Appendix B, Bond Counsel are not passing on and do not assume any
responsibility for the accuracy or adequacy of the statements made in this Official Statement and make no representation that
they have independently verified the same.
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Bond Issue Summary

The information in this Bond Issue Summary and the front cover page is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information and
financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Official Statement. This Official Statement speaks only as of its date and the
information herein is subject to change.

Date of Sale:

Location of Sale:

Issuer:
Issue:
Dated Date:

Interest Due:
Principal Due:

Purpose and Authority:

Redemption:

Security and Remedies:

Credit Rating:

Bond Insurance:

Basis of Award:

Bank Qualification:

Continuing Disclosure:

Registrar, Transfer
Agent, Certifying Agent
& Paying Agent:

Financial Advisor:

Legal Opinion:
Delivery and Payment:

Issuer Official:

Wednesday, July 26, 2006, 11:00 AM. (E.D.T.).

Danbury City Hall, Finance Department Conference Room, 155 Deer Hill Avenue, Danbury,
Connecticut 06810.

City of Danbury, Connecticut (the "City").
$31,620,000 General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2006 (the “Bonds™).
August 1, 2006.

February 1, 2007 and semiannually thereafter on August 1 and February 1 in each year until
maturity.

The Bonds are due serially on August 1 in each of the years 2007 through 2026, as detailed in
this Official Statement.

A portion of the Bond proceeds are being issued to permanently finance a portion of bond
anticipation notes maturing on August 4, 2006 which were issued for various general purpose
and school projects and the balance of the Bond proceeds will provide new money for various
general purpose projects.

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bonds will be general obligations of the City of Danbury, Connecticut, and the City will
pledge its full faith and credit to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.

Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings have assigned ratings of “Aa2”,
“AA” and “AA+", respectively, to the Bonds maturing on August 1, 2007 through and including
August 1, 2016. The Bonds maturing on August 1, 2017 through and including August 1, 2026
have been assigned ratings of “Aaa”, “AAA” and “AAA” from Moody's Investors Service,
Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings, respectively with the understanding that a financial
guaranty insurance policy will be issued by MBIA Insurance Corporation concurrent with the
delivery of the Bonds. Underlying ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s
and Fitch Ratings for such maturities are "Aa2", "AA" and "AA+" respectively.

MBIA Insurance Corporation has made a commitment to issue a Bond Insurance Policy relating
to the Bonds maturing on August 1, 2017 through and including August 1, 2026 effective as of
the date of issuance of the Bonds (See Appendix E)

Lowest True Interest Cost (TIC), as of the dated date.

The Bonds shall NOT be designated by the City as qualified tax-exempt obligations under the
provisions of Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for purposes of
the deduction by financial institutions for interest expense allocable to the Bonds.

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission, the City will agree to provide, or cause to be provided, annual financial
information and operating data, timely notice of a failure by the City to provide the required
annual financial information on or before the date specified in the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, and notices of material events with respect to the Bonds pursuant to a Continuing
Disclosure Agreement to be executed by the City substantially in the form attached as Appendix
C to this Official Statement.

U.S. Bank National Association, Goodwin Square, 225 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut
06103.

People’s Bank, Municipal Banking and Finance Department, 850 Main Street, Bridgeport,
Connecticut 06601. Telephone (203) 338-4238.

Robinson & Cole LLP, of Hartford, Connecticut will act as Bond Counsel.

It is expected that delivery of the Bonds in book-entry-only form will be made to The Depository
Trust Company on or about August 4, 2006 against payment in Federal Funds.

Questions concerning the Official Statement should be addressed to Ms. Dena R. Diorio, Director
of Finance & Personnel, City of Danbury, 155 Deer Hill Avenue, Danbury, Connecticut 06810.
Telephone (203) 797-4652.



Note Issue Summary

The information in this Note Issue Summary and the front cover page is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information
and financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Official Statement. This Official Statement speaks only as of its date
and the information herein is subject to change.

Date of Sale:

Location of Sale:

Issuer:

Issue:

Dated Date:
Interest Due:
Principal Due:

Purpose and Authority:

Redemption:

Security and Remedies:

Credit Rating:

Basis of Award:
Bank Qualification:

Continuing Disclosure:

Registrar, Transfer Agent,
Certifying Agent and Paying

Agent:
Financial Advisor:

Legal Opinion:
Delivery and Payment:

Issuer Official:

Wednesday, July 26, 2006, 11:30 A.M. (E.D.T.).

Danbury City Hall, Finance Department Conference Room, 155 Deer Hill Avenue,
Danbury, Connecticut 06810.

City of Danbury, Connecticut (the "City").

$27,900,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes (the “Notes”).
August 4, 2006.

At maturity: August 3, 2007

At maturity: August 3, 2007

A portion of the Note proceeds are being issued to refund a portion of the bond
anticipation notes maturing on August 4, 2006 which were issued for various general
purpose, school, sewer and water projects and the balance of the Note proceeds will
provide new money for various school and general purpose projects.

The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity, as herein provided.

The Notes will be general obligations of the City of Danbury, Connecticut, and the
City will pledge its full faith and credit to the payment of principal of and interest on
the Notes when due.

Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings have assigned
ratings of “MIG 17, “SP-1+" and “F1+”, respectively, to the Notes.

Lowest Net Interest Cost (NIC), as of the dated date.

The Notes shall NOT be designated by the City as qualified tax-exempt obligations
under the provisions of Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, for purposes of the deduction by financial institutions for interest expense
allocable to the Notes.

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the City will agree to provide, or cause to be
provided, notices of material events with respect to the Notes pursuant to a
Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be executed by the City substantially in the
form attached as Appendix C to this Official Statement.

U.S. Bank National Association, Goodwin Square, 225 Asylum Street, Hartford,
Connecticut 06103.

People’s Bank, Municipal Banking and Finance Department, 850 Main Street,
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06601. Telephone (203) 338-4238.

Robinson & Cole LLP, of Hartford, Connecticut will act as Bond Counsel.

It is expected that delivery of the Notes in book-entry-only form will be made to The
Depository Trust Company on or about August 4, 2006 against payment in Federal
Funds.

Questions concerning the Official Statement should be addressed to Ms. Dena R.
Diorio, Director of Finance & Personnel, City of Danbury, 155 Deer Hill Avenue,
Danbury, Connecticut 06810. Telephone (203) 797-4652.



1. Bond Information

Introduction

This Official Statement, including the cover page and appendices, is provided for the purpose of presenting
certain information relating to the City of Danbury, Connecticut (the "City"), in connection with the original issuance
and sale of $31,620,000 General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2006 (the “Bonds™) and $27,900,000 General Obligation
Bond Anticipation Notes (the “Notes”) of the City.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the City and the purchasers
or holders of any of the Bonds and the Notes. Any statement made in this Official Statement involving matters of
opinion or estimates are not intended to be representations of fact, and no representation is made that any such
opinion or estimate will be realized. No representation is made that past experience, as might be shown by financial
or other information herein, will necessarily continue or be repeated in the future. Neither the delivery of this
Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the City since the date hereof. References to statutes, charters, or other laws herein
may not be complete and such provisions of law are subject to repeal or amendment.

The information in this Official Statement has been prepared by the City's Financial Advisor, People’s Bank,
from information supplied by City officials and other sources. The Financial Advisor does not assume responsibility
for the adequacy or accuracy of the statements made herein and makes no representation that it has independently
verified the same. U.S. Bank National Association, 225 Asylum Street, Goodwin Square, Hartford, Connecticut
06103 will act as Registrar, Transfer Agent, Paying Agent and Certifying Agent for the Bonds and the Notes .

Bond Counsel are not passing upon and do not assume responsibility for the accuracy or adequacy of the
statements made in this Official Statement (other than matters expressly set forth as their opinion) and they make no
representation that they have independently verified the same.

Description of the Bonds

The Bonds will be dated August 1, 2006 and will mature in the years and in such amounts and shall bear
interest at such rate of rates as set forth on inside of the front cover of this Official Statement, payable on February 1,
2007 and semiannually thereafter on August 1 and February 1 in each year until maturity. Interest will be calculated
on the basis of twelve thirty-day months and a 360-day year. Interest is payable to the registered owner as of the
close of business on the fifteenth day of January and July in each year or the preceding business day if such fifteenth
day is not a business day, by check mailed to the registered owner; or so long as the Bonds are registered in the name
of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, by such other means as DTC, and the City shall agree.

Redemption Provisions

Bonds maturing on or before August 1, 2013 are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. The Bonds
maturing August 1, 2014 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the election of the City, on or
after August 1, 2013 at any time, in whole or in part and by lot within a maturity, in such amounts and in such order
of maturity as the City may determine, at the respective prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of
Bonds to be redeemed), set forth in the following table, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date:

Redemption
Period During Which Redeemed Prices
August 1, 2013 and thereafter .......ccoceevinininiiecne 100%

Notice of redemption shall be given by the City or its agent by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by
first-class mail at least thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner as the same shall
last appear on the registration books for the Bonds. Failure to give such notice by mailing to any registered owner,
or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of any other Bonds. Upon the giving of such
notice, if sufficient funds available solely for redemption are on deposit with the Paying Agent, the Bonds or portions
thereof so called for redemption will cease to bear interest after the specified redemption date.

If less than all the Bonds of any one maturity shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds, or
portions of Bonds, of such maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by lot in such manner as the City in its
discretion may determine; provided, however, that the portion of any Bond to be redeemed shall be in the principal
amount of $5,000 or a multiple thereof and that, in selecting Bonds for redemption, each Bond shall be considered as
representing that number of Bonds, which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such Bond by $5,000.
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The City, so long as a book-entry system is used for the Bonds, will send any notice of redemption only to
DTC (or successor securities depository) or its nominee. Any failure of DTC to advise any DTC Participant, or of
any DTC Participant or Indirect Participant to notify any Indirect Participant or Beneficial Owner, of any such notice
and its content or effect will not affect the validity of the redemption of such Bonds called for redemption.
Redemption of portions of the Bonds of any maturity by the City will reduce the outstanding principal amounts of
such maturity held by DTC. In such event it is the current practice of DTC to allocate by lot, through its book-entry
system, among the interest held by DTC Participants in the Bonds to be redeemed, the interest to be reduced by such
redemption in accordance with its own rules or other agreements with DTC Participants. The DTC Participants and
Indirect Participants may allocate reductions of the interests in the Bonds to be redeemed held by the Beneficial
Owners. Any such allocations of reductions of interests in the Bonds to be redeemed will not be governed by the
determination of the City authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and will not be conducted by the City, the Registrar
or Paying Agent.

Description of the Notes

The Notes will be dated August 4, 2006 and will be due and payable as to both principal and interest at
maturity, August 3, 2007. The Notes will bear interest calculated on the basis of twelve 30-day months and a 360-
day year at such rate or rates per annum as are specified by the successful bidder or bidders. A book-entry system
will be employed evidencing ownership of the Notes in principal amounts of $1,000 or integral multiples thereof,
with transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC, and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures
established by DTC and its participants. See “Book-Entry Transfer System”. The Notes are not subject to
redemption prior to maturity.

The Certifying Agent, Paying Agent, Registrar and Transfer Agent will be U.S. Bank National Association,
225 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut 06103.

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank)



Authorization and Purpose

The Bonds and the Notes are issued pursuant to Title 7 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, as amended,
the City Charter and certain ordinances adopted by the Common Council of the City.

Proceeds of the Issue

Proceeds of the Bonds and the Notes will be used to refund a portion of the bond anticipation notes
maturing August 4, 2006 and to provide new money borrowing for the projects listed below:

Notes (Reductions) The Notes To
Amount Maturing or Mature
Project Authorized 08/04/06 New Money The Bonds 08/03/07

Gen. Public Imp. 03-04.......ccocenee.e. $ 500,000 $ 250,000 $ (250,000) $ -- $ -
Gen. Public Imp. 04-05 .......cccenenene. 500,000 500,000 -- -- 500,000
Gen. Public Imp. 05-06.........c.coce..... 500,000 500,000 -- - 500,000
Gen. Public Imp. 06-07 .......cccccnu.. 500,000 - 250,000 - 250,000
Water Service Extension I '.............. 2,500,000 505,000 (37,500) 467,500 -
Water Service Extension II ' ............ 3,000,000 245,000 1,000,000 245,000 1,000,000
Sewer Service Extension I1%............ 6,000,000 5,000,000 750,000 3,550,000 2,200,000
Vision 21/2 Program Schools........... 5,360,000 -- 152,000 152,000 -
Vision 21/2 Public Improvement ..... 16,640,000 5,650,000 2,655,500 8,205,500 -
21* Century Danbury Pub. Imp........ 55,515,000 20,950,000 -- 10,000,000 10,950,000
21* Century Danbury Water. ........... 5,680,000 3,000,000 500,000 3,000,000 500,000
21% Century Danbury Sewer ............ 5,000,000 -- 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Head Start.....oveevvveenivenreneereecveenens 5,600,000 - 1,000,000 -- 1,000,000
Danbury Neighborhood Bond.......... 10,930,000 - 5,000,000 4,000,000 1,000,000
Danbury Neighborhood Sewer......... 998,000 = 500,000 -- 500,000
Danbury Neighborhood Water......... 998,000 - 250,000 -~ 250,000
Public Safety Bond........ccoccevenveceennne. 49,200,000 e 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
Parking Garage.........coccveererereriinns 6,640,000 -- 5,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000
Sewer Improvements.........c.ccoceevenenn. 5,800,000 -- 250,000 - 250,000
TOAl ..o $181,861,000 $36,600,000  $23,020,000 $31,620,000 $27,900,000

! Debt service is included in and paid from the operating budget of the Water Enterprise Fund.

2 A1l costs associated with the extension of new sewer services and for the construction of collector lines or laterals are borne by the property
owners benefiting by such extension project. Assessments of benefits for those whose property benefits by such extension project are established
by standards contained in an ordinance enacted by the Common Council and in conformity with Chapter 103 of the General Statutes, as amended.
Debt service is paid from the Sewer Assessment Fund.

School Projects

Pursuant to Section 10-287i of the Connecticut General Statutes, as amended, the State of Connecticut will
provide proportional progress payments for eligible school construction expenses on projects approved on or after
July 1, 1996. Debt service reimbursement will continue under the old program for all projects approved prior to July
1, 1996.

Under the old program, the State of Connecticut will reimburse the City for principal and interest costs for
eligible school construction projects over the life of outstanding school bonds and the subsequent bond issues
necessary to completely fund the approved school projects.

Under the new program, the State of Connecticut will make proportional progress payments for eligible
construction costs during construction.

Book-Entry-Only Transfer System

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Bonds and
the Notes. The Bonds and the Notes will be issued in fully-registered form registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One-
fully registered Bond certificate will be issued for the Bonds and the Notes, in the aggregate principal amount of such
issue, and will be deposited with DTC.



DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law; a "banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law; a member of the Federal
Reserve System; a "clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code; and a
"clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC
holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and
municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct
Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales
and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities
certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of
DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation,
MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, and EMCC, also
subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and
the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as
both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect
Participants™). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are
on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at
www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds and the Notes under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which
will receive a credit for the Bonds and the Notes on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser
of each Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are,
however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owners entered into
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds and the Notes are to be accomplished by entries made
on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not
receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds and the Notes, except in the event that use of
the book-entry system for the Bonds and the Notes is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds and the Notes deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds and the Notes with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede &
Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the
actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and the Notes; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct
Participants to whose accounts such Bonds and the Notes are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf
of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of Bonds and the Notes may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds and the Notes, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and
proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds and the Notes may wish to
ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds and the Notes for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices
to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the
registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent to vote with respect to Bonds and the
Notes unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its usual procedures,
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede
& Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds and the Notes are
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend (including principal and interest) payments on the Bonds and
the Notes will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail
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information from Issuer or Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street
name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC (nor its nominee), Agent, or Issuer, subject
to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds,
distributions, and dividend (including principal and interest) payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of Issuer or Agent, disbursement of such
payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the
Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds and the Notes at any time by
giving reasonable notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is
not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor
securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources
that Issuer believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

The Issuer can make no assurances that DTC, Direct Participants, Indirect Participants or other nominees of the
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and the Notes act in a manner described in this Official Statement. DTC is required
to act according to rules and procedures established by DTC and its participants which are on file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Security and Remedies

The Bonds and the Notes will be general obligations of the City of Danbury, Connecticut and the City will
pledge its full faith and credit to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds and the Notes when due. Unless paid
from other sources, the Bonds and the Notes are payable from general property tax revenues. The City has the power
under Connecticut statutes to levy ad valorem taxes on all taxable property in the City without limit as to rate or
amount, except as to certain classified property such as certified forest land taxable at a limited rate and dwelling
houses of qualified elderly persons of low income or qualified disabled persons taxable at limited amounts. Payment
of the Bonds and the Notes is not limited to property tax revenues or any other revenue source, but certain revenues
of the City may be restricted as to use and therefore may not be available to pay debt service on the Bonds and the
Notes.

There are no statutory provisions for priorities in the payment of general obligations of the City. There are no
statutory provisions for a lien on any portion of the tax levy or other revenues to secure the Bonds and the Notes or
judgments thereon, in priority to other claims.

The City is subject to suit on its general obligation debt and a court of competent jurisdiction has power in
appropriate proceedings to render a judgment against the City. Courts of competent jurisdiction also have power in
appropriate proceedings to order a payment of a judgment on such debt from funds lawfully available therefor or, in
the absence thereof, to order the City to take all lawful action to obtain the same, including the raising of the required
amount in the next annual tax levy. In exercising their discretion as to whether to enter such an order, the courts
could take into account all relevant factors including the current operating needs of the City and the availability and
adequacy of other remedies.

Enforcement of a claim for payment of principal of or interest on such debt would also be subject to the
applicable provisions of Federal bankruptcy laws and to provisions of other statutes, if any, hereafter enacted by the
Congress or the Connecticut General Assembly extending the time for payment or imposing other constraints upon
enforcement insofar as the same may be constitutionally applied. Under the federal bankruptcy code, the City may
seek relief only, among other requirements, if it is specifically authorized, in its capacity as a municipality or by
name, to be a debtor under Chapter 9 thereof by state law or y a governmental officer or organization empowered by
state law to authorize such entity to become a debtor under such Chapter. Section 7-566 of the Connecticut General
Statutes provides that no Connecticut municipality shall file a petition in bankruptcy without the express prior written
consent of the Governor. This prohibition applies to any town, city, borough, metropolitan district and any other
political subdivision of the State having the power to levy taxes and issue bonds or other obligations.



Qualification for Financial Institutions

The Bonds and the Notes shall NOT be designated by the City as qualified tax-exempt obligations under the
provisions of Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for purposes of the deduction by
financial institutions for certain interest expense allocable to the Bonds and the Notes.

Availability of Continuing Information

The City of Danbury prepares, in accordance with State law, annual independent audited financial statements
and files such annual report with the State Office of Policy and Management within six months of the end of its fiscal
year.

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the City will agree to provide, or cause to be provided, annual financial information and operating data,
timely notice of a failure by the City to provide the required annual financial information on or before the date
specified in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and notices of material events with respect to the Bonds and
notices of material events with respect to the Notes pursuant to Continuing Disclosure Agreements to be executed by
the City substantially in the forms attached as Appendix C to this Official Statement.

The City has previously undertaken in continuing disclosure agreements entered into for the benefit of holders
of certain of its general obligation bonds and notes to provide certain annual financial information and event notices
pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5). To date the City has not failed to meet any of its undertakings under such
agreements.

Ratings
Applications have been made to Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch for a rating on the

Bonds. Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's Corporation and Fitch Ratings have previously rated various
bond issues of the City as follows:

Issue Date Amount Moody's Standard & Poor's Fitch Ratings
08/01/05 $ 10,940,000 Aa2 AA N/A
08/01/04 4,915,000 Aa2 AA N/A
03/01/04 25,360,000 ' Aa2 AA N/A
08/01/03 12,925,000 Aa2 AA N/A
05/01/03 1,190,000 * Aa2 AA N/A
05/15/02 12,745,000 Aa2 AA AA+
08/01/99 22,495,000 Aa2 AA AA+
08/01/97 10,100,000 Aa2 AA AA
! Refunding Bonds.

Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings have assigned ratings of “Aa2”, “AA” and
“AA+>, respectively, to the Bonds maturing on August 1, 2007 through and including August 1, 2016. The Bonds
maturing on August 1, 2017 through and including August 1, 2026 have been assigned ratings of “Aaa”, “AAA” and
“AAA” from Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings, respectively with the understanding
that a financial guaranty insurance policy will be issued by MBIA Insurance Corporation concurrent with the
delivery of the Bonds. Underlying ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings for
such maturities are “Aa2”, “AA” and “AA+ respectively.

Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings have assigned ratings of “MIG 17, “SP-
1+ and “F1+7, respectively, to the Notes.

Bond Insurance

MBIA Insurance Corporation has made a commitment to issue a Bond Insurance Policy relating to the
Bonds maturing on August 1, 2017 through and including August 1, 2026, effective as of the date of issuance of the
Bonds (See Appendix E — “Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy”).
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Description of the Municipality

Danbury (the "City") is the largest city in northern Fairfield County. Traversed by 1-84 and Route 7, and
adjacent to 1-684, Danbury is easily accessible to New York City, Hartford and Norwalk, all of which are within 60
miles. Danbury is also accessible by a municipal airport.

According to the 2000 U.S. Census, Fairfield County is one of the five wealthiest counties in the United States
and Danbury is one of the wealthiest cities, with a median household income of $53,664. Danbury, with a
population of approximately 78,221, is diversely populated. Residents represent more than 60 different nationalities
and students entering Danbury public schools speak over 45 different languages. Danbury is a hub for retail
shopping. The Danbury Fair Mall remains the largest mall in New England and new shopping centers have attracted
tenants such as Bob's Stores, Home Depot, Circuit City, Borders and Wal-Mart.

Cultural activities abound in the City through the Charles Ives Center-the largest outdoor concert site in
Western Connecticut, Richter Park- containing one of the top 25 public golf courses in the country, Candlewood
Lake - the largest man-made lake in New England, and other smaller sites, museums and festivals.

Form of Government

The City of Danbury operates under a Charter, which was last revised in November, 1990. The City is
governed by a Mayor and a twenty-one member Common Council. The Mayor is the City’s chief executive and the
Common Council is the legislative body.



Principal Municipal Officials

Years
Manner of of Employment
Office Name Selection Term Service Last Five Years
Mayor ... Mark D. Boughton  Elected  12/05-11/07 4.5 Teacher
Treasurer. .ooceeeecenernierenns Daniel P. Jowdy Elected  12/05-11/07 2.5 Funeral Director
Council .....coevenvenniniinnnnn 21 members Elected  12/05-11/07 Various Various
Director of Finance & Appointed * Director, OPM
Personnel .......ccocoveveeecnins Dena R. Diorio Civil Service Indefinite 4.0 City of Stamford
Tax Collector.......cocceeveenene Vacant Appointed ! Indefinite Tax Collector, City of Danbury
Civil Service
ASSESSOT...cnvireveirinrenisiiiaens Colleen Burke Civil Service Indefinite 20.0  Asst. Assessor, City of Danbury
Superintendent of Schools. Vacant Appointed *  Contract
Corp. Counsel......cccouvunenee. Robert J. Yamin  Appointed '  Indefinite 4.5 Attorney

! dppointed by the Mayor.
2 Appointed by the Board of Education.

Municipal Services

Police Department

The Danbury Police Department’s mission is to provide an environment for the people of Danbury, free from
the fear of crime, where people can enjoy a high quality of life, and the community can prosper. We are currently
undertaking several major projects in support of our mission.

In early 2006, the Police Department proposed to the Mayor and the Common Council a significant
restructuring. The restructuring plan would provide for the addition of 49 positions and 15 additional sworn
positions. The proposal would combine police, fire and EMS dispatch and completely civilianize the dispatch
function. Also, the restructuring would provide clear lines of authority and accountability making the Danbury
Police Department more responsive to the needs of the community.

The Department continues to plan for a new state-of-the-art police facility. The voters approved funding for
the construction in May 2006. Land acquisition continues, and meetings are held regularly with several city
departments and consultants to finalize the building design. A early 2007 ground breaking date for the 75,000 square
foot facility is anticipated.

In addition the Department started the process to complete the Tier 1 State of Connecticut Accreditation. This
self-assessment process will reduce liability for actions. It will also force the Department to create written protocols
and constantly update them.

The Department continues to deploy new technology. The entire Department has been trained on the use of
Tasers. Tasers reduce injuries for both officers and the general public. The Department is also implementing
ruggedized in-car computers and in-car camera systems in the new fiscal year.

The Department remains committed to eliminating domestic violence through participation in a State grant to
create special domestic violence patrols. They also remain committed to making travel safe on Danbury’s streets
through partnership with the Department of Transportation to conduct several seatbelt and DUI traffic enforcement
check points.

In 2005, the Danbury Police Department responded to 59,093 calls for service. In their nationwide survey, the
Morgan Quinto Awards again recognized Danbury as one of the safest cities in America.

Fire Department

The Danbury Fire Department is responsible for the protection of life, property and the environment of all
citizens in the most efficient and safest manner possible. This is accomplished with an aggressive Fire
Education/Prevention/Inspection Program, up-to-date emergency equipment, and continued training for both Career
and Volunteer Divisions of the Department.
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The Department is the proud recipient of the 2004 Life Safety Achievement Award received this past October.
This great recognition was earned by achieving a “zero fire death” benchmark in the calendar year. The department
has met the criteria to apply and receive the award for a 4th consecutive year, a tremendous achievement for the
seventh largest city in Connecticut.

The Department is meeting the recent challenges of potential terrorism head on. The development of a
regional Technician level Hazardous Materials team is proceeding and an increased preparedness level has
positioned us well. Numerous grant opportunities have allowed the Department to purchase specialized equipment.
Additional equipment, including a decontamination trailer and response tow vehicle are now on site and operational.

The mission is carried out by a Career Division comprised of 111 individuals in five locations, operating with
24 pieces of equipment (9 major pieces of apparatus and 17 vehicles) and is supplemented by approximately 140
volunteers operating from 12 stations with 23 pieces of equipment.

The Emergency Medical Services Unit is a Division of the Danbury Fire Department and operates three
paramedic-staffed ambulances and one lead medic vehicle. The Fire Department has 52 EMT’s, 24 EMTI’s, 5
paramedics and an EMS Coordinator. All firefighters are cross-trained to the first responder level. The Fire
Department operates six first responder engine companies and one Truck Company, all equipped with Automatic
Defibrillators. With reduced response times, this complement of equipment and professionally trained personnel
helps make Danbury a safe community in which to work and live. The addition of a new deployment schedule for
ambulances has improved response time to the City’s West side. The improved response has benefited residents in
this growing area of the City with timely emergency medical care.

The 9-1-1 Fire Department Dispatch Center received a total of 35,590 calls in calendar year 2005, of which
2,745 were for Fire Responses, 5,915 were for Police Responses, 4,509 were for Emergency Medical Service
Response. The Fire Department Dispatch Center is the Primary Service Answering Point for the City of Danbury. It
has the responsibility of answering all 9-1-1 calls in a professional and expedient manner. The center has been
converted to a Computer Aided Dispatch System, and state-of-the-art Digital 9-1-1 equipment has been installed so
that all calls are now received on ISDN (Integrated Services Digital Network) trunk lines.

The department’s computer capabilities have increased with the implementation of the new Public Safety
Software for Incident Reporting, record management, fire inspection and prevention activities. The continued
implementation of Mobile Data Terminals for all front line apparatus and vehicles increases our efficiency. Quick
access pre-plans, as well as mapping, dispatch and hazardous material information will be part of the continuing
Mobile Data program.

The scheduled replacement program of major equipment continues with the receipt of a 95-foot aerial platform
ladder truck. The delivery of this state-of-the-art ladder truck enhances our ability to handle all fires and emergency
incidents with reliable vehicles. Thermal Imaging Cameras have been purchased and assigned to both career and
volunteer companies; the added availability of these units has proved to be invaluable in their various applications at
emergency scenes. Volunteer units, combined with volunteer Fire Police continue to supplement the Department in
emergency situations carrying on a proud tradition.

Construction for Station #25 in the northern part of the City has been completed. This renovated facility in the
northern section of Danbury will now meet the needs of the 24/7 coverage necessary in this area. Construction of the
new West Side fire station, which was approved in the 21¥ Century Danbury bond package, is scheduled to begin
this summer. The station will provide quicker response times to the western areas of the City. Construction has been
completed on a new live burn building to assist in the training of all of our firefighters. Engineers have also
completed the design work of the new 911 Communications Center. This new facility will be designed to meet the
space requirements of the evolving technology, which is being embraced by public safety personnel.

Training programs for both Career and Volunteer members are continuous and expand to meet the new
challenges of the fire and emergency services. Hundreds of continuing classroom and practical hours keep
firefighters abreast of current safety regulations and practices. New recruits are now trained at the Connecticut State
Fire Academy. This 12-week session at one of the premier training institutions in the country prepares recruits for
the challenges they will face. Various members continue their education through the National Fire Academy, State
Fire Academy and other institutions of higher learning.
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Public education continues throughout the community with citizen CPR programs, Citizen Fire Academy
Career Day Activities, mock crash simulations in local high schools, Junior Fire Setter Programs, File of Life senior
citizen programs and our Babysitters Program in conjunction with Danbury Hospital, which is in its 21st year and has
graduated over 2,000 students. The addition of a major initiative within the City has placed automatic defibriliators
in municipal buildings. These programs, combined with our inspection and suppression duties, assist in making the
quality of life in the City of Danbury among the best in the nation.

Parks and Recreation

Excluding school facilities, the City of Danbury has 1,326 acres designated for park and recreational use
distributed as follows: 186 acres of City parks, 256 acres of natural resource areas, and 884 acres of special use
parks. The Parks & Recreation Department uses 14 schools for playgrounds/ballfields, which account for 55 acres.

The City also contains recreational facilities and parks owned and maintained by state and community
organizations. Wooster Mountain State Park (428 acres), administered by Squantz Pond State Park, contains a few
lightly used hiking trails and a shooting range operated by the Danbury Shooting Sports Associates. Lattins Cove (5
acres) operates a boat launch on Lake Candlewood. Privately owned recreational facilities include such diverse
organizations as the Swampfield Land Trust, the Portuguese Cultural Center, the Ridgewood Country Club, private
and parochial schools and the Western Connecticut State University.

~ Rogers Park (59 acres): 8 tennis courts, handball/paddleball court, 4 softball fields, 6 baseball fields, and 1
soccer field.

~ Old Quarry Nature Center (40 acres): trails, bird watching, natural setting.

— Mill Plain Swamp (34 acres): no facilities.

~ Rogers Park Pond (7 acres): interpretative trails and footbridge.

— Still River Greenway (35 acres): hiking trails, education station, boat launch, bird sanctuary and footbridge.

— Lake Kenosia Park (25 acres): swimming, picnicking, non-motorized boating, four soccer fields and
playground.

— Lake Candlewood Park (11 acres): swimming, picnicking, motorized boating and boat ramp.

— Bear Mountain Park (140 acres): mostly undeveloped, passive recreation with a conservational outlook,
Ranger Cottage and parking.

— Richter Park (230 acres): 18 hole golf course, pro shop, restaurant, playhouse, basketball court, fishing,
hiking trail, two tennis courts, winter recreation. (Richter Park Drive).

— Osborne St. Field (8 acres): football, soccer and lacrosse field.

— Rowan Street Playground (3 acres): playground.

— Highland Playground (8 acres): playground.

— Rogers Park Playground (1 acre): playground.

— Elmwood Park (2 acres): park benches for passive recreation, fountain.

— Joseph Sauer Memorial Park (2 acres): park for the elderly, basketball court.
~ Tom West Park (1 acre): playground.

— Kennedy Park (1 acre): park benches for passive recreation.

— Hatters Community Park (32 acres): bowling alley, Park & Recreation Office, picnic pavilion, 3 softball
fields, banquet hall.

~ Danbury Green (1 acre): benches, walkway and band shell.

Tarrywile Park is a passive recreational area. It is 717 acres split into two distinct sections by Brushy Hill

Road. It has several buildings on the property of which the following are most noteworthy:
1. Mansion - Three stories, built in late 1800's - 18 rooms - renovated for Community Center.

Castle - 3 stories, built 1897 from natural quarry stone - use undetermined - large renovation project.
Carriage House - park residence.
Farm House - park residence.
Dairy Barns - future petting farm.
Gate House - administration use when property is developed.

Now e L

Montessori School building - use to remain as such.
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Danbury Public Library
The Danbury Public Library opened in 1970 on the primary downtown intersection of Main and West Streets.

Current services include:

o Hours: The library is open a total of 58 hours per week including Sundays.

e Audio-video department: A 4,200 square foot area holds 16,000 non-print items: videos, compact discs,
audio books, books on CD and DVDs.

e Personal computers for the public use: Access to word processing, spreadsheet programs, the Internet
and a variety of on-line databases are available on over 90 computers for the public. Free wireless
Internet access is available in the library, as well as in the library plaza.

e Library Technology Center: A 4,300 square foot computer lab with twenty workstations can be used by
the public for Internet access, word processing, on-line access to the library catalog, resume and typing
programs and multilingual access to the Internet. Two stations will provide accessibility for people with
disabilities. Library staff offers introductory as well as specialized Internet and computer classes to the
public on a regular basis in English, Spanish and Portuguese.

e Praxair Lab: With a gift of $35,000 from Praxair, Inc. and $5,500 from the FRIENDS of the Danbury
Library, a second computer-teaching lab opened in February 2002. It accommodates 10 attendees and
one instructor. In addition to having the software available on all other public computers, all workstations
are installed with state-of-the-art interactive Ellis Learning English software.

s Language Center: A six-workstation lab supports the growing population in Danbury who are learning
English. Numerous CD-ROM products teaching reading comprehension, pronunciation, and vocabulary
are available for self-study. Audiocassette programs, audio CDs, videos, and DVDs are also available in
addition to the Ellis Learning English software. The Language Center also carries materials on learning
languages other than English, including Rosetta Stone online for learning Spanish. In 2006, a Spanish
catalog of our holdings was added to the Center, and a new collection of Hindi books and DVDs started.

e A Program Room: This room, which seats up to 100, has kitchen facilities and can be reserved by the
public for programs and workshops. A second Meeting Room can be reserved for smaller group
gatherings.

e Danbury Library Homepage: danburylibrary.org: Connecting to the library’s home page allows off-
site customers to view the library’s catalog, reserve books, subscribe to an on-line newsletter, visit
selected web sites of current interest and retrieve full-text magazine articles 24 hours a day, seven days a
week. In addition, 24 hour a day access to a professional librarian is available through chat software to
answer informational and research questions. In 2006, software was installed to enable Google searching
of our catalog and website.

* cAudiobooks: The library offers 1,100 eAudiobooks to the public. These can be downloaded to
computers as well as MP3 players.

A $540,000 renovation of the library grounds and plaza was completed in 2004. Also in 2004, a $222,000
redesign of the library’s main floor was completed. It includes four customer self check-out machines, a system
enabling customers to sign themselves up for Internet computers, as well as new shelving, seating and tables. New
carpeting and tile were installed throughout the library in 2005.

Approximately 27,000 Danbury residents (36%) have active library cards. Over 450,000 visited the library
over the last year and over 650,000 visited the library’s home page.

A Board of Directors, appointed by the Mayor governs the Danbury Public Library. The Mayor also appoints
a Library Director to promote library services and supervise a staff of 60 and manage an operating budget of $2
million.

Urban Revitalization

The Danbury Redevelopment Agency (RDA) was established in 1956 for the purpose of revitalizing the central
business district and other areas that had been severely flooded by the Still River. The first phase had a total cost of
$8,152,000, including Federal grants of $5,600,000 and State grants of $1,225,000. Projects undertaken during that
phase included channelization of the River from Rose Street across White Street, construction of several bridges, and
the realignment and widening of Rose, Kennedy, Elm, Crosby, Hartell, and White Streets. Land acquisition for
redevelopment totaled over 23 acres. The subsequent sale of over 15 acres resulted in the construction of 22 new
commercial businesses, twelve of which constituted new businesses for the City while the remainder were relocations
from other areas.

13



The second phase was funded with Federal grants of $8,372,000. Projects funded by these grants included: (1)
acquisition of 56 parcels for redevelopment activities; (2) additional funding to contribute to the $13 million expended
by the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers for flood control improvements; (3) road improvements, including construction
of Patriot Drive; (4) disposition of 12 acres of land for private industrial, commercial, and residential uses; and (5)
disposition of an additional site for construction of the new Superior Court House. The realignment of Liberty Street
was funded during this phase with redevelopment moneys and a Federal Urban Systems Grant.

Urban revitalization of the remaining 7.7 acre redevelopment site in the downtown was based on the
“Downtown Danbury Redevelopment Plan” adopted by the Redevelopment Agency in 1990. Public improvement
projects constructed from 1990 to 1994 were funded largely by an $8,000,000 State grant administered by the
Department of Economic Development. Approximately $4.5 million was expended for the construction of the
Patriot Garage at the intersection of Patriot Drive and Independence Way, while the remainder was used to fund
streetscape improvements along Main Street from Boughton to Crosby Streets and for the extension of Delay Street
to White Street. CDBG funds were used to finance construction of the "Danbury Green" on the redevelopment site.
Private investment redeveloped vacant sites into Liberty Terrace condominiums and Webster Bank.

Construction of additional downtown sidewalks and walkways was completed in 1996. These improvements,
funded through the CDBG program, include (1) a walkway across Elmwood Park at Boughton Street, (2) sidewalk
installation along Old Liberty Street and Patriot Drive, and (3) a walkway from Patriot Drive to Delay Street along
the north end of the garage. The restoration of Elmwood Park was completed in 1998, and the Danbury Ice Arena
was opened in 2001 on the redevelopment site. That was followed by streetscape improvements which were
completed on Center Street and on Main Street from Center Street to Park Place.

A $1.3 million streetscape enhancement project was constructed along North Main Street under the Federal
TEA-21 program and completed in 2005. The project provided related support for a $1.5 million blight reduction
program for eight properties on North Main Street financed through City bonds and administered under the Danbury
Redevelopment Agency.

The City is currently designing a new $10,000,000 parking garage on Library Place, financed by the issuance
of City bonds, and a $1,000,000 streetscape project on White Street from Main Street to Fifth Avenue, financed by
City bonds and State LOCIP funding.

Solid Waste - Recycling

The City is a member of the Housatonic Resources Recovery Authority (HRRA) which has legal authority to
site and contract for long-term garbage disposal services. The HRRA has ruled out consideration of construction of a
waste to energy incineration facility in the region. They have signed a contract with the owner of such a facility
located in Bridgeport, Connecticut. The City executed a parallel contract with HRRA, which commits its solid waste
to this regional solution, which began July 1, 1993. Funding of the proposal will be through tipping fees and garbage
rate charges by the haulers to their customers. The tipping fee for the second half of fiscal year 2005-2006 is $77 per
ton. Approximately, twenty independent haulers collect solid waste in Danbury. There is no municipal garbage
collection.

The City of Danbury landfill closed December 31, 1996. The final closure and capping of the landfill was
completed in 1998. The project includes installation of a gas recovery system including a full synthetic
geomembrane cap. The total cost of this project was $11 million. The cost of the project has been funded under the
Cityworks 2000 bond issue in the amount of $2.4 million and from a portion of the proceeds the City received in
connection with privatization of its wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $8.1 million.

The State Bond Commission in 1997 approved a grant to the City in an amount not to exceed $4.0 million
under legislation enacted in the 1997 session of the General Assembly. This amount was used to reimburse the City
for expenditures related to the landfill closure and was credited to the general fund.

Although the landfill closure has been completed, the project generated serious disputes regarding the quality
of the work done by the City’s contractor and its subcontractors. The contractor and the subcontractors denied
responsibility for failures in the planning and execution of the work and then submitted claims for costs in excess of
the contract amount. The City settled all claims made against it by the subcontractors but intends to vigorously
defend against the claims made by the contractor.

14



The citywide recycling program was implemented in 1991. The municipal recycling truck remains available
for use by all City residents. There is also curbside recycling offered citywide by independent haulers. In addition,
the City has contracted with Automated Waste Disposal to operate a municipal solid waste and recycling center drop
off location for residents who do not wish to contract with an independent hauler.

On April 21, 2004, the City of Danbury, Connecticut entered into a 12-year contract with Total Landscaping
and Tree Service, LLC for the management and operation of a wood waste facility and a leaf composting facility.
The wood waste and leaf composting operations are conducted at City owned facilities. Total Landscaping and Tree
Service is responsible for accepting and processing wood waste and leaves deposited at these City owned facilities as
generated by the City or its residents.

Enterprise Funds

Sewer Fund

On October 1, 1997, the City of Danbury, Connecticut entered into a 20-year contract with Veolia Water
North America (d.b.a. U.S. Filter Operating Services, Inc.) for the management, operation and maintenance of the
City’s 15.5 MGD wastewater treatment facility and its 13 pump stations. The contract has been amended to increase
the number of pump stations to 15 and address changes in operational requirements. Danbury will continue to
exercise control over its rate setting and inter-municipal agreements. The City retains full legal title and ownership
of the facility. Veolia Water North America operates and maintains the facility in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the City’s NPDES permit (# CT0100145). The contract with Veolia contains additional performance
standards, such as Veolia implementing a program to provide year round nitrification process to ensure the quality of
effluent, which are above the requirements of the City’s current NPDES permit. A laboratory is maintained on site
by Veolia Water North America to insure proper operation of the plant process, and to comply with Connecticut
Department of Environmental Protection requirements.

All residential and other sewage collected flows to the treatment plant through lateral and trunk sewers. In
those geographic areas where sewage cannot flow by gravity, pumping stations lift the sewage to a higher point in
elevation so it may flow by gravity to the treatment plant. Sewers are inspected for blockage and other physical
conditions.

Funds for the operation of the Wastewater Division are provided by a sewer use charge. The sewer use charge
also pays for the debt service on the debt issued to construct the treatment plant and trunk sewers. The assessment of
benefits for lateral sewer lines is calculated in accordance with City ordinances using a formula that includes the
following four elements: area of lot or parcel, frontage of lot or parcel, number of existing building units or number
of units allowed by zoning on lot or parcel and property valuation for tax purposes of lot or parcel. An individual's
assessment represents a proportionate portion of the assessable cost of sewer extensions.

Rates were increased for customers in the 2004-2005 fiscal year, the 2005-2006 fiscal year, and are increased
for the 2006-2007 fiscal year.

The City of Danbury has inter-municipal agreements with the Towns of Bethel, Brookfield, Newtown and
Ridgefield which address and spell out the mechanism for payment of the capital improvements to the upgraded
facility as well as the future operating and maintenance payments to the City of Danbury for the treatment of the
sewage that is generated from within each of their towns. Both the capital and operation and maintenance formulas
are a function of each municipality’s proportionate share of the flow either reserved in the plant for capital expenses
or actually flowing to the plant for operation and maintenance expenses. The plant is now fully operational.

Water Fund

The City’s raw water supply has 9 reservoirs with a total capacity of 3.0 billion gallons of water and one well
field with a capacity of 0.5 million gallons per day (MGD). The safe yield of of the City water system is 8.7 million
gallons per day (MGD). The Lake Kenosia well field and pump station has the ability to complement the reservoir
system with an additional 1.0 MGD to 9 MGD when needed. In 2003, the Danbury Water Department produced and
distributed an average of 7.5 million gallons per day.

A water quality monitoring program has been established to insure compliance with the standard for quality of
drinking water listed in The State of Connecticut Public Health Code and in the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act.
All the drinking water provided at the treatment plants and well field is chlorinated and fluoridated as required by the
Connecticut Department of Public Health Service. Testing for water quality is performed by the Danbury Water
Department laboratory and outside laboratory services.
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The Water Department completed major programs directed at improving the purity, adequacy, and safety of
the supply. It is the intent of the City of Danbury to develop a water supply system consistent with its plan of
development. A vulnerability assessment for the water system was submitted to the United States Environmental
Protection Agency in December 2003 as required by federal regulations.

The City previously was under State order to repair its dams. The reconstruction of dams at Lower Kohanza,
West Lake, Boggs Pond, Margerie, Padanaram and Upper Kohanza was completed in 1993-96. All reservoir dams
are inspected annually for review of proper operation and maintenance.

Metered and non-metered rates provide funds for the operation, maintenance, and debt service of the water
system. The Superintendent of Public Utilities submits to the Common Council a rate structure for their approval
that is intended to provide sufficient funds for the water system to be self-sustaining.

To ensure better accuracy and efficiency of measuring metered water use, a water meter replacement program
began in 2005 and is expected to be completed in 2006. The program includes the replacement of all existing water
meters older than 5 years and the installation of an automatic meter reading system.

Water rates for all customers were increased in the 2004-2005 fiscal year by 32%, the 2005-2006 fiscal year
by 20%, and are increased by 5% for the 2006-2007 fiscal year.

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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Employee Relations and Collective Bargaining

Municipal Employees
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
General Government .......cooeeveveeeereeevnrenenns 540 527 537 550 544
Board of Education .......ccceceeerveeeciivecinnnnee 1,425 1,387 1,329 1,377 1,299
TOtal ... 1,965 1,914 1,866 1,927 1,843

Employee Bargaining Organizations

Positions Current Contract

Board of Education Groups Covered Expiration Date
Non-Bargaining EMPIOYEES ........ccveerernvererinienenritniesineneeseseseeseesesssenessensens 80 N/A
NEA TEACKETS ...eoiieeiiriieirietetet e ret e sesee s e s este e ssesesesresesseenesusseessanssreas 848 06/30/09
Local 677 Teamsters CUSLOAIANS .....cocevureererertereercrreriererrceresresesseessesessassesnns 70 06/30/05 !
CSEA Paraprofessionals..........ccecececereenenrcoennerneeenneseesineceseeessesnens 256 06/30/06
School NUrses ASSOCIALION ....cvvrverveeerrriiereeseirrireereesesrerereesesseansseesesssssseesacen 25 06/30/08
Local 677 Teamsters School Lunch ... 70 06/30/06
Danbury Association of School Secretaries .........cocevrineerenerencnencnernnenens 76 06/30/07
TOLAL .....cooeoeeeeieecre et eer e cene s ser et e b et e st s et ab ettt e e b re e e e et e rarestasan 1,425
City Groups
Local 891 Council 15 AFSCME PoliCe 2 .........ovcurveeereieesecienseesiessessesseseens 148 06/30/07
UPSEIU (formerly DMEA) Municipal EmMployees........ccccccevrereneennenaveenens 107 06/30/07
L.0CAL 677 TEAMSIETS. ..ccverieriveeanerrensesarsseeeseae e eseessesees e seeessesmassesstesessassvarsons 102 06/30/07
Local 801 AFL-CIO FirefighterS......cocooevurrevernerrernnerenrenreeerenseneenesessessssesnens 105 06/30/07
Non-Bargaining Employees ... 78 N/A
TOLA] ...t e ae s 540

! In negotiation.
2 Includes two canine control officers.

General Statutes sections 7-473c, 7-474 and 10-153d provide a procedure for binding arbitration of collective
bargaining agreements between municipal employers and organizations representing municipal employees, including
certificated teachers and certain other employees. The legislative body of an affected municipality may reject the
arbitration panel's decision by a two-thirds majority vote. The State and the employee organization must be advised
in writing of the reasons for rejection. The State will then appoint a new panel of three arbitrators to review the
decisions on each of the rejected issues. The panel may accept the last best offer of either party. In reaching its
determination, the arbitration panel shall give priority to the public interest and the financial capability of the
municipal employer, including consideration of other demands on the financial capability of the municipal employer.
In the light of the employer's financial capability, the panel shall consider prior negotiations between the parties, the
interests and welfare of the employee group, changes in the cost of living, existing employment conditions, and the
wages, salaries, fringe benefits, and other conditions of employment prevailing in the labor market, including
developments in private sector wages and benefits.
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Educational Services

The present Board of Education of the City is comprised of eleven members each serving a four year term, as
provided by the City Charter. The Mayor serves as an ex-officio member. The Board of Education is responsible for
maintaining public elementary and secondary schools. There are thirteen (13) elementary schools, two (2) middle
schools, one (1) high school and one (1) alternative high school providing educational programs to students in grades

pre-kindergarten through twelve.

School Facilities
Date Opened Type of Number of  Enrollment Rated
School Grades (Add. or Ren.) Construction Classrooms 10/1/05 Capacity
Great Plain ........ccoceevnne PK-5 1963 Brick 21 311 379
Hayestown.......cccceveruenn. PK-5 1955 Brick 26 392 448
King Street Prim. ........... PK-2 1977 Brick 22 341 488
King Street Inter. ........... 3-5 1964 Brick 31 314 322
Mill Ridge Prim.............. PK-2 1974 Brick 22 339 396
Mill Ridge Inter. ............ 3-5 1957 Brick 30 289 437
Morris Street.......coeenrnne PK-5 1892 Brick 24 348 379
1963 (Addition)
1980 (Add. & Ren.)
Park Avenue.................. PK-5 1951 Brick 22 369 402
Pembroke.......cccccoovernnen. PK-5 1970 Brick 23 344 425
Roberts Avenue............. PK-5 1952 Brick 19 323 356
Shelter Rock .....c.ecvveeene. PK-5 1963 Brick 18 361 405
1973 (Addition)
South Street ......cocceveneee PK-5 1935 Brick 19 319 339
1980 (Add. & Ren.)
Stadley Rough ............... PK-5 1971 Brick 21 441 494
Broadview M.S.............. 6-8 1967 Brick 39 1,127 1,012
Rogers Pk. M.S.............. 6-8 1972 Brick 42 996 1,012
Danbury H.S. .....ooeneee 9-12 1964 Brick 117 2,900 2,442
Alternative Center ......... 9-12 1977 Brick 11 94 100
TOLAL .......ocveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt r e bt ta s e bt ebs s n e nc e eanas 507 9,904 9,836
Source: Danbury Board of Education
School Enrollment '
Historical
Year Pre-K-5 6-8 9-12 Other Total
1996-1997 4,443 1,820 2,203 273 8,739
1997-1998 4,596 1,907 2,340 274 9,117
1998-1999 4,504 1,844 2,298 280 8,926
1999-2000 4,390 2,065 2,465 231 9,151
2000-2001 4,453 2,144 2,564 209 9,370
2001-2002 4,182 2,205 2,673 210 9,270
2002-2003 4,517 2,201 2,844 209 9,771
2003-2004 4,525 2,177 2,886 220 9,808
2004-2005 4,533 2,093 2,936 219 9,781
2005-2006 4,491 2,123 2,994 296 9,904
Projected*
2006-2007 4,503 2,202 2,956 262 9,923
2007-2008 4,533 2,225 2,942 262 9,992
2008-2009 4,517 2,249 2,971 262 9,999
2009-2010 4,575 2,206 2,983 262 10,026
2010-2011 4,482 2,178 3,102 105 9,867

! Superintendent's Office
% Connecticut State Department of Education - Enrollment Projections
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lll. Economic and Demographic Information

Population and Density

Actual
Year Population ' % Increase Density *
1970 51,066 29.7 1,161
1980 60,470 18.4 1,374
1990 65,585 8.5 1,491
2000 74,848 14.1 1,701
2004 ° 78,221 4.5 1,778

' 1970-2000, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census
2 Per square mile: 44 square miles
® State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health; July 1, 2004

Age Distribution of the Population

City of Danbury State of Connecticut
2000 Percent 2000 Percent

Under S ..o ceireans 4,900 6.5 223,344 6.6

50 e ceaaeas 4,540 6.1 244,144 7.2
10=14 s 4,281 5.7 241,587 7.1
1519 i 4,561 6.1 216,627 6.4
20 =24 oo 5,587 7.5 187,571 5.5
25 =34 s 13,332 17.8 451,640 13.3
35 =44 .o, 13,161 17.6 581,049 17.1
45 =54 oo 10,011 134 480,807 14.1
5559 e eeaaenes 3,595 4.8 176,961 5.2
60— 64 ..o 2,644 3.5 131,652 3.9
65 T4 e 4,158 5.6 231,565 6.8
TS5 =84 e 2,946 3.9 174,345 5.1
85 years and over .....c..ccoce... 1,132 1.5 64,273 1.9

Total ...ocooeeeeeeeiiieieiiienns 74,848 100.0 3,405,565 100.0
Median Age (years) .............. 35.2 374

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000

Income Distribution

City of Danbury State of Connecticut
Households Percent Households Percent

Less than $10,000..........cccovievevcvevnnnvenenn. 684 3.8 33,423 3.8
$10,000 t0 14,999 ....oeveeeeiiereereeve e 452 2.5 23,593 2.7
$15,000 10 24,999 ... 1,341 7.4 63,262 7.1
$25,00010 34,999 ....ocorrirreerrencreee e 1,695 9.3 75,413 8.5
$35,000 10 49,999 .....coeiieriieeeeieenn 2,721 15.0 120,134 13.6
$50,000 t0 74,999 ...ovevereeeeeee e, 4,299 23.7 198,924 22.5
$75,000 10 99,999 .....oooiecireeeeceeeeee 2,988 16.5 141,981 16.0
$100,000 to 149,999 ....ccvrevrierireerecieeeene 2,561 14.1 132,177 14.9
$150,000 to 199,999.......ccorveimrvereecrrcnnans 790 44 42,472 48
$200,000 Or MOTE .....oovvveeecreerircresreearaenns 615 34 54,368 6.1
TOtal........ooeeeeeeree et 18,146 100.0 885,747 100.0

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000
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Income Levels

City of State of
Danbury Connecticut
Per Capita Income, 1999 ...ccoeovecennnnnnene. $24,500 $28,766
Per Capita Income, 1989 .........ccocvvrveennnn. 19,300 20,189
Median Family Income, 1999 ..........c.......... $53,664 $53,935
Percent Below Poverty .......cccccceecennncencne 5.9% 5.6%

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000 and 1990.

Educational Attainment
Population 25 years and over

City of Danbury State of Connecticut
Number Percent Number Percent
Less than 9th grade ..., 5,182 10.1 132,917 5.8
9th to 12th grade, no diploma .........cccceovviriviiinniniinnnns 6,607 12.9 234,739 10.2
High school graduate (includes equivalency).............. 14,688 28.7 653,300 28.5
Some college, 10 degree ..o, 8,266 16.1 402,741 17.5
ASSOCIALE'S EEIEE ...oouerrereneencrecneieriieriea s 2,596 5.1 150,926 6.6
Bachelor's degree .......ovveveevevinreceerceeneerenreeeceneneene 8,937 174 416,751 18.2
Graduate or professional degree .........cooevvirrnivnnens 4,947 9.7 304,243 13.3
TOLAl ..ot 51,223 100.0 2,295,617 100.0
Percent high school graduate or higher ..................... 77.0% 84.0%
Percent bachelor's degree or higher ... 27.1% 31.4%
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000
Major Employers
As of July, 2006
Approximate Number
Name Business of Employees
Danbury Hospital.......c.cccceeerenmencineniiinnn, Hospital (excluding affiliates) 2,870
Boehringer-Ingelheim Pharmaceuticals................ Pharmaceuticals 2,300%
Cartus (formerly Cendant Mobility)......c.ccccceuunee. Relocation firm 1,670
Danbury School Systems........cccoververeenennenrennne. Education 1,425
G.E. Capital ......cccovnvirnncceniiiniiicccneeenne Consumer/Commercial Credit 1,200
Western CT State University......c.ccccvervieriinnne, Education 900
Pitney Bowes, IncC. .....ccoeveveivninnninieeree Mailing Machines 650
SChOlASTIC...oeeereeeeeriiereec e Reference Publications 550
City of Danbury General Government ................. Municipality 540
GOOArICh .. Optical Instruments & Lenses 514

*Includes both Danbury & Ridgefield

Source: Greater Danbury Chamber of Commerce, Inc.
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Employment by Industry

City of Danbury State of Connecticut
Sector Number Percent Number Percent
Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining ......... 69 0.2 7,445 04
CONSLIUCHON .ovveevevieeeeeereerrereesesessesseessestesnsssesseesessnenseressenas 3,811 9.5 99,913 6.0
ManUfaCtUIING ...cvcveierreeircrretrrt et se e st enenseseenes 7,323 18.3 246,607 14.8
Wholesale trade ......ovoveveeviivirceeer e eaeens 1,181 2.9 53,231 32
RELAIITAAE wveeereceveeeeeereererescr e ne et e e es et ae e neveebeesenns 5,039 12.6 185,633 11.2
Transportation and warehousing, and utilities..........ccccceuenee. 1,213 3.0 64,662 3.9
INFOIMALION .vveeviiiiereeee et eee e e ree e rer s rae s e e e e essaessesseesseens 1,602 4.0 55,202 33
Finance, insurance, real estate, and rental and leasing .......... 2,529 6.3 163,568 9.8
Professional, scientific, management, administrative, and
waste management SEIVICES .....coevereeeerrerrerenrenreeneenerenneeene 4,656 11.6 168,334 10.1
Educational, health and social services .......ccccovevveeevvenene. 6,893 17.2 366,568 22.0
Arts, entertainment, recreation, accommodation and food
SEIVICES .vvvererererreerressessaesssesseesssarseesasessesssesseesssrsssssssessessnes 2,780 6.9 111,424 6.7
Other services (except public administration) ..........coceveeene. 2,165 5.4 74,499 4.5
Public AAMINIStIation .......ccceveveireeieeceeserieesesteeceereeessereseesaees 809 2.0 67,354 4.0
Total Labor Force, Employed ...........c.ccccoeviinvnennrnennn. 40,070 100.0 1,664,440 100.0
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, 2000
Employment Data
By Place of Residence'
City of Danbury Percentage Unemployed
City of Danbury State of
Period Employed Unemployed Danbury Labor Market Connecticut
May 2006 .................. 42,502 1,344 3.1 3.0 39
Annual Average
2005 eieeeecieneeereirrnens 41,629 1,704 3.9 3.8 4.9
2004...cccieiiernerenneians 39,193 1,447 3.6 3.1 4.7
2003 e 38,553 1,782 4.4 3.8 5.5
200200 ieeierecreeinnanns 36,346 1,473 3.9 33 43
2001 .. iiireeieeeeienns 34,711 1,086 3.0 2.5 33
2000...c.ccreiererenenens 36,010 662 1.8 1.5 2.3
1999, 34,738 1,034 2.9 2.3 32
1998 34,718 1,046 2.9 2.3 34
1997 34,508 1,589 4.4 34 5.1
1996....oimueerererirnnns 34,114 1,774 4.9 3.9 5.7
1995, 33,830 1,683 4.7 3.7 5.5

! Not seasonally adjusted.

Source: Department of Labor, State of Connecticut
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Age Distribution of Housing

City of Danbury State of Connecticut
Year Built Units Percent Units Percent
1999 to March 2000 .......cccoeerveecreennnnn. 685 2.4 15,993 1.2
1995 t0 1998...oviieeeieeeeeeecerreereven e 808 2.8 47,028 34
199010 1994 ...coooeeeceeee e 1,023 3.6 56,058 4.0
198010 1989 ..uveicceeereecreeecee e 4,569 16.0 183,405 13.2
197010 1979 i erraenn, 4,855 17.0 203,377 14.7
1960 10 1969.....eoievcreerircireeeireer e, 4,583 16.1 212,176 15.3
194010 1959..uumiiiiieirieree e, 6,091 214 359,042 25.9
1939 or earlier ......cccovevveevnnerereriencnnenns 5,905 20.7 308,896 22.3
Total housing units, 2000 ................... 28,519 100.0 1,385,975 100.0
Percent Owner Occupied, 2000 .......... 58.3 66.8
Sowrce: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000
Housing Inventory
Type Units Percent
1-unit, detached ........coceevrveevnenne. 12,653 44.4
1-unit, attached .........coveevievreernnnnn. 2,137 7.5
2UNILS cevveeereceeeecreereeernrecreresneeas 3,457 12.1
300 4 UNIES covvreennirieeeecievecnnee e 3,414 12.0
50 QUNILS ovvveevireirrevceee e 2,254 7.9
10 t0 19 UnitS .oevveveeiereieeee e 1,456 5.1
20 Or MOTE UNItS ..veveverereerereenen e 2,706 9.5
Mobile home ......oovveeieveiriieen, 422 1.5
Boat, RV, van, etC ......cccccevvrvennenn. 20 0.1
Total Inventory .......ccceeevvvuennee 28,519 100.0
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000
Building Permits
Calendar Year Residential Commercial Industrial Total
Ending 12/31 No. Value No. Value No. Value No. Value
2005 1,441 $96,350,821 177  $44,660,170 4 $25,324,000 1,622 $166,334,991
2004 1,420 85,958,812 195 37,860,444 5 8,225,886 1,620 132,045,142
2003 1,127 40,166,000 181 24,635,638 9 3,051,936 1,317 67,853,574
2002 1,062 57,004,872 236 32,725,840 33 6,440,498 1,331 96,171,210
2001 2,160 56,853,403 582 29,916,109 13 16,853,297 2,755 103,622,809 !
2000 1,823 62,484,901 426 29,746,777 23 9,744,553 2,272 101,976,231!
1999 802 37,221,107 227 43,087,178 - - 1,029 80,308,285
1998 763 43,964,940 9 18,989,896 2 370,961 774 63,325,797
1997 203 19,151,324 53 18,907,047 1 500,000 257 38,558,371
1996 111 10,362,330 49 25,346,500 2 2,533,000 162 38,241,380

Source: Building Department, City of Danbury

! Building permits for 2000 and 2001 include electrical and mechanical permits.
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Owner-Occupied Housing Values

City of Danbury State of Connecticut

Specified Owner-occupied Values Number Percent Number Percent
Less than $50,000........cccccevervrercercenen. 43 04 5,996 0.8
$ 50,000t08 99,999....ceiviirerienne 562 4.8 85,221 11.7
$100,000 to $149,999.......ccocvveevrrceenene. 2,347 19.9 212,010 29.1
$150,000 t0 $199,999.......ccevererrvrreennn. 3,929 334 156,397 21.5
$200,000 t0 $299,999......cocevvcricrinenne. 3,625 30.8 137,499 18.9
$300,000 to $499,999......cccccrmcrrerennnnn. 1,082 9.2 79,047 10.9
$500,000 t0 $999,999......c.ccnvvvernenene 171 1.5 38,168 5.2
$1,000,000 Or MOTe ....occovverirereeenennene 20 0.2 13,906 1.9

Total......ccoceveiieeciiiinnene 11,779 100.0 728,244 100.0
Median Value ........coccoveveevcevcinnennnne, $186,500 $166,900

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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IV. Tax Base Data
Property Tax

Assessments

The maintenance of an equitable tax base and the location and appraisal of all real and personal property
within the City for inclusion on the Grand List is the responsibility of the Assessor. The Grand List represents the
total of assessed value for all taxable real and personal property located within the City as of October 1. A Board of
Assessment Appeal determines whether adjustments to the Assessor's list on assessments under appeal are warranted.
Assessments are computed at seventy percent (70%) of market value at the time of the last revaluation (Grand List
10/1/2002).

Public Act 04-2 Section 32 amended subsections (a) and (b) of Connecticut General Statutes 12-62. Pursuant
to this legislative change, revaluations are to be implemented on a five-year cycle. All towns, including those that
implemented revaluation prior to the legislation’s effective date are subject to that requirement. They next
revaluation the City will be performing will be for the October 1, 2007 grand list.

When a new structure or modification to an existing structure is undertaken, the Assessor's Office receives a
copy of the permit issued by the Building Inspector. A physical appraisal is then completed and the structure
classified and priced from a schedule developed as of the revaluation. Property depreciation and obsolescence
factors are also considered when arriving at an equitable value.

Motor vehicle lists are furnished to the City by the State of Connecticut and appraisals of motor vehicles are
accomplished in accordance with an automobile price schedule developed by the Connecticut Association of
Assessing Officials and as recommended by the State Office of Policy and Management. Section 12-71b of the
Connecticut General Statutes (CGS), provides that motor vehicles which are registered with the Commissioner of
Motor Vehicles after the October 1 assessment date but before the next August 1 are subject to a property tax as if
the motor vehicle had been included on the October 1 Grand List. The tax is prorated, and the proration is based on
the number of months of ownership between October 1 and the following July 31. Cars purchased in August and
September are not taxed until the next October 1 Grand List. If the motor vehicle replaces a motor vehicle that was
taxed on the October Grand List, the taxpayer is entitled to certain credits.

All business personal property (furniture, fixtures, equipment, machinery and leased equipment) is assessed
annually. An assessor's check and audit is completed periodically. Assessments for both personal property and
motor vehicles are computed at seventy percent (70%) of present market value.

Section 12-124a of the CGS permits a municipality, upon approval by its legislative body, to abate property
taxes on owner-occupied residences to the extent that the taxes exceed eight percent of the owner's total income,
from any source, adjusted for self-employed persons to reflect expenses allowed in determining adjusted gross
income. The owner must agree to pay the amount of taxes abated with interest at 6% per annum, or at such rate
approved by the legislative body, at such time that the residence is sold or transferred or on the death of the last
surviving owner. A lien for such amounts is recorded in the land records but does not take precedence over any
mortgage recorded before the lien. The City has not approved the use of this abatement provision to date.

In accordance with CGS 12-65b, the Common Councii adopted in November 1996 an ordinance authorizing
the deferral of assessment increases attributed to construction or improvements to real property. This applies to
offices, manufactures, warehouses or storage areas.

Also, in accordance with CGS 12-65b, the Common Council adopted in February 2004 an ordinance
authorizing the deferral of assessment increases attributed to the placement of personal property to be located in a
manufacturing facility.

Levy

Property taxes are levied on all assessed property on the Grand List of October 1 prior to the beginning of the
fiscal year. At the discretion of the City and for the convenience of the taxpayer, tax bills are payable in installments:
July 1, October 1, January 1, and April 1. A margin against delinquencies, legal reductions, and Grand List
adjustments, such as assessor errors, is provided by adjusting the Grand List downward when computing anticipated
property tax revenue from the current levy. A modest estimate for delinquent taxes and outstanding interest and lien
fees anticipated to be collected during the fiscal year is normally included as a revenue item in the budget.
Delinquent taxes are billed at least three times a year, with interest charged at the rate of one and one-half percent per
month in accordance with CGS, with a minimum charge of $2.00. Outstanding real estate tax accounts are
automatically liened each year prior to June 30 with legal demands and alias tax warrants used in the collection of
personal property and motor vehicle tax bills. Real estate accounts and other accounts are transferred to suspense 15
years after the due date in accordance with CGS.
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Comparative Assessed Valuation

Commercial/ Manufacturers’

Grand Residential Industrial All Personal Motor Exemptions ‘,

List as Real Real Land Property Vehicle Gross Taxable Veterans Relief, Net Taxable
of10/1  Property (%) Property (%) (%) (%) (%) Grand List and Elderly Grand List
2005 60.8 259 N/A 5.9 74  $6,210,479,700 $107,256,230 $6,103,223,470
2004 59.2 26.9 N/A 6.1 7.8 6,055,386,825 121,477,840 5,635,804,295
2003 59.9 24.6 N/A 6.7 6.8 5,902,781,490 123,388,910 5,200,457,340
2002 * 59.4 24.8 N/A 6.9 6.9 5,871,260,940 122,770,090  4,892,216,450
2001 52.4 28.7 N/A 8.6 8.5 4,661,646,250 99,622,880  4,562,023,370
2000 52.5 31.0 N/A 83 83 4,551,743,810 83,431,520  4,468,312,290
19992 52.1 30.7 N/A 8.7 7.8 4,480,987,800 86,225,680  4,394,762,120
1998 54.8 29.6 1.2 7.8 6.6 4,741,143,050 74,093,740  4,667,049,310
1997 55.1 294 1.4 7.8 6.3 4,654,810,700 66,720,460  4,588,090,240
1996 54.9 29.5 1.4 7.9 6.3 4,630,249,220 72,054,500  4,558,194,720

! Manufacturers' Exemptions began in 10/1/91.
2 Revaluation. The column entitled “Exemptions” does not include exemptions due to phase in of revaluation.

3 Revaluation.

Source: City of Danbury, City Assessor's Office

Exempt Property
Assessed Value as of 10/1/05

The following categories of exempt properties are not included in the grand lists.

U.S. Government
State of Connecticut

Miscellaneous

City of Danbury
Total Exempt Property

Assessed Value

$ 36,496,600
223,342,400
217,164,800
351,198,100

Percent Compared to Net Taxable Grand List '...........

! Based on a Net Taxable Grand List 10/1/05 of 86,103,223,470.
Source: City of Danbury, Assessor's Office

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Property Tax Levies and Collections

Uncollected
Percent of Percent of
Fiscal Annual Levy  Annual Levy Percent of
Grand Year Collected Uncollected Annual Levy
Listas Ending Net Taxable Mill Original at end of at end of Uncollected as
of 10/1 6/30 Grand List Rate Annual Levy Fiscal Year Fiscal Year of 6/30/06
2004 20061  $5,635,804,295  23.03 $129,801,428 99.1% 0.9% 1.46%
2003 2005 5,200,457,340 24.86 129,296,048 98.5 1.5 0.58
2002 2004 4,892,216,450 2429 118,824,972 99.3 0.7 0.48
2001 2003 4,562,023,370  25.24 115,150,456 98.3 1.7 0.42
2000 2002 4,468,312,290  24.30 108,588,084 98.7 1.3 0.40
1999 2001 4,394,762,120  23.19 101,895,249 98.0 2.0 0.40
1998 2000 4,667,049,310  20.78 96,977,466 98.6 14 0.32
1997 1999 4,588,090,240  19.13 87,748,032 98.7 1.3 0.25
1996 1998 4,558,194,720  19.13 87,189,876 97.6 2.4 0.26
1995 1997 4,518,020,290 19.13 86,429,728 97.3 2.7 0.03

! Estimate for June 30, 2006 and subject to audit.
Source: City of Danbury, Tax Collector's Office

Property Taxes Receivable
Last Five Fiscal Years

As of June 30 Total Current Year
2006 $3,760,854 $1,616,950
2005 5,233,029 1,914,898
2004 4,900,629 1,766,355
2003 5,411,481 2,456,887
2002 6,455,904 2,146,262
! Subject to audit

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, City of Danbury, 2002 - 2005.

City of Danbury, Tax Collector's Office, 2006.

Ten Largest Taxpayers

Percent of
Taxable Net Taxable
Name Nature of Business Valuation Grand List'
Danbury Mall Associates.........ccovvcirenienne, Shopping Mall $121,644,600 1.99%
Danbury Buildings, Inc......cccccocveninnninnnnn, Real Estate Investor 82,659,740 1.35
Boehringer-Ingelheim........cooviiiiiinncnnnnn, Research Center 53,736,590 0.88
Avalonbay Communities, Inc. ......cccoccevnenen. Land Developer 37,936,680 0.62
Melvyn, Mary & Seymour Powers
Danbury Industrial Corp & MMP Realty ... Industrial Park 36,759,440 0.60
Connecticut Light & Power ..., Public Utilities 34,661,690 0.57
WCI Communities, INC. ...ccoveeervnnenvercnncennn Land Developer 34,096,600 0.56
Hawley, Ervie, Germantown Plaza Assoc.

& Germantown Medical Center................... Shopping Ctr & Land Developer 28,588,150 0.47
BF Goodrich Aerospace.........occcccenveeeericrnanes Electronics 28,304,260 0.46
Ethan Allen Inn/Lake Ave. Associates ......... Hotel/Office 22,963,850 0.38
TORR ... ettt ettt e e e et e a b r e $481,351,600 7.89%

! Based on a net taxable grand list 10/1/05 of $6,103,223,470.
Source: Assessor’s Office, City of Danbury
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V. Debt Summary

Principal Amount of Bonded Indebtedness
As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Date of
Amount of Amount Fiscal Year

Date Purpose Rate % Original Issue Outstanding Maturity
02/01/88 SCROOIS ..ot 6.200 - 6.700 $ 6,350,000 $ 320,000 2007
05/15/90 Sewer - Clean Water Fund Loan > 2.00 2,296,859 344,530 2009
08/15/92 SCHOOIS ..o 4.125-6.125 16,000,000 5,600,000 2013
08/15/92 Public Improvement ..........cococoveererenincecnncennnes 4.125-6.125 350,000 105,000 2013
02/01/94 Public Improvement. .. 3.200-5.100 2,705,000 640,000 2014
02/01/94 SChOOIS ..ot e 3.200 - 5.100 17,740,000 7,060,000 2014
02/01/94 SEWEE ..ottt sesn s eerenenn 3.200-5.100 2,100,000 840,000 2014
02/01/94 Water - Sewer Treatment Plant 2 .. 3.200-5.100 1,000,000 400,000 2014
02/01/94 Sewer - Lateral >......ocoooovorvrreirerc s 3.200-5.100 1,310,000 520,000 2014
02/01/94 Water - Dams | ... eeneee s 3.200 - 5.100 2,000,000 800,000 2014
07/29/94 Sewers - Clean Water Fund Loan * 2.00 47,373,853 17,377,309 2014
01/31/95 Sewers - CWF Loan - Lateral ° ..... 2.00 441,322 176,530 2015
03/15/95 Sewer - Lateral ® ... 5.000 - 7.000 1,500,000 675,000 2015
03/15/95 Water - Dams ' ......... 5.000 - 7.000 2,100,000 945,000 2015
03/15/95 Public Improvement. 5.000 - 7.000 1,695,000 670,000 2015
08/01/97 Public Improvement............ 4.100 - 5.750 4,100,000 230,000 2008
08/01/97 Water System Improvements 4.100 - 5.750 6,000,000 280,000 2008
08/01/98 Public Improvement................ .. 4.100-5.500 10,100,000 1,010,000 2009
08/01/98 Water System Improvements b oo eeeeeseennn 4.100 - 5.500 11,000,000 1,100,000 2009
08/01/98 Water Service Extensions '.........cccccooovrivrernnnn. 4.100 - 5.500 1,395,000 140,000 2009
08/01/99 Public Improvement................ 4.150 - 6.000 3,500,000 525,000 2010
08/01/99 Water System Improvements ' 4.150 - 6.000 1,000,000 150,000 2010
08/01/99 Sewer EXtension * ......cocooovvivovonreec e 4.150 - 6.000 1,600,000 240,000 2010
05/15/02 Public Improvement. ... 3.500-5.000 7,292,000 2,564,100 2012
05/15/02 SCHOOIS c..vivereeree ettt ees 3.500 - 5.000 4,500,000 1,350,000 2012
05/15/02 Water Service EXtensions *.......c.ccooeevevreene. 3.500 - 5.000 573,000 171,900 2012
05/15/02 Sewer Lateral * ...coooovvvervreneronnn. 3.500 - 5.000 380,000 114,000 2012
05/01/03 Refunding of 1990 Pub. I 2.000 - 4.000 1,190,000 670,000 2010
08/01/03 Schools......ccoeeean 3.250-4.750 5,350,000 4,465,000 2024
08/01/03 Public Improvement............ 3.250-4.750 7,575,000 6,180,000 2024
03/01/04 Public Improvement Refunding. 2.000 - 5.000 11,770,000 11,755,000 2022
03/01/04 Schools Refunding................. 2.000 - 5.000 2,278,000 2,278,000 2022
03/01/04 Sewer Refunding °. 2.000 - 5.000 998,000 998,000 2022
03/01/04 Water Refunding....... .. 2.000-5.000 10,314,000 10,294,000 2022
08/01/04 Public Improvement ...........cococvoeernnereniserecennnes 3.250 - 5.000 3,100,000 2,780,000 2025
08/01/04 SCROOIS ..ottt 3.250 - 5.000 515,000 445,000 2025
08/01/04 3.250 - 5.000 1,300,000 1,170,000 2025
08/01/05 Public Improvement .............occcevervccnvnerennnnnns 3.000 - 4.500 9,430,000 8,850,000 2026
08/01/05 SCROOIS ...ovecec e et s 3.000 - 4.500 1,010,000 805,000 2011
08/01/05 WERLET oo er et ens e ireen 3.000 - 4.500 500,000 475,000 2026

Total Long Term Debt...............cccoooorrieircerieciieceecrectr e $218,032,034 $95,513,369

This Issue

08/01/06 Public Improvement ...........ccocevurverrrirernesereirencaens 4.250 - 5.000 $ 19,405,500 $ 19,405,500 2027
08/01/06 Schools 4.250 - 5.000 4,952,000 4,952,000 2027
08/01/06 WERLET .o e eeevesteve et stccv s essne s emsseeeas 4.250 - 5.000 3,712,500 3,712,500 2027
08/01/06 SEWET ..o eee et veeee e 4.250 - 5.000 3,550,000 3,550,000 2027

TOAI TRIS ISSUC. ..o eess s 31,620,000 31,620,000

Grand TOtal............cccooevvveeeeeeeecetccraeeeer e seesassrreeasereavee e $249,652,034 $127,133,369

! Debt service is included in and paid from the operating budget of the Water Enterprise Fund.

2 Debt service and capital costs incurred in the expansion, renovation, and repair of the central sewer filtering plant, major trunk lines and pumping
stations are included in the sewer system operating budget. Rates are established by standards contained in an ordinance enacted by the Common
Council and in conformity with Chapter 103 of the General Statutes, as amended.

3 All costs associated with the extension of new sewer services and for the construction of collector lines or laterals are borne by the property
owners benefiting by such extension project. Assessments of benefits for those whose property benefits by such extension project are established
by standards contained in an ordinance enacted by the Common Council and in conformity with Chapter 103 of the General Statutes, as amended.
Debt service is paid from the Sewer Assessment Fund.
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Short Term Debt
As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Amount The Notes
Project Authorized To Mature 08/03/07

General Public Improvement 04-05 ..... $ 500,000 $ 500,000
General Public Improvement 05-06..... 500,000 500,000
General Public Improvement 06-07 ..... 500,000 250,000
Water Service Extension IT '................ 3,000,000 1,000,000
Sewer Service Extension I1%................ 6,000,000 2,200,000
21* Century Danbury Public Imp. ....... 55,515,000 10,950,000
21% Century Danbury Water. ............... 5,680,000 500,000
21* Century Danbury Sewer ................ 5,000,000 1,000,000
Head Start......ccooeeveveereneinereriesssenseseeseens 5,600,000 1,000,000
Danbury Neighborhood Bond.............. 10,930,000 1,000,000
Danbury Neighborhood Sewer ............ 998,000 500,000
Danbury Neighborhood Water............. 998,000 250,000
Public Safety Bond ........cccevnvrevenenaene 49,200,000 5,000,000
Parking Garage.........ccoeeveeerivirnnrinnins 6,640,000 3,000,000
Sewer Improvements.........c..ccooernveennens 5,800,000 250,000

TOtal ..o $155,361,000 $27,900,000

! Debt service is included in and paid from the operating budget of the Walter Enterprise Fund,

2 All costs associated with the extension of new sewer services and for the construction of collector lines or laterals are
borne by the property owners benefiting by such extension project. Assessments of benefits for those whose property
benefits by such extension project are established by standards contained in an ordinance enacted by the Common
Council and in conformity with Chapter 103 of the General Statutes, as amended. Debt service is paid from the Sewer

Assessment Fund.

Other Obligations

The City of Danbury leases certain capital equipment.

Statements, Note 9 for more information.

Please refer to the General Purpose Financial

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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General Fund Annual Bonded Debt Maturity Schedule
As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Fiscal This Issue Cumulative %
Year Principal Interest Total Pub. Imp. Schools Total Prin. Retired
2007' $ 3,007,350 $ 1,477,490 § 4,484,840 § -~ 8§ - 8 - 3.64%

2008 5,347,350 2,314,036 7,661,386 1,002,500 250,000 1,252,500 11.62
2009 5,276,350 2,085,572 7,361,922 1,000,000 250,000 1,250,000 19.52
2010 5,261,350 1,857,783 7,119,133 1,000,000 250,000 1,250,000 27.40
2011 5,101,350 1,634,095 6,735,445 1,000,000 250,000 1,250,000 35.08
2012 4,894,350 1,417,710 6,312,060 1,000,000 250,000 1,250,000 42.51
2013 4,770,000 1,187,291 5,957,291 1,000,000 250,000 1,250,000 49.80

2014 3,949,000 992,133 4,941,133 995,000 250,000 1,245,000 56.08
2015 2,779,000 821,327 3,600,327 995,000 250,000 1,245,000 60.95
2016 2,691,000 696,664 3,387,664 995,000 250,000 1,245,000 65.71
2017 2,483,000 581,549 3,064,549 993,000 252,000 1,245,000 70.22
2018 2,477,000 478,626 2,955,626 945,000 245,000 1,190,000 74.66
2019 2,280,000 385,497 2,665,497 945,000 245,000 1,190,000 78.85
2020 1,769,000 304,286 2,073,286 945,000 245,000 1,190,000 82.43
2021 1,593,000 234,602 1,827,602 945,000 245,000 1,190,000 85.80
2022 1,583,000 167,057 1,750,057 945,000 245,000 1,190,000 89.15
2023 1,070,000 109,531 1,179,531 940,000 245,000 1,185,000 91.88
2024 1,070,000 62,294 1,132,294 940,000 245,000 1,185,000 94.61
2025 535,000 27,094 562,094 940,000 245,000 1,185,000 96.69
2026 365,000 7,756 372,756 940,000 245,000 1,185,000 98.57
2027 -- - -- 940,000 245,000 1,185,000 100.00%

Total $58,302,100 $16,842,393  $75,144,493 $19,405,500 $4,952,000 $24,357,500
! Excludes $2,665,000 in principal payments and 81,086,230 in interest payments from July 1, 2006 through August 4, 2006.

Self-Supporting Debt Annual Bonded Maturity Schedule
As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Fiscal This Issue: Cumulative %
Year Principal Interest Total Water Sewer Total Prin. Retired
20071  $2,958,320 § 754,942 $3,713,262  $ - 3 - $ - 6.65%
2008 4,307,032 1,115,765 5,422,797 187,500 180,000 367,500 17.16
2009 4,343,032 986,520 5,329,552 190,000 180,000 370,000 27.76
2010 4,228,189 855,600 5,083,789 190,000 180,000 370,000 38.10
2011 4,228,189 727,074 4,955,263 185,000 180,000 365,000 48.43
2012 4,225,189 598,506 4,823,695 185,000 180,000 365,000 58.75
2013 4,219,539 468,823 4,688,362 185,000 180,000 365,000 69.06
2014 1,944,939 356,270 2,301,209 185,000 180,000 365,000 74.25
2015 1,402,840 271,143 1,673,983 185,000 180,000 365,000 78.23
2016 1,214,000 200,877 1,414,877 185,000 180,000 365,000 81.78
2017 1,217,000 142,442 1,359,442 185,000 180,000 365,000 85.33
2018 1,208,000 91,393 1,299,393 185,000 175,000 360,000 88.86
2019 880,000 52,059 932,059 185,000 175,000 360,000 91.65
2020 266,000 29,895 295,895 185,000 175,000 360,000 93.05
2021 137,000 21,745 158,745 185,000 175,000 360,000 94.17
2022 137,000 15,967 152,967 185,000 175,000 360,000 95.29
2023 90,000 11,031 101,031 185,000 175,000 360,000 96.30
2024 90,000 7,044 97,044 185,000 175,000 360,000 97.31
2025 90,000 3,056 93,056 185,000 175,000 360,000 98.32
2026 25,000 531 25,531 185,000 175,000 360,000 99.19
2027 - - - 185,000 175,000 360,000 100.00%

Total  $37,211,269 $6,710,683 $43,921,952  $3,712,500 $3,550,000 $7,262,500

! Excludes $1,348,712 in principal payments and $488,096 in interest payments from July 1, 2006 through August 4, 2006.
Note: Long-Term capital leases and State of Connecticut Local Bridge Loans are not included.
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Total General Obligation Debt
Annual Bonded Debt Maturity Schedule

As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Fiscal Total Cumulative %
Year Principal Interest Total This Issue Prin. Retired
2007' $ 5,965,670 $ 2,232,432 $ 8,198,102 $ - 4.69%
2008 9,654,382 3,429,801 13,084,183 1,620,000 13.56
2009 9,619,382 3,072,092 12,691,474 1,620,000 22.40
2010 9,489,539 2,713,383 12,202,922 1,620,000 31.14
2011 9,329,539 2,361,169 11,690,708 1,615,000 39.75
2012 9,119,539 2,016,216 11,135,755 1,615,000 48.19
2013 8,989,539 1,656,114 10,645,653 1,615,000 56.53
2014 5,893,939 1,348,403 7,242,342 1,610,000 62.44
2015 4,181,840 1,092,469 5,274,309 1,610,000 66.99
2016 3,905,000 897,541 4,802,541 1,610,000 71.33
2017 3,700,000 723,991 4,423,991 1,610,000 75.51
2018 3,685,000 570,019 4,255,019 1,550,000 79.62
2019 3,160,000 437,556 3,597,556 1,550,000 83.33
2020 2,035,000 334,181 2,369,181 1,550,000 86.15
2021 1,730,000 256,348 1,986,348 1,550,000 88.73
2022 1,720,000 183,024 1,903,024 1,550,000 91.30
2023 1,160,000 120,563 1,280,563 1,545,000 93.43
2024 1,160,000 69,338 1,229,338 1,545,000 95.56
2025 625,000 30,150 655,150 1,545,000 97.26
2026 390,000 8,288 398,288 1,545,000 98.78
2027 -- - - 1,545,000 100.00%

Total $95,513,369 $23,553,078 $119,066,447 $31,620,000

! Excludes $4,013,712 in principal payments and $1,574,326 interest payments from July 1, 2006 through August 4, 2006.
Note: Long-Term capital leases and State of Connecticut Local Bridge Loans are not included.

Overlapping/Underlying Debt

The City of Danbury has neither overlapping nor underlying debt.

THE CITY OF DANBURY HAS NEVER DEFAULTED IN THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL OR
INTEREST ON ITS BONDS OR NOTES.

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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Debt Statement
As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Long-Term Debt:
Public Improvement ($35,979,100 Outstanding Plus $19,405,500 of This ISSU€) .....cecervrrrvrereeinnns $55,384,600
Schools (822,323,000 Outstanding Plus $4,952,000 of This ISSUE) ....cccceevevevrecriiirreecrecseeene, 27,275,000
Sewers ($22,455,369 Outstanding Plus $3,550,000 of This ISSUE) ...c...covevrrererrerecenreiinenninireeenne 26,005,369
Water ($14,755,900 Outstanding Plus $3,712,500 of This ISSUE) .....ccevvereeeeecirieininerereceeeresreinnns 18,468,400
Total Long-Term Debt ' ...t e 127,133,369
Short-Term Debt:
Bond Anticipation Notes (This ISSUE) ....c.cueerevreiirenrreicireeceeerenienstsrsssessscesenessesessesarssassesenes 27,900,000
TOLAI DIrECEDEDHL ...ttt b n s ettt st s rotaentoes 155,033,369
Less: Amount to be provided by the State for school construction (As of 6/30/06)..  (12,000,000)
Self-Supporting Sewer Debt *(Includes $3,950,000 of This Note Issue) ......... (29,955,369)
Self-Supporting Water Debt (Includes $1,750,000 of This Note Issue) ........... (20,218,400) (62,173,769)
Total Net Dir@Ct DEDE .........ocociievusieriesrivinssssssssscssisiessssssssnssssssssssssesemsersnsssassmsssssssasssssessnssassonsissans 92,859,100
Plus: Overlapping/Underlying Deb..........oviiieniiiniiiniiiicceeerereicreeseeseseeaseeseseessessseenes --
TOTAL OVERALL NET DEBT .......ooootiiieeeieirececirteescenesstesseessaeessssaesesssssaresassasssnessssassssssssnsnsesans $92,859,100

! Long-term debt does not include an estimated $525,998 accrued employee benefits, 813,789,243 of landfill closure and post-closure costs, and
$3,541,078 in capital leases.
2 Beginning with fiscal year 1976-77, the Sewer fund was set up as a self-supporting enterprise fund.

Current Debt Ratios
As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Poptlation ' ......ccoecviiiri e, 78,221

Net Taxable Grand List (10/1/05) ..oocoveerennnnrnevrcniecrnreen, $6,103,223,470

Estimated Full Value ........ccccooiveiircereeerreceecivesee e, $8,718,890,671

Equalized Net Taxable Grand List (10/1/03) ' ....c.cvveeerreerennnen, $9,469,435,689

Income per Capita (1990) %.....coovereeerrienrrererenesenrensreeesessenssnn: $19,300

Income per Capita (2000) 2 ......cccivirrerererererenenensrrsssesesssnsnns $24,500

Total Direct Total Net Total Overall

Debt Direct Debt Net Debt
Per Capita .o.ccvvorinieeeieeereeeicnt et see e senae $1,981.99 $1,187.14 $1,187.14
Ratio to Net Taxable Grand List ........ccoeevrceerrvcncnienenernnens 2.54% 1.52% 1.52%
Ratio to Estimated Full Value ......cccoovevevicnvvrnicerenen. 1.78% 1.07% 1.07%
Ratio to Equalized Net Taxable Grand List .......c.coccenurnces 1.64% 0.98% 0.98%
Debt per Capita to Income per Capita (1990)........ccovununne 10.27% 6.15% 6.15%
Debt per Capita to Income per Capita (2000)...........coooc... 8.09% 4.85% 4.85%

! Office of Policy and Management, State of Connecticut, July 1, 2004.
2 Department of Commerce, U.S. Bureau of Census, 1990 and 2000.
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Bond Authorization Procedure

The issuance of bonds is authorized pursuant to an ordinance passed by the Common Council by affirmative
vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of all members of the Council. No bonds may be issued for a term longer than the
estimated life of the improvement for which they are issued and in no event, for a term longer than twenty years.
Whenever the Common Council votes to issue bonds in a principal amount in excess of $500,000, the ordinance
authorizing such issue must be submitted for approval or disapproval of the electors at the next municipal election or
at a special City meeting called by the Mayor.

Temporary Financing

When general obligation bonds have been authorized, bond anticipation notes may be issued maturing in not
more than two years (CGS Sec. 7-378). Temporary notes may be renewed up to eight years from their original date
of issue as long as all project grant payments are applied toward payment of temporary notes when they become due
and payable and the legislative body schedules principal reductions starting at the end of the third and continuing in
each subsequent year during which such temporary notes remain outstanding in an amount equal to a minimum of
1/20™ (1/30™ for sewer projects) of the estimated net project cost (CGS Sec. 7-378a). The term of the bond issue is
reduced by the amount of time temporary financing exceeds two years, or, for sewer projects, by the amount of time
temporary financing has been outstanding.

Temporary notes must be permanently funded no later than eight years from the initial borrowing date
except for sewer notes issued in anticipation of State and/or Federal grants. If a written commitment exists, the
municipality may renew the notes from time to time in terms not to exceed six months until such time that the final
grant payments are received (CGS Sec. 7-378b).

Temporary notes may also be issued for up to fifteen years for certain capital projects associated with the
operation of a waterworks system (CGS Sec. 7-244a) or a sewage system (CGS Sec. 7-264a). In the first year
following the completion of the project(s), or in the sixth year (whichever is sooner), and in each year thereafter, the
notes must be reduced by at least 1/15™ of the total amount of the notes issued by funds derived from certain sources
of payment. Temporary notes may be issued in one year maturities for up to fifteen years in anticipation of sewer
assessments receivable, such notes to be reduced annually by the amount of assessments received during the
preceding year (CGS Sec. 7-269a).

Clean Water Fund Program

The City of Danbury is a participant in the State of Connecticut’s Clean Water Fund Program (General
Statutes Sections 22a-475 et seq., as amended), which provides financial assistance through a combination of grants
and loans bearing interest at a rate of 2% per annum. All participating municipalities receive a grant of 20% and a
loan of 80% of total eligible costs (with the exception of combined sewer overflow correction projects which are
financed with a 50% grant and a 50% loan). The City authorized $76,450,000 to undertake major renovations to the
wastewater treatment plant. The City financed the renovations and other eligible projects through the State of
Connecticut Clean Water Fund Program.

Loans to each municipality are made pursuant to a Project Grant and Project Loan Agreement. Each
municipality is obligated to repay only that amount which it draws down for the payment of project costs (Interim
Funding Obligation). Each municipality must deliver to the State an obligation secured by the full faith and credit of
the municipality, and/or a dedicated source of revenue of such municipality. The City of Danbury has issued
$52,770,712 in debt under the Clean Water Fund Program, and has received $7,888,296 from the State in the form of
a grant. The remaining amounts have been authorized and issued by the participating municipalities.

Amortization of each Loan is required to begin one year from the earlier of the project completion date
specified in the Loan Agreement, or the actual project completion date. The final maturity of each loan is twenty
years from the scheduled completion date. Principal and interest payments are payable 1) in equal monthly
installments commencing one month after the scheduled completion date, or 2) in a single annual installment
representing 1/20 of total principal not later than one year from the project completion date specified in the Loan
Agreement, the first year’s date, and thereafter in monthly installments. Loans made under loan agreements entered
into prior to July 1, 1989 are repayable in annual installments. Borrowers may elect to make level debt service
payments or level principal payments. Borrowers may prepay their loans at any time prior to maturity without

penalty.
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Statement of Debt Limitation
As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Total Tax Collections (including interest and lien fees):

For the year ended June 30, 2006 (Subject t0 AU} ..c.eovveereereeirreenrnieeeieerreeseeeserisiereraeeas $128,971,887
Reimbursement For Revenue Loss On:
Tax Relief fOr BIAEITY .....c.c.voieivieeiieinecirenie ettt ettt st ssste et n s e s eseasaanan 336,424
BASE .....oeoeeeeeereeteereeer e restserte b e eb s a et a s er s et erb e esten e et et et e s b e e a b et e saesaseRten e R e arbeeaseasentesesarentn $129,308,311
General Urban Unfunded
Purpose Schools Sewers Renewal Pension
Debt Limitation:
2 Yatimes base ...coecvvrrreeeeinnrrenennns $290,943,700 $ - 8 - 8 - s -
4 /2 times BASE ...ovvererereerrrenecenenens - 581,887,400 - - —
3 3/4 times base ......ccoevererrrernureernnns - - 484,906,166 - -
3 s times base.....ccoveveveereerenenenennans - - - 420,252,011 -
3 1iMeS DASE ...coeereerrrrrrrireesrnenne - — — - 387,924,933
Total Debt Limitation ...................... $290,943,700 $581,887,400 $484,906,166 $420,252,011 $387,924,933
Indebtedness:
Outstanding Debt:
Bonds Payable "2......cccocovevviciienennen $ 35,979,100 $22,323,000 $18,561,838 $ - $ -
Bonds — This ISSUE .....cccovevrevrrcrerceencns 19,405,500 4,952,000 -- - -
Bonds Authorized But Unissued *... 82 612,500 5,743,000 - - -
Short-Term Notes — This Issue *........ 21,200,000 1,000,000 - -- -
Total Indebtedness *...ereeeecevecrenenen. 159,197,100 34,018,000 18,561,838 — -
Less School Construction Grants “ ...... -~ (12,000,000) -- -- -
Total Net Indebtedness For Debt
Limitation Calculation..................... 159,197,100 _ 22,018,000 18,561,838 - -
DEBT LIMITATION IN EXCESS
OF INDEBTEDNESS ..o, $131,746,600 $559,869,400 $466,344,328 $420,252,011 $387,924,933

! Water debt is excludable from the calculation of debt limitation as allowed by Connecticut General Statutes. Excluded from above is
814,755,900 of outstanding water bonds $3,712,500 of water bonds included in this issue, 31,750,000 of outstanding water notes and $4,247,500
of water debt authorized but unissued debt.

2 Sewer assessment debt is excludable from the calculation of debt limitation as allowed by Connecticut General Statutes. Excluded from above is
$3,893,531 of outstanding sewer assessment bonds, 33,550,000 of sewer bonds included in this issue, $3,950,000 of ouistanding sewer
assessment notes, and $15,307,090 of authorized and unissued sewer assessment debt.

3 Excludes $3,541,078 in capital leases.

* See “School Projects” herein.

Note:  With certain exclusions as set forth in Chapter 109 of the General Statutes, bonds and notes causing the aggregate indebtedness of the
City to exceed seven times annual receipts from taxation may not be issued for any purpose. This limitation is $905,158,177.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)

33



Debt Authorized but Unissued''
As of August 4, 2006
(Pro Forma)

Debt Debt Authorized but Unissued
Previously General
Project Authorized  Issued The Bonds The Notes Purpose Schools Sewers Water

Gen. Public Imp. 04-05 ...... $ 500,000 $ - $ -~ § 500,000 $ - $ - $ - 8 -
Gen. Public Imp. 05-06....... 500,000 - - 500,000 -- - - -
Gen. Public Imp. 06-07 500,000 -- - 250,000 250,000 - - -
Water Service Ext. I........... 2,500,000 1,968,000 467,500 - - - - 64,500
Sewer Service Ext. L........... 2,500,000 2,490,910 - - - - 9,090 -
Water Service Ext. IL.......... 3,000,000 - 245,000 1,000,000 - -- - 1,755,000
Sewer Service Ext. IL.......... 6,000,000 -- 3,550,000 2,200,000 - - 250,000 -
Sewer Service Ext. I1I ........ 5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000 -
Vision 21 Program ............. 21,000,000 16,105,000 - -~ 4,895,000 -- - --
Vision 21/2 Schools ........... 5,360,000 4,065,000 152,000 - - 1,143,000 - -
Vision 21/2 Pub. Imp. ........ 16,640,000 8,252,000 8,205,500 - 182,500 - -
21st Century Pub. Imp........ 55,515,000 9,050,000 10,000,000 10,950,000 25,515,000 - -- -
21st Century Water ............ 5,680,000 500,000 3,000,000 500,000 - -- - 1,680,000
21st Century Sewer ............ 5,000,000 -~ - 1,000,000 - - 4,000,000 -
Head Start......cocooovveereeccne 5,600,000 - - 1,000,000 - 4,600,000 - -
Danbury Neigh. Bond ........ 10,930,000 - 4,000,000 1,000,000 5,930,000 - - -
Danbury Neigh. Sewer....... 998,000 - - 500,000 - - 498,000 -
Danbury Neigh. Water. ...... 998,000 - - 250,000 - -- - 748,000
Public Safety Bond............. 49,200,000 - - 5,000,000 44,200,000 - - -
Parking Garage........ccceeerns 6,640,000 - 2,000,000 3,000,000 1,640,000 -- - -
Safety Sewer Improve ........ 5,800,000 - - 250,000 - -- 5,550,000 -

Total oo, $209,861,000 42,430,910  $31,620,000 $27,900,000 $82,612,500 $5,743,000 $15,307,090 $4,247,500

! Total Authorized but Unissued does not include amounts paid down from the General Fund on outstanding notes.

Ratios of Long-Term Debt to Valuation, Population and Income

Fiscal
Year Net Net
Ended Assessed Estimated Long-Term
6/30 Value Full Value Debt!

Ratio of Net
Ratio of Net Long-Term
Long-Term Debtto
Debtto  Estimated
Assessed Full

Ratio of Net
Long-Term
Net Debt per
Long-Term Capita to
Debt per Per Capita

Value (%) Value (%) Population® Capita Income’ (%)

2006 * $5,635,804,295 $8,051,148,993 $60,967,100
2005 5,200,547,340 7,429,353,343 56,009,450
2004 4,892,216,450 6,988,880,643 58,126,800
2003 4,562,023,370 6,517,176,242 50,009,500
2002 4,468,312,290 6,383,303,271 55,007,000

! Excludes self-supporting water, sewer and capital lease debt

1.08% 0.76% 78,221

1.08 0.75 78,221
1.19 0.83 78,221
1.10 0.77 77,353
1.23 0.86 74,848

$£799.42 3.18%
716.04 2.92
743.11 3.03
646.51 2.64
734.92 3.00

%2000, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census for 2002. State of Connecticut Department of Public Health for 2003 through 2006.
3 U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000 data used for per capita income ($24,500).

* Subject to Audit.

Ratio of Annual Debt Service to Total General Fund Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses
(Includes Transfers Out)

Ratio of General Fund
Debt Service To Total

Fiscal Year Total General Fund General Fund
Ended 6/30 Principal Interest Total Expenditures Expenditures %
2006 $5,505,611 $2,631,272 $8,136,883 $169,318,811 4.81
2005 6,322,511 2,877,558 9,200,069 167,520,174 5.49
2004 5,074,461 2,219,285 7,293,746 161,319,408 4.52
2003 5,124,462 2,668,995 7,793,457 153,935,241 5.06
2002 4,472,112 2,445,012 6,917,124 147,091,125 4.70

Source: City of Danbury Audit Reports 2002-2005.

City of Danbury, Finance Department, 2006 Data. Subject to Audit.
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Capital Improvement Program
Fiscal Year 2007 through Fiscal Year 2011

Fiscal Year

Proposed Projects 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 Total
AIPOTL e $840,000 $240,000 $270,000 $ - 8 -- $1,350,000
Data Processing ............... 110,000 60,000 110,000 60,000 110,000 450,000
Engineering......c..cocccerevene. 9,786,000 7,493,000 2,160,000 14,310,000 16,550,000 50,299,000
Equipment Maintenance .. 449,000 147,000 166,000 168,000 175,000 1,105,000
Finance 450,000 - -- -- -- 450,000
FIre..oiveeeeeerisereevrvenesenieens 1,750,000 350,000 2,500,000 - 400,000 5,000,000
FOrestry .....covermvecrcneinnonns - 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 320,000
Highway.....coooevcerennnnen 1,681,450 3,252,634 3,330,000 3,165,268 3,100,000 14,529,352
Parks & Recreation.......... 675,000 650,000 150,000 - 1,500,000 2,975,000
Parks Maintenance........... 60,000 425,000 1,280,000 - - 1,765,000
Police 2,000,000 2,716,000 3,472,000 72,000 -- 8,260,000
Public Buildings .............. 34,461,406 2,933,030 4,578,983 194,650 5,367,750 47,535,819
Recycling/Solid Waste..... 25,000 50,000 - 50,000 - 125,000
Tarrywile Park ......c.ccce..... 400,000 165,000 200,000 200,000 1,000,000 1,965,000
SEWET woveviviereererereseesanes 12,602,000 3,165,000 4,273,000 4,050,000 6,697,000 30,787,000
WALET .ooeevivenenvireesreeens 5,142,000 3,635,000 5,360,720 3,180,000 3,383,000 20,700,720

0] . S —— $70,431,856  $25,361,664 $27,930,703 $25,529,918 $38,362,750 187,616,891
Proposed Funding Fiscal Year
Sources 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 Total
Use Charges '.....ccovevvnee. $10,966,700 $10,277,634  $ 8,844,720 $ 5,553,268 $9,395,000  $45,037,322
Notes/Bonds /Leases........ 57,550,000 11,399,150 15,492,233 6,582,000 13,267,750 104,291,133
St./Fed. Grants/Other ....... 1,915,156 3,684,880 3,593,750 13,394,650 15,700,000 38,288,436
TOTAL $70,431,856  $25,361,664 $27,930,703 $25,529,918 $38,362,750 $187,616,891

! Includes self-supporting sewer and water debt that will be paid by user fees. Does not assume any pay-as-you-go capital.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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VI. Financial Information

Fiscal Year
The City's fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30.

Basis of Accounting

The City's accounting policies are summarized in Note 1 "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" in the
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements.

Budget Procedure
The City of Danbury uses the following budgetary sequence and time schedule:
By
All departments submit estimates to Mayor..........cccveeenenes February 15
Mayor presents budget to the Common Council.................. April 7
Common Council holds public hearings........cccovverrerrenene. May 1
Common Council adopts budget..........ccccceimennnnccnsenene. May 15

Investment Policy

The operating and working capital funds (excluding pension funds) of the City are invested at the direction of
the City Treasurer in the following short-term investments: (1) various certificates of deposit with Connecticut banks;
(2) money market accounts; (3) overnight repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. government agency
obligations such as Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation which are valued daily; (4) overnight U.S. Treasury
obligations; (5) an investment pool investing in (i) high-grade, short-term, federal securities and variable rate
obligations backed by federal agencies having monthly or quarterly assets based on indices like the prime rate,
LIBOR, or a combination of the two, and (ii) very short-term (usually overnight) repurchase agreements secured by
high quality collateral which is valued daily and fully delivered to the Program's custodial bank to be held for the
benefit of the Pool's participants.

In addition, the City monitors the risk based capital ratios and collateral requirements of the qualified public
depositories, as defined by the Connecticut General Statutes, Section 36-382, 7-400 and 7-402 with which it places
deposits or makes investments.

The Connecticut General Statues, Section 7-400 and 7-402 govern eligible investments for Connecticut
municipalities. Please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements, Note 4 regarding the City's cash and cash
equivalent investments at June 30, 2005.

For an extensive description of the City's investment policy and investments related to the City's Pension
Funds, see Note 12 to the City's audited financial statements in Appendix A.

Audit

The City, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 111 of the Connecticut General Statutes (Sec. 7-391 through
397) is required to undergo an annual audit by an independent public accountant. The auditor, appointed by the
Common Council is required to conduct the audit under the standards adopted by the Secretary of the Office of
Policy and Management by regulation and approved by the Auditor of Public Accounts. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005, the financial statements of the City were audited by McGladrey & Pullen, LLP.

For eighteen consecutive years, the City has been a recipient of a certificate of achievement for excellence in
financial reporting. This award is issued by the Government Finance Officers Association.

Liability Insurance

The City maintains liability insurance coverage as listed below:

Comprehensive General Liability insurance on an occurrence basis with a limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence
and aggregate limit of $3,000,000 with a deductible of $100,000 per occurrence.

Law Enforcement Liability with a limit of $1,000,000 each wrongful act and an aggregate limit of $1,000,000
with a deductible of $100,000 each wrongful act.
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Automobile Liability insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 per each occurrence with a deductible of $100,000
per occurrence.

Public Official Liability insurance on a claims made basis, $1,000,000 limit each wrongful act and aggregate
limit of $1,000,000 with a deductible of $100,000 each wrongful act.

School Board Errors and Omissions Liability on claims made basis, $2,000,000 each wrongful act and
aggregate limit of $2,000,000 with a deductible of $10,000 for each wrongful act.

Student Nurses Medical Professional Liability Insurance on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 for
each occurrence and aggregate limit of $4,000,000.

Excess liability insurance over the Comprehensive General Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, Automobile
Liability, Public Officials Liability with a limit of $10,000,000 per occurrence and an aggregate limit of $10,000,000.

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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General Fund Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Four Year Summary of Audited Revenues and Expenditures (GAAP Basis)
with Estimated Actuals and Current Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Revenues
Property Taxes ..........ccoeennae
Intergovernmental Revenues .
Investment Income ................
Other ..ot
Total Revenues .........erveeeearcersuneen

Other Financing Sources
Refunding Bond Proceeds.....
Premium on Bonds Issued.....
Capital Lease Acquisition..
Operating Transfers In ..o,

Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources............................

Expenditures

General Government.........c..cecvvnrenec
Public Safety .........

Public Works .....
Health and Welfare......
Culture and Recreation ..
EQUucation ........cocoevveneeeoiniinnnnecenrennenns
Pension and Other Employee Benefits....
Other ..o e
Capital Outlay .
Debt SErviCe....cooiviiieririienereee e

Total Expenditures......................

Other Financing Uses
Payment to Refunding Agent ................
Operating Transfers Out ...........cceeennee
Total Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses............
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses.............cccccoovvvnnnns
Decrease (Increase) in Reserve
for Encumbrances and Other
ReServations ........oeevevvverrvecveimeerericenes

Net Change In Unreserved
Fund Balance.................ccccocevnnnn.
Residual Equity Transfer In
Beginning Fund Balance -
Unreserved................ccccooovveinnnnn.

Ending Fund Balance -
Unreserved..........cc..ccoooovnvinnnnnne.

Reserved for Encumbrances .....................
Reserved for Continued Appropriations ...
Unreserved

Designated for Future Budgets ..............
Undesignated ........ccoconinnenniiricnnnnnns

Total Fund Balance.........................

! Budget basis. No assurances can be given that subsequent projections and the final result of operations will not change.

Budget ' Est. Actual ! Actual Actual Actual Actual
6/30/07 6/30/06 6/30/05 6/30/04 6/30/03 6/30/02
$133,854,812 $129,741,770 128,472,290 $119,645,762  $114,944,665 $109,011,992

27,238,123 27,397,425 31,266,830 30,057,588 28,907,708 29,838,060
2,050,000 2,950,147 1,335,962 437,401 249,626 428,060
14,949,047 12,994,585 12,372,875 8,533,008 8,345,151 10,781,372
$178,091,982  $173,083,927 173,447,957 158,673,759 152,447,150 150,059,484
- - - 14,048,000 1,190,000 -
- - - 1,188,599 50,527 -
- - 1,156,397 1,913,468 2,023,824 1,123,620
- - - 500,000 - -
$178,001,982  $173,083,927 $174,604,354 $176,323,826  $155,711,501 $151,183,104
$ 8,646,226 $ 8,379,645 $ 7,446,262 $ 8,011,648  §8257,783  § 8,515,909
23,779,068 23,739,979 21,196,989 21,086,583 21,119,089 19,992,935
8,048,753 8,191,607 7,600,601 5,907,028 6,200,904 5,778,129
2,769,189 2,746,885 3,958,011 4,299,602 1,449,139 1,418,757
2,900,343 2,867,543 2,705,599 3,955,294 3,933,541 3,776,041
100,161,196 95,163,536 93,430,267 89,066,006 83,256,220 81,035,751
20,777,083 18,538,266 19,073,801 17,506,130 15,529,121 14,184,620
1,544,864 914,070 896,108 1,560,649 2,248,533 2,146,876
- 103,000 1,329,999 1,963,023 3,181,618 2,433,692
9,465,260 8,674,279 9,200,069 7,293,746 7,793,457 6,917,124
$178,091,982 169,318,810 166,837,706 160,649,709 152,969,405 146,199,834
- - - 14,955,050 1,177,816 -
- - 682,468 669,699 965,836 891,261
$178,091,982 169,318,810 167,520,174 176274458 155,113,057 147,091,125
N/A 3,765,117 7,084,180 49,368 598,444 4,091,979
N/A N/A 617,186 496,372 (788,341) 1,249,707
6,466,994 545,740 (189,897) 5,341,686
N/A N/A - - - -
N/A 18,228,923 11,761,929 11,216,189 11,406,086 6,064,400
N/A N/A $18,228,923 $11,761,929  $11,216,189 $ 11,406,086
Analysis of General Fund Equity
Budget' Est. Actual’ Actual Actual Actual Actual
6/30/07 6/30/06 6/30/05 6/30/04 6/30/03 6/30/02
N/A N/A $1,481,018 $ 1,080,103 $1,576475 $ 637,611
N/A N/A 216,271 - - 150,523
N/A N/A - - - -
N/A N/A 18,228,923 11,761,929 11,216,189 11,406,086
N/A N/A $19,926,212 $12,842,032  $12.792,664  $12.194,220
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VIl. Legal and Other Information

Litigation

The Corporation Counsel has advised that there are several personal injury, negligence, personnel and other
related lawsuits pending against the City. The outcome and eventual liability of the City, if any, in these cases is not
known at this time. Based upon consultation with legal counsel, the City’s management estimates that potential
claims against the City not covered by insurance, resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the
financial position of the City except for the following cases:

Metcalf and Eddy, Inc. v. City of Danbury - Subsequent to unsuccessful mediation, litigation was
commenced by the Plaintiff against Danbury in 2005 based on a claim of breach of contract for project services in
the closure process for the Danbury Landfill. The claim filed was in excess of $7,393,000. It is not expected that this
matter will go to trial or reach verdict until 2008.

Tax Appeals: There are presently three pending tax appeals that may go to trial in 2006. New Meditrust
LLC. v. City of Danbury has potential maximum tax liability exposure of between $100,000 and $125,000. However,
due to the spurious nature of this appeal by the property owner, it is not expected to result in a reduction near this
size. Two other tax appeals exist, with a maximum total tax liability exposure of less than $100,000. Both are
expected to be resolved at a level significantly lower than that.

Tax Exemption

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), imposes certain requirements which must be
met at and subsequent to delivery of the Bonds and the Notes in order that interest on the Bonds and the Notes be and
remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Non-compliance with such requirements could
cause interest on the Bonds and the Notes to be included in gross income retroactive to the date of issuance of the
Bonds and the Notes. The Tax Regulatory Agreement, which will be executed and delivered by the City
concurrently with the Bonds and the Notes, contains representations, covenants and procedures relating to the use,
expenditure and investment of proceeds of the Bonds and the Notes in order to comply with such requirements of the
Code. Pursuant to the Tax Regulatory Agreement, the City also covenants and agrees that is shall perform all things
necessary or appropriate under any valid provision of law to ensure interest on the Bonds and the Notes shall be
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based on existing statutes and court decisions, and assuming continuing
compliance by the City with its covenants and the procedures contained in the Tax Regulatory Agreement, interest on
the Bonds and the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not treated as an item
of tax preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax. Interest on the Bonds and the
Notes is, however, includable in adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax on
certain corporations.

Ownership of the Bonds and the Notes may also result in certain collateral federal income tax consequences
to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, financial institutions, property and casualty insurance companies,
certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States, certain S corporations with excess passive income,
individual recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits, taxpayers utilizing the earned income credit
and taxpayers who have or are deemed to have incurred indebtedness to purchase or carry tax exempt obligations,
such as the Bonds and the Notes. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds and the Notes, particularly those who may be
subject to special rules, are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal tax consequences of
ownership and disposition of the Bonds and the Notes.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based on existing statutes, interest on the Bonds and the Notes is excluded
from Connecticut taxable income for purposes of the Connecticut income tax on individuals, trusts and estates, and is
excluded from amounts on which the net Connecticut minimum tax based in the case of individuals, trusts and the
estates required to pay the federal alternative minimum tax. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds and the Notes are
advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the State and local tax consequences of ownership and
disposition of the Bonds and the Notes.

Original Issue Discount

The initial public offering price of certain maturities of the Bonds maybe less than the principal amount
payable on such Bonds at maturity. The excess of the principal amount payable at maturity over the initial public
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offering price at which a substantial amount of these Bonds are sold constitutes original issue discount. The prices
set forth on the cover page of the Official Statement may or may not reflect the prices at which a substantial amount
of the Bonds were ultimately sold to the public.

Under section 1288 of the Code, the amount of original issue discount treated as having accrued with
respect to any bond during each day it is owned by a taxpayer is added to the owner’s adjusted basis for purposes of
determining gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition of such Bonds by such owner. Accrued original issue
discount on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Original issue discount on
any bond is treated as accruing on the basis of economic accrual for such purposes, computed by a constant
semiannual compounding method using the yield to maturity on such bond. The original issue discount attributable
to any bond for any particular semiannual period is equal to the excess of the product of (i) one-half of the yield to
maturity of such bond, and (ii) the amount which would be adjusted basis of the bond at the beginning of such
semiannual period if held by the original owner and purchased by such owner at the initial public offering price, over
the interest paid during such period. The amount so treated as accruing during each semiannual period is
apportioned in equal amounts among the days in that period to determine the amount of original issue discount
accruing for such purposes during each such day. Prospective investors in the Bonds should consult their tax
advisors with respect to the federal income tax consequences the disposition of Bonds.

Original Issue Premium

The initial public offering price of certain maturities of the Bonds maybe greater than the principal amount
payable on such Bonds at maturity. The excess of the initial public offering price at which a substantial amount of
these Bonds are sold over the principal amount payable at maturity or on earlier call date constitutes original issue
premium. The price set forth on the cover page of the Official Statement may not reflect the prices at which a
substantial amount of the Bonds were ultimately sold to the public.

Under Sections 1016 and 171 of the Code, the amount of original issue premium treated as amortizing with
respect to any bond during each day it is owned by a taxpayer is subtracted from the owner’s adjusted basis for
purposes of determining gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition of such Bonds by such owner. Amortized
original issue premium on the bonds is not treated as a deduction from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
Original issue premium on any bond is treated a amortizing on the basis of the taxpayer’s yield to maturity using the
taxpayer’s cost basis and a constant semiannual compounding method. Prospective investors in the Bonds should
consult their tax advisors with respect to the federal income tax consequences of the disposition of the Bonds.

Transcript and Closing Documents

The original purchaser(s) will be furnished the following documents when the Bonds and the Notes are
delivered:

1. Signature and No Litigation Certificate stating that at the time of delivery no litigation is pending or
threatened affecting the validity of the Bonds and the Notes or the levy or collection of taxes to pay them.

2. Certificate on behalf of the City, signed by the Mayor, the Treasurer, and the Director of Finance which
will be dated the date of delivery and attached to a signed copy of the Official Statement, and which will certify, to
the best of said officials' knowledge and belief, at the time bids were accepted on the Bonds and the Notes the
description and statements in the Official Statement relating to the City and its finances were true and correct in all
material respects and did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading, and that there has been no material adverse change in the financial condition of the City from that set
forth in or contemplated by the Official Statement.

3. Receipts for the purchase price of the Bonds and the Notes.
4. Approving opinions of Robinson & Cole LLP, Bond Counsel.

5. Executed continuing disclosure agreements for the Bonds and the Notes in substantially the forms
attached hereto as Appendix C to this Official Statement.

The City of Danbury has prepared an Official Statement for the Bonds and the Notes, which is dated July
19, 2006. The City deems such Official Statement final as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15¢2-12 (b)(1), but
it is subject to revision or amendment. The City will make available to the winning purchaser of the Bonds one
hundred (100) copies of the Official Statement at the City’s expense, and to each winning purchaser of the Notes
five (5) copies. The copies of the Official Statement will be made available to the winning purchaser within seven
business days of the bid opening at the office of the City's Financial Director. If the City’s Financial Advisor,
People’s Bank, is provided with the necessary information from the winning purchaser by noon of the day
following the day bids on the Bonds and the Notes are received, the copies of the Official Statement will include
an additional cover page and other pages indicating the interest rates, ratings, yields or reoffering prices, the name
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of the managing underwriter, the name of the insurer, if any, and any changes on the Bonds and the Notes. The
purchaser shall arrange with the Financial Advisor the method of delivery of the copies of the Official Statement to
the purchaser. Additional copies of the Official Statement may be obtained by the purchaser at its own expense by
arrangement with the printer.

A transcript of the proceedings taken by the City will be kept on file at the offices of U.S. Bank National
Association and will be available for examination upon reasonable notice.

Concluding Statement

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the City and the Underwriter
or holders of the Bonds and the Notes. Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion
or estimates are not intended to be representation of fact, and no representation is made that any of such opinion or
estimate will be realized. No representation is made that past experience, as might be shown by financial or other
information herein, will necessarily continue or be repeated in the future. Neither the delivery of this Official
Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of the City since the date hereof. References to statutes, charters, or other laws herein may not
be complete and such provision of law is subject to repeal or amendment.

Information herein has been derived by the City from official and other sources and is believed by the City to
be reliable, but such information other than that obtained from official records of the City has not been independently
confirmed or verified by the City and its accuracy is not guaranteed.

This Official Statement has been duly prepared and delivered by the City, and executed for and on behalf of
the City by the following officials:

CiTY OF DANBURY, CONNECTICUT

/S/ Mark D. Boughton
MARK D. BOUGHTON, Mayor

/S/ Daniel P. Jowdy

DANIEL P. JowDy, Treasurer

/s/ Dena R, Diorio

DENA R. DIORIO, Director of Finance & Personnel

Dated as of July 26, 2006

41



(This page intentionally left blank)



Appendix A

2005 General Purpose Financial Statements
(Excerpted from the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report)

The following includes the General Purpose Financial Statements of the City of Danbury, Connecticut for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2005. The supplemental data and letter of transmittal, which were a part of that report, have not
been reproduced herein. A copy of the complete report is available upon request from Matthew Spoerndle, Vice
President, People’s Bank, Municipal Finance, 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut 06601. Telephone (203)
338-4238.
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) McGladrey& Pulle_n_ _

i ,'Certmed Publ ic Accountants

o To the Honorable Mayor and
" Members of the Common Councﬂ T
(C1ty of Danbury, Connectlcut B : R

We have aud1ted the accompanylng ﬁnanc1a1 statements of the governmental act1v1t1es the o :
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,” =
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Clty of Danbury, Connecticut, as of and for = =

“the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements] o

as listed in the table of contents. These ﬁnanc1a1 statements are the respon51b1hty of the City of . - .

Danbury, Connectlcut’s management.  Our respon31b111ty is to. express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the

: ~ Danbury Parkmg Authority, the Stanley L. Richter Memorial Park Authority and the Tarrywile'
~ Park Authority, component units of the City, which financial statements reflect 100% of the
assets and revenues of the' discretely presented component units. Those financial statements;' S

were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to amounts included for the Danbury Parking Authority, the Stanley L. -

Richter Memorial Park Authonty and the Tarrywile Park - Authority, d1scretely presented o

A nnTaley A

- com] onent units of the Cn g 1s baseu solely on me Teports of other austGTS o
y PC »

" We conducted our audlt n accordance with audltmg standards generally accepted 1n the Umted )

- States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in “Govermment
v Audltmg Standards,” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards.

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the Danbury -

" Parking Authority, the Stanley L. Richter Memorial Park Authority and the Tarryvnle Park = :

Authority, discretely presented component units of the City, were not audited in accordance with :

. “Government Auditing Standards.” An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence

supportmg the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also inchidesﬂ_
“assessing the accounting pnnc1ples used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit, and the -
’reports of other auditors, provxde a reasonable bas1s for our opn:uons :

In our oplmon based on our audit and the reports of other audltors the ﬁnanmal statements -

. referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects, the respective financial position of the -

governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented = :

~ component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
- Danbury, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2005; and the respective changes in financial position and -

cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General' B

Fund for the year then ended in confonmty with accounting principles generaﬂy accepted inthe -
Umted States of Amenca . o -

. McG]adrey & Pullen LLP isa member firm of RSM Intemanonal
an affiliation of separate and mdependent legal entmes )



S In ‘accordarice W1th “Govemment Audrtmg Standards we have also issued our report'dated T
October 28, 2005 on our consideration of the City of Danbury, Connecticut’s internal control =~

‘over financial reportmg and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, -

. - regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to - e

‘describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and . -
‘the results of that testmg, and not to prov1de an opinion on the internal control over financial-

' reporting or on compliance.. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance ©

o - with “Govemment Audltmg Standards” and should be consrdered in assessmg the results of our ; o

g audlt

L ’The management drscussron aud analysrs on pages 3 through 14 is not a reqmred part of the?'f’-: S
- basic financial statements, but 1s supplementary information reqmred by accounting principles”
" generally accepted in the Umted States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
‘which consisted principally of i inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement T

- and presentatrcn of the requlred supplementary mforma’uon However we did not audrt the o

o mformatlon and express no oplmon on 1t

Our audrt was conducted for the purpose Of forming Opmlons on the ﬁnancral statements that

| ~_ collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining - o
- and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules, and the statistical section are presented = -

. for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

o The budgetary detail and combmmg and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules

-~ have been. subJected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
 statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic'

~ financial statements taken as a whole: The introductory section and the statistical section have
- not been. subjected to the ‘auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic: ﬁnancnal"f
. statements and accordmgly, we express no opmlon on them

%W//&Z&% 44/’
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_ ‘ Ctty of Danbury, Connectlcut
Management’s Discussion and Ana1y51s
S June 30 2005 :

As management of the C1ty of Danbury, we offer readers of the ﬁnanmal statements tlns '

B narrative overview and analyses of the financial activities of the City of Danbury for the fiscal

N year ended June 30, 2005. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here - B
: along with addmonal mformatlon we have ﬁnmshed in our letter of transrmttal L o

- ‘Fmanclal nghhghts

- 0 On a govermnent-mde ba51s excludmg component umts the assets of the Clty of Danbm-yﬂi- o

" exceeded its labilities resulting in net assets at the close of the fiscal year of $234.5 million. -
Total net assets for Governmental Activities at fiscal year-end were $134.2 million and total. .

net assets for Business-Type Activities were $100.3 million. Net assets for Busmess-Type o

© Activities increased by $6.1 million or 6.5%, while net assets for Governmental Activities

increased by $20.6 million or 18.1%. Of the City’s total net assets at June 30, 2005, $17.6 '

- million or 7.5% is unrestncted and may be used to meet the government’s obhgatlon to
01t12ens and credttors - : S ‘ L o

§ v' Ona govemment-vvtde basm durmg the year, the C1ty s net assets mcreased by $26 7 mllhon'; :_‘_«» . J
- or 12.8%, from $207.8 million to $234.5 million., Government—wrde expenses were $204 g .

o million, while revenues were $231 5 million.

. 01‘- At the close of the year, the Ctty of Danbury ] governmental funds reported on a current -
- financial resource basis, combined ending fund balances of $21.3 million, an increase of $5.9 - .

~ million from the prior fiscal year. The Century 21 PI Fund ended the year w1th a fund deﬁcﬁ ’ l
of $2,428,324 due to tlmmg of resource flows. . -

4 At the end of the current fiscal year fund balance for the general fund alone was $l9 9:»“ |

million, an increase of $7.1 million from the prior fiscal year. Of the total general fund |
balance, $18.2 million represents unreserved general fund balance. Unreserved general find

‘balance at year-end represent lO 9% of total general fund expendltures of $166 8 mllhon o

e .The City of Danbury s total debt decreased by $6. 7 mllhon or 4.8%. The decrease is due to “ o
- the rapid paydown approach the Ctty employs as Well asa srnaller than ant1c1pated bond sale .

- ’m August 2004

: Ovemew of the Fmanc1a1 Statements

R ThlS dlscuss1on and analyses are mtended to sefve as an mtroductlon to the Clty of Danbury s
 basic financial statements. The basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)

government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, 3) notes to the financial =

statements. . This report also contains other supplementary mformatmn as well ‘as the basic: :
_ﬁnanmal statements v ' : v _ _



Government—Wlde Fmam:lal Statements

o The government—wrde ﬁnanc1a1 statements are desrgned to provrde readers W1th a broad

~ overview of the City of Danbury’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. All of

_ o _the resources the City has at its disposal are shown, including major assets such as buildings and .
. infrastructure. = A: thorough accounting of the cost of government is rendered because the. Lo
- statements present all costs, not just how much was collected and disbursed. They prov1de both: _' EDE

o L long—term and short—term mformatlon about the C1ty S overa]l ﬁnanc1al status. -

_,The statement of net assets presents mformauon on all of the C1ty of Danbury s assets and AT
- liabilities, ‘with the difference reported as net assets.. Over time, increases or decreases in net;f,?. o
- assets may serve as an indicator of whether the ﬁnanclal position of the city is improving or
' detenoratmg It speaks to the quest10n of whether or not, the City, as a whole is better or worse

_off as a result of this year’s activities. . Other non-financial factors will need to be consrdered o
‘however,. such as changes in the C1ty s property tax base and the condltron of the C1ty s

e mﬁ‘astructure to assess the overall health of the Clty

The statement of act1v1t1es presents mformahon showmg how the government s net assets' B

changed dunng the most recent fiscal year. ~All of the current ‘year’s revenues and expenses are -

taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and EXPEnses are. S

reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flow in some future ﬁscal‘ "
penod uncoﬂected taxes and earned but unnsed vacatron 1eave are examples R

- _' ‘Both of the government—w1de ﬁnancral statements drstmgursh functlons of the C1ty of Danbury B

that are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues \governmental activities) from other - |
functions that are intended to recover all ora srgmﬁcant portron of their costs through user fees'. :
and charges (busmess—type actrvrtles) T :

o 26' ‘Governmental act1v1tles of the Clty of Danbury encompass most of the Crty s basrc servlces’:j o

. and include general government ‘public safety, public works, health and welfare, culture and - - |

recreation, education and other activities. Property taxes charges for services and state and '.V- : S |

federal grants ﬁnance most of these act1v1t1es .

- "»Busmess-type act1v1t1es of the Crty of Danbury mclude the Water and Sewer funds They are B »
- reported here as the Crty charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the cost of
~ the operatrons ‘ , RN :

0 The government—mde ﬁnanc1a1 statements mclude not only the C1ty of Danbury 1tse1f but .

- also three legally separate component units, the Danbury Parking Authority, the Richter Park . -

- Authority and the Tarrywile Park Authorrty for which the City of Danbury is financially

" accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately ﬁom the o |

o ‘ﬁnancral mformatron presented for the prlmary government 1tself

" The goVernment—wideﬁnancialstatements canbe found ”o‘n‘" pages 16-19 of this report. ﬂ



Fund Fmanclal Statements

A fund isa grouplng of related accounts that is used to mamtam control and accountablhty over o

e resources that have been segregated for speclﬁc activities or objectives.. The City of Danbury, S

‘like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate.
- compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Danbury can = - -

o be dnnded mto three categones governmental funds propnetary funds and ﬁduc:lary funds

o Governmental funds Governmental funds are used to account for essentlally the same
functions reported. as govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. =
‘However, unlike the government-wide financial . statements, govemmental fund ﬁnancnal_, o

- statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on

* balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such mformatlon may be; S

‘ useful mn evaluatmg a government S near—term ﬁnancmg requn'ements

. Because the focus of govemmental funds is narrower than that of the government—w1de ﬁnan01a1‘

statements it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with smular E g
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term ’ o
financing decisions. Both the’ govemmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund

'_statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes. in fund balances provide a reconciliation to.
: fac1htate this companson between goverm:nental funds and governmental activities. o

The Clty of Danbury mamtams 19 md1v1dua1 governmental funds Informauon is’ presented' ,

‘separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of = -
~revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and the Century 21 o
- PIL Fund, both of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmentalf‘ .

funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation as other governmental funds. Non- -
major governmental funds for the City of Danbury include the School Lunch Program Fund, the

Community Development Block Grant Fund, the WIC Grant Fund, the Continuing Education

‘Fund, the Animal Control Fund, the School-Based Health Center Grant Fund, the Ambulance
Fund, the LOCIP Fund, Airport Projects Fund, State and Federal School Projects Fund, the
‘Library Fund, the Railyard Parking Lease Fund, Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund, the

~ Vision 21 and Vision 21 — 2 Bond Issues Fund, the City Projects Fund, the Cityworks 2000 - d |
_Fund, and the Farioly Permanent Fund. The Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund is the -

- consohda’uon of 55 small grant programs that have been combined for the purposes of financial .
reportlng Individual fund data for each of these non-major govemmental funds is prov1ded m o
the form of combmmg statements elsewhere in th15 report '

o N The C1ty of Danbury adopts an annual appropnated budget for 1ts general ﬁmd A budgetary - n

" comparison statement has been prov1ded for the general fund to, demonstrate comphance with the B

authonzed budget

The basm governmental fund ﬁnanmal statements can be found on pages 20 21 of thlS report



e Proprletarv funds The Ctty of Danbury mamtams two d1fferent types of propnetary ﬁmds

L Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as busmess-type activities in the -

- government-wide f financial statements The C1ty of Danbury uses enterpnse funds to account for o

1ts Water and Sewer operattons

: »Propnetary funds prov1de the same type of mformatton as the govemment~w1de ﬁnanc1a1" -

. statements, only in more detail. - The propnetary fund ﬁnanc1al statements prov1de separate .
- information for the Water - and Sewer Funds both of Whlch are cons1dered to be major ﬁmds of , o
- _theCltyofDanbury ‘ : § - L - T I T

B p ;:;The basw propnetary fund ﬁnanc1al statements can be found on pages 24~26 of thls report

L) deuclarv funds Fldumary funds are used to account for TeSOurces. held for the beneﬁt of
parties outside the government.- Fldumary ﬁmds are not reflected in the: government—vnde SR

financial statement because the resources of those funds are: not avaﬂable to provide services to o

- the City constituency. The City has six pension funds trust funds, one private purpose fund and - | A
“eight agency ﬁmds - The accountmg used for ﬁdu01ary funds is much hke that used for S

propnetary funds |
' The basm ﬁdue1ary fund ﬁnanc1a1 statements can be t'ound on pages 27 28 of tlns report

N ctes to the Fmancxal Statements

, The nctes provztde add1t10na1 mfonnatlon that is essentlal to a ﬁlll understandmg of the datav
- .provided in the government-wide and fund ﬁnanctal»statements The notes to the financial -

o statements can be found on pages 29 70 of this report

The notes to ﬂ]lS report also contam certam mformatlon concernmg the C1ty of Danbury s

o progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required o

' supplementary mformatlon can be found in the notes to the ﬁnanc1a1 statements

L v Government-Wlde Fmanclal Analy51s

' As noted earher net assets may serve over tlme asa useful mdtcator of a government’s ﬁnanelal L

~ position and an important determinant of its ability to finance services in the future. In the case
of the City of Danbury, assets exceeded liabilities by $235 5 million at .Ttme 30, 2005 Thls is an R
B mcrease of $27.7 mﬂhon from the prevmus ﬁscal year - S



CJume30,2005 - o unedn, 2004 -

) . Primary Government - ... - L Prima;yGovemment
- Govemmental  Businessfype © - . -: . Govemmental . Business ype - L
" . Activities .- - Activifles " .- - Total .. . Acivites .  Actvifies © - Tofal . - -
‘Curremandotherassets U § 5, 48493 % . 9367 § 578600 5 - 52801 § '13879 5  66.480. o
© Nom-current = .- ... 17806 - - 5382 . 23298 . 7482 M7 - B8 . o .
’Capualassets S 0T U se7B5. - 145816 - o 332601 - 170,890 143495 0 314385 . .
SN Total Assets S 253,184 = - 160,575 413759 | 230873 - 158521 389494
Currenthabﬂmes f Lo MEe . MTM8 - dBT2  T3ese2 TSI . 44B09
. Long-term liabilities outstanding * 87414 . 43134 1305487 B0417. - SB01° . 137,118
T Total Liabilities - 118888 - 60282 179270 - 117400 64318 181,727
) Netassets } I
- Investedmcapltalassets net 'ﬁ;l G e o T
| ofrelateddebt - 15020 100416 25418 - 105488 - G726 193te4
Restricted B 7 : S 71 (- T ¥ S
 Unrestricted - e A7ETS o oo (128) 17582 . 619 O OBATT 13086

Total NetAssets 0§ 134196 § 100293 § - 234489 $ 113564 § .~ 94,03 § 207,767 -

- :At the end of the current ﬁscal year the Clty of Danbury is able to report posmve balances in a11va .
- three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole as Well as for 1ts separate L
o govemmental and busmess—type act1v1t1es : : '

v On a govemment-wxde bams excludmg component umts the assets of the C1ty of Da.nbury' '
" exceeded its liabilities resultmg in total net assets at the close of the fiscal year of $234.5 million.

This is up from last year’s net assets of $207.7 million. Total net assets for Governmental

~ Activities at fiscal year-end were $134.2 million (up from $113.6 million in the previous year). -
and total net assets for Business-type activities were $100.3 million (up from $94.2 million in the_
‘previous year). Of the City’s total net assets at June 30, 2005, $17.6 million or 7.5% is

- unrestricted and may be used.to meet the government’s on-going obligations. to citizens and

- creditors. ThlS compares w1th last year s total unrestncted net assets of $13 1 mﬂhon or 6. 3%" L
um'estncted . , B o

- By far the Iargest portlon of the Clty of Danbury s net assets (91 9%) reﬂects its mvestment in .
capltal assets (e.g., land, bulldmgs ‘machinery, and equlpment) less any related debt used to

“acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Danbury uses these capltal assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.* -
Although the City of Danbury s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
~ should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
- sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to hquldate these liabilities. : '



- YearEnded June 30,2005 - -~ - YearEndedJune30,2004
i . anaryGovemment Sont oD Primary Govemment
Govemmentai Busxness-type R Govemmental Businesstype. .. <
" Activities . - Acﬁvrﬁes o Total - | Actvifies.. - Activifies . - Total

Revennes S
Program Revenues

Charges for Services - § 17867 $ 16834 § B0t § 16062 § e §

OperatlngGmntsandConm’butxons' oA e MTer 36410 -7 38410
Capital Grants and Contributions * . -~ ~© 1653 . = 2680 '~ - 4333 . 3478 -~ 385 . 3863
Donated capited assets o o 4,440 B : 4,440, v 7583 : R 7,563 . L

. General Revenues: | o 5 Lo ST S
PropertyTaxes [RRTE M 127,889

" Grenfsand confributionsmot - - < L
restricted to specific programs -~ - © 16494 .0 o . 16494 - Bge4 - B4

Unrestricted investment eamings 1336 . 495 - 1831 . . 437 - 397 8

© Total Revenues . 211416 ~ 20,109 231,525 190,710 - 14051 . 204761

127889 . 119766 - 19786,

Expenses: P T T S
GeneralGovemment et 248 0 S 12400 ¢ 9784 o - o o764
Public Safety - oo 3133 0 -t 37383 - 36648 . - . 36648 -

CPublicWorks .o 1248 140197 25285 9290 - - 13§18 . 22008
Healmandwsfare.j - - BT . 48B4 L - ABB4.
Culture and Recreation * . . 456 . - . 4518 .- 5086 - - -o . 5086
 Bducation P 1117 14075 - 109575 . - .- 109575
Other .~ - L B33 - - 1833 18 - 11

- Intereston]ong-termdebt S 387 .. . - 3ger . 3483 0. o 3183

Total Expenses o 190784 14,019 204803 .~ 179,548 13,618 193,166

‘ Chang'emnetassetsf_ P ST - S 26;722 _1'1,'1'52“»}’ e

| Netassets—beginning . 1354 o403 oongel ‘102402 “ ear0  fesi72 -

Netassets-ending . § 13419 § 100283 s 234489“ s mass s 94;203 $ "207’,767, Y

Danbury s net assets mcreased by $26. 7 mthon dunng the ﬁscal year w1th net assets of )
Govemmental Activities i mcreasmg by $20.6 rmlhon and net assets of Business-Type Activities .
_ increasing by $6.1 million. The increase in net assets within both Governmental and Business- -
Type Activities is due to the degree to which increases in on—gomg revenues have exceeded

' increases in expenses. ~The revenues of the Governmental Activities increased due to the =~ =

recognition of $9,375 for the development of property located in the Planned Nelghborhood .
Development Zone. In addition, a donation of 13.1 acres with an appraised value of
' approxxmately $4.4 mﬂhon was also recogmzed as contnbu’aons not spec1ﬁc to programs._ o

Government Actlvmes

For Governnmntal activitiesz 60.5% of the revenues Weredenved from ﬁropertj? taxes followed

by 31.1% from program revenues, then 7.8% from unrestricted grants and ﬁnally about 6% of - B

the Clty s revenue in t]:us ﬁscal year was denved from mvestment earmngs



z Mc‘"ijor revenueﬂfa,ct’or's iﬁclﬁdédf R o

S ¢ - Property tax revenues recorded for ﬁscal year 2005 reﬂect growth m the total assessed Value - -
,ofpropeﬂ}’of68% e A S .

B ¢+ | Charges for servrces for ﬁscal year 2005 1ncreased due to rrnproved conveyance tax
o collectrons and better than ant1c1pated burldmg perrmt revenues and Town Clerk Fees

: 0 $l3 4 mllhon was recogmzed for the development of property located il the Planned
. Nei ghborhood Development Zone. This amount is recorded at its present value Thrs
N amount 1s recorded as unrestncted grants and contnbutrons — '

o For Governmental Act1v1tres more than 59 8% of the Crty s expendltures relate to educatmn, ‘. _
~ 19.6% relate to pubhc safety, 5.9% for public works, 6.6% for general govermnent 2.4% for . -

cultural and recreation, 3.0% for health and Welfare 1 9% for mterest on long~term debt and’." .
ﬁnally 9% for other act1v1t1es L . S

: Major expendlture factors mcluded '

e Employee beneﬁt costs and other types of insurance mcludlng Worker s compensatron -
autornobrle pubhc habrhty, ﬁre and umnsured losses mcreased by almost $l 6 nnlllon or

L . Expendltures for educatlon mcreased $4 7 nnlhon or 4 3% reﬂectmg the rrsmg cost of
. educatron L . v . S

. Busmess—Tvpe Actmtres R

' Busmess—Type actrvrues mcreased the C1ty s net assets by $6.1 rmlhon an mcrease of 6. 5%‘: ; .
. ﬁ:om the pnor ﬁscal year Factors 1mpactmg the ﬂat growth mclude o : o

: Charges for services rose by $3.7 n:ulhon an increase of 27. 6% from the pnor year. In adchuon o

- contributed caprtal totaled $2 7 nnlhon an increase of $2 3 rmlhon or 596% from the pnor ﬁscal
year.,_ : o S .

Fmanclal Analysrs of the Fund Fmanclal Statements

.'As noted earher the Clty of Danbury uses fund accounﬁng to ensure and demonstrateﬂy ‘

o comphance wrth ﬁnance related legal requnernents

Governmental funds The focus of the C1ty of Danbury 8 governmental funds is to prov1de ,7 i o

information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such

. information is useful in assessing the Crty of Danbury s ﬁnancmg requirements. In particular,

R unreserved - fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government s net resources = -
’ avarlable for spendlng at the end of the ﬁscal year L s



S As of the end of the current ﬁscal year the Crty of Danbury s governmental funds reported“;rz

combined ending find balances of $21.3 million. This includes a negative fund balance of $2.4 -

million in the Century 21 PI Bond Fund that will be eliminated through future debt issuance. The -

_ General Fund and Other Governmental Funds reported fund balances of $19.9 million and $3.8 . -
~million respectively. Approxm:tately $18.2 million of the general fund’s total fund balance - =~ -
" constitutes nnreserved fund balance that is available for spendrng at the government’s discretion.” . .
" The remainder of General Fund’s fund balance, $1.7 million, is reserved to hqutdate contracts o
o and purchase orders of the prior penod, and is not avallable for new spendmg ' .

. The general fund is the cl:nef operatrng fund of the Clty of Danbury At the end of the chirent e
~ fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $18.2. million while total fund- -
‘balance reached $19.9. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare

" both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved find R

‘balance represents 10.9% of total general fund expendltures Whﬂe total fund balance represents S o .'

l ll 9% of that same amount

.The fund balance of the Crty of Danbury s general fund on a budgetary bas1s mcreased by $6 7 : ‘,

. nnlhon dunng the current ﬁscal year. Key factors in th:ts increase are as follows

‘0_ Actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $5.3 nnlhon Llcenses & Pernnts exoeeded i .
 budget by approxrrnately $1.5 million or 39.3%. This is duie to stronger than antrcrpated
, conveyance tax rece1pts building pern:ut revenue and the collectlon of Town Clerk fees

& Charges for Services exceeded budget by $2 1 nnlhon due toa payment from apnvate
developer for a land transactron ' . : :

o 0_'_ Tnvestment Income exceeded budget by $1 1 rmlhon due to an nnproved mterest rate o S
e envn‘onment : : : : L

- “The Century 21 PI Bond Issue Fund has a total fund deﬁcrt of $2 4 n:ulhon The fund deﬁcrt erl R
: "1 be ehmmated through future debt issuance.

o Proprletarv funds The Crty of Danbury s propnetary funds prov1de the same type of L

mformatlon found in the government—mde ﬁnancral statements, but in ‘more deta'tl

o Net assets of the Water Fund at the end of the year were $50 7 mllhon The ﬁmd generated N

operating income during the year of $2.1 million, and increase of $1.8 ‘million from the prior - .

| ‘year. Capital contributions totaled $1. .8 million, resulted in the fund i increasing 1ts net assets by
- $3.1 mﬂhon Unrestncted net assets at year—end totaled $1.9 rmlhon . o

'V Net assets of the Sewer Fund at the end of the year were $49 6 rnllhon an mcrease of $3 O
million. The fund generated operating income of $2.5 million. Improved cash posrtron and an

increase in capital contributions helped to increase the fund’s overall net assets by $2.9 million. S

Unrestricted net deficit of the Sewer Fund was $2.0 million ‘due to funds large investment in
~ capital assets which are not hqu1d and therefore not avatlable to meet future obhgatrons :

10



General Fund Budgetary nghlxghts
The dlfference between the onglnal budget and the ﬁnal amended budget was $2 257 086 The

o maJ or additional appropnatlons approved durrng the year are summanzed below: -
o + : $282 OOO addmonal appropnatrons to vanous departments tbroughout the Crty for snowg s -

~ removal and Weather related expenses

0 $1. 0 n:ulhon addrtronal appropnatron for the Board of Eduoatron to provrde addmonal
o ﬁmdlng for textbooks and educatlonal programs S

e _$5 50 000 to the Pohce Department for extra duty servu:es that are offset by revenues
S recewed from those recelvmg the servrce '

g Durmg the year, actual revenues on a budgetary basrs Were $168 7 rmlhon whrch exceededf‘

‘ budgetary estimates by $5.3 rmlhon Licenses & Permits exceeded budgetary estimates by $1.5 o
 million due to better than ant1c1pated conveyance tax receipts, building permit revenues and

- Town Clerk fees. Intergovernmental Revenue exceeded estimates by $832,000 as the City.
* received more state aid than anucrpated Actual mvestrnent mcome was $1 1 million h1gher than .
the budget of $200 000. : : : '

a Actual expendrtures on a budgetary basrs totaled $162 O rmlhon whrch were less than actualr |
© revenues on a budgetary basis by §6. 8 n:ulhon ' : :

| Capltal Asset and Debt Adnnmstratton

Camtal assets, As of June 30, 2005, the Crty of Danbury s mvestment in cap1ta1 assets for 1ts__ o
governmental and business-type activities amounted to $332.6 million, net’ of accumulated
* depreciation.  This investment in capital assets includes land, building and land improvements,
" machinery and equipment and infrastructure. The total increase in the City of Danbury s '
: mvestment in capttal assets for the current ﬁscal year was $18.2 mﬂhon or 5 8% ,

 memaos T e

Primary Government o " Primary Government . ~

Govemmental Business-ype » S ‘Govemme,ntai Business-type L

 Actviies  ©  Activiies-© - Total © © Acivies - Acivifles -~ Total -
land S § 4512472 % 1031946 § 46544418 § 39382873 3. 1031946 - § 40414819
Land Improvements: S 7072480 . . - 7072480 6721017 - BT
Buildings and Improvements -~ . 65922528 . 69862281 © 135784809 673085757 72229821 . 1395383%
Machineryand Bquipment | 7438500, 374480 781300 . - 6484517 . 376367 . 6860884
Wfiestuctre’ | 45994005 - 70756506 METE0SM. . 46502555 . 67851749 . 114354304
Other T/ 4.7 N 297626 SR < - R
Construction in Progress ~ © - 14844750 3563441 - 18408191 . . - 4,489,986 1681218 BAT1204 ©

. Total . - . § 186784755 § 145815280 § 332601044 § 170889523 § 143434462 § 314384005

11



. MaJ or capltal asset events durmg the current ﬁscal year mcluded the foIlowmg

e 0 'Improvements to parks and plazas totahng $1 2 mﬂhon , o S _
. Land acqu1s1t10n totahng $6 1 nnlhon Wlnch mcludes 13 1 acres of donated property

- 0 A Inﬁastructure nnprovements mc}udmg 31dewa1ks roads and bndges totabng approxmately
$905 000. - SN . _ . R

. Acqmsmon of machmery and eqmpment totahng $2 3 n:ulhon

o 'Addmonal mformahon on the Clty of Danbury s cap1ta1 assets can be found 1n Note 7 on pages : : .
’ 446-49 oft]ns report R S . ) ; -

o Long—term debt At the end of the current ﬁscal year the C1ty of Danbury had total bonded debt. " i

" outstanding of $77,604,850 million. One—hundred percent of t]ns debt is backed by the full faJth'
~and credlt of the c1ty government : , o -

me30,2005 e june3n s

S Primary Government .~ =~ - Primary Government
o . Govemmental  Business-type e Govermnmental Business-iype g ,
_Actiities  ~ ~_Activities S Tofal - Activities . Activiies~ . Total -

General obligation bonds ~ $ 56009450 § 21595400 § - 77604850  § 58126800 § 21873200 § 80000000

Bond anticipation notes 23,050,000 . 9250000 32,300000° . . . 24800000 - 10,550,000 35,450,000

© Notes payable S AmTM2 . 20726460 22263572 - TADRA - 2345842 23420066

o Total - - § 80596562 § - 51571860 § 132168422 "3 83101024 § 55769042 § 138,870,066 - .

-‘ The C1ty of Danbury s total debt decreased by $6 7 rmlhon or 4 8% dunng the current ﬁscalv

L year. During the year, the City issued Bond Anticipation Notes totaling $32,300,000.

 Repayments over the course of the year totahng $35,450,000 resulted in an cutstandmg balance
at Iune 30 2005 of$32 300 000. : o _ S

o :‘ The Clty of Danbury mamtalns the followmg ratmgs ﬁ'om Wa]l Street’s credit agenc1es for
“general obhgatton debt an Aa2 ratmg from Moody 8 Investors Service and AA from Standard g

w andPoors .

R The overall statutory debt hmlt for the Ctty of Danbury is equal to seven tlmes annual rece1pts"‘

: _ from taxation or $900,490,276. As of June 30, 2005, the City recorded long-term debt of $80.6 . =
" million related to Governmental Activities and $51. 6 mllhon related Busmess-Type Act1v1t1es s
'Well below 1ts statutory debt limit. S , : .,

- Addltlonal mformatton on the Clty of Danbury s long—term debt can be found in Notes 8 and 9 of |

e thls report

_”Cash Management Policies and Practices. At'Ju‘ne '30' 2005 the C1ty had $60‘9’:m11hon in

cash and cash eqmvalents The City also had $214 2 mﬂhon of mvestments representmg assets m) ‘ _' N

. the Cxty s six pensmn funds _



- W1th the exceptlon of the siX pensron funds the Crty s operatmg and Workmg capltal funds are:' "

i invested at the direction of the City Treasurer in the following short-term investments: (1) e

various certificates of deposit with Connecticut banks; (2) money market accounts; (3) overnight

~ repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. government agency obligations such as Federal =
- Home Loan Mortgage Corporation which are valued daily; (4) overnight U.S. Treasury - .

‘obligations; (5) an investment pool investing only in (a) hlgh grade short-term federal securities -

and variable rate obligations faced by federal agencies having monthly or quarterly assets based o

" on indices like the prima rate, LIBOR, or a combination of the two, and (b) very short-term

" (usually overnight) repurchase agreements secured by high quality collateral which is valued =~

o daily and fully dehvered to the program s custodlal bank to be held for the beneﬁts of the Pool’ s L

| partlc1pants

: Pensmn Admlmstratmn The Clty rnamtams SlX dlstmct pens1on plans covenng substanually. :

~ all of its employees, except teachers who are covered by the State Teachers’ Retirement Fund. -
. The City does not contribute to the State Teachers’ Retirement Fund. The General Employee’s . .

E Plan is a non-contributory defined benefit plan. The remaining five plans — Post-1983 Police;

~ Post-1967 Fire; Post-1967 Police; Pre-1967 Fire and Pre-1967 Police, are contributory defined - a

benefit plans. Police contribute 4% of their wages to the plans, while fire contribute 5%. The -
- City’s funding policy is to make contributions on an actuarial cost basis, which includes normal
. cost plus an amortization of the unfunded past service liability. Total employer pension
o contnbutlons for the year ended June 30, 2005 were $3 911 000. ' v '

‘ ”As of June 30 2005, the six plans had aggregate assets of $236 3 n:nlhon up $20 5 mﬂhon from e

$215.8 million on June 30, 2004. The City prepares valuations of its pension plans every other:
year. At the latest actuarial valuation dates, the: City’s six pension trust funds had assets, in the

aggregate on an actuarial basis, of $223.9 million, while the actuarial accrued Liability was

' $210 8.On an actuanal accrued ba51s the City’s hablhty was in the aggregate, 106% funded.

Economxc Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

o The Clty of Danbury has not been immune from the effects of the nauonal economic downtm'n S

- As of June 2005, the unemployment rate for the Danbury Labor Market Area was 4.2% up :

slightly from 3.1% in the prior year. The City of Danbury’s unemployment rate was 4.4% up. - - o

from 3.6% at June 30, 2004. Connectlcut’s overa]l unemployment rate was 5. 4% at June 30, B
- 2005, up from 4.7% a year ago. : .

o The Clty of Danbury is beneﬁtmg from nnproved econormc condltlons The Clty contmues to
~ see growth in its housing market, in terms of the construction of new units and increased

. property values. In addition, corporations in Danbury are expanding thelr presence in the C1ty, ‘_ 3 o

. demonstratmg that Danbury is a desuable locatlon to do busmess

R Fmaﬂy, the C1ty s d1verse hlgh quahty tax base lends stablhty to the Clty s revenue stream andvv I

Danbury expects to retain its competmve advantage in Northem Fairfield County



” :Requests for Informatlon E

B The ﬁnanc1a1 report is demgned to prov1de a general overview of the C1ty of Danbury s ﬁnances

- for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the -

" information. provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be

S addressed to the Dlrector of Fmance & Perscnnel at 155 Deer Hlll Avenue Danbury, CT 06810 e
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- CITY OF DA‘NEURY 'CONNECTICUT,' o

. __STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS S
. June 30 2005 ’

-.Assets C :
o Cashandcasheqmvalents e
. Receivables (et of aHowances for collechon Iosses) ’
L Propertytaxes -
Unbilled services
‘ Spec1a1 assessments
Accounts recelvable , o
" Federal and state govemments S
~ Other '
.- Tnventories o ;
- Internal balances
© - Other assets . -.
v Noncun‘en’c assets: . _
Special assessments rece1vable S
‘Deferred charges, net of accumulated amortization .
Federal and state government recexvables
Note receivable ‘
Cap1tal assets, not bemg depreclated D
. Capital assets, net of accumulaied deprematlon ’
- Total assets '

Liabilities - o
_ Accounts payable

Accrued Liabilities .
Unearned revenues

Bond anticipation notes payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
" Due in more than one year ..
Total liabilities

" Net Assets
Investment in cap1tal assets net of related debt
Restricted for:
Farioly Library: -
Expendable - "
. ‘Nonexpendable
* Unrestricted (deficit) - .-
- Total net assets '

The notes to the ﬁnanmal statements are an mtegral part of thJs statement T

5 After intemal receivables a;nd payable_s haVe been ehminated‘ S

6

Primary Government

. A‘ ‘G(tVet;hiﬁentat
© . Activities.

Business-Type = -
- Activities -

8 32,858,810

$ . 8,601,839

'§. 41,460,649

3677434 D s
- 2284154 (2,284,154
- a43,050 443050_2"'
4226239 0 - 4226239
1 10,856,395° . o - 10,856,395, . .
| 424568 . 1,829374 . 2253942
41,641 341,804 . 383,445
4133906 - (4,133,906) . . - - T
24,774 o 24,774
s 4394734 4,394,734
949,850 997,692". . 1,947,542
5205902 . - 5205902 .
4,000,000 . - .- 4,000,000 -
60,357,222 - 4595387 - . 64,952,609 .
126,427,533 141,220,902 =~ 267,648,435 © .
253,184,274 160,575,030 413,759,304 -
11,117,187 - 982,843 - 12,100,030
4,642,952 790,006 5,432,958
2,965,840 - 6,124969 . 9,090,809
. 12,848,000,:‘ 19,250,000 - 22,098, 000 B
- 3933 964 4,262,032 -~ 13,195, 006
78480129 38871919 117,352,048
118,988,072 60,281,769 179,269,841
115,001,687 100,416,119 ' 215,417,806
41,834 B R
VATTITA L - TATLITA
17,675,507 - (122,858). 17,552,649

$ 134,196,202

- $ 234,489,463

$ 100,293,261

o Total* ER R

L aeTas



K _'C‘omp‘or.xentUnits- ‘

- Parkingi_ - - Park N - Park

Authority _ Authority  Authority - .

s 5483 s s12120 S oses0l

Caam L

78356 3290354 22008 .

674,930 73,341,566 97113 . .

Cosast L 4ness
E 32,245 C 24643 . 4798
20,936 -

56,438 - . 148506 - - 52,484
78356 366491 - 22008 .

U sapus6. . 26568 22691

3

618,492 §° 3,193,060 -§ 44629



: CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

: FSTATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30,2005

"ProgramRévem'xés AR

Operating .~ . .- Capital .

Chai-g'e:s for - Grantsand - Grants a’n'd‘,; .

. Functions/Programs. =

Primary government: ..

Govemnmental activities: ~

_ General government® . <+ ... §
Public safety ' :
Public works )
Health and welfare
Culture and recreanon :
Education
Other
Interest on ]ong-term debt

B Ekﬁeﬂses:

(12,498,553)
(37.382,960)
- {11,246,585). .
5,734,941y " .
(4,516,159) - -
(114,075,223) .
(1,632,640)- -

" (3,696,603)

Services ~ Contributions Contributions

'S 8679296 $. 1439858 S . 528074 .
146,526 143419 0 oo

S U 308753 0 1,124,567

3610813 sl oo
S - 280916 4440124

5281664 - 38480093 . -
148575 L . - L —

Total governmental actlvmes

Busmess—type ac‘nvmes
Sewer
Water -

(190,783,664)

" (8,475,896)
©(5,542,801)

17,866,874 41,737,160 6,092,765 . -

10200355 . - . 910945
6724942 - - - - 1,768,890

Tot_éll businéss—typé aéﬁﬁﬁes )

(14,018,787)

16,934,297 . - 2,679,835 -

: Totalprimary gdvernm_eht‘ v

: Component Units:
_ Danbury Parking Authunty
Richter Park Autthority -
Tarrywile Park Authority "

(204,802,451)

(91,345) -
(1,790,200) -
(383,732) -

34,801,170 41,737,160 . 8,772,600

w330 o 160 o -
1565550 © - e e

119,488~ . © 7 245,000 - e

~ Total con'lponentuni»fs'l'v’ 8

(2,965.367)

$ 2508343 § 246,630 - § ‘ -

_ The n‘otcé' to the financial statements are an integral'part of this statemenrt:.

18

General réirenues

. Property taxes - : O
Grants and contributmns notresmcted to': e

- specific programs . o

Unrestricted investment eamm,,s

'Total general Tevenues'

. Change in net asset_s

 Net assets - beginning -

Net assets - ending- R



Net (Eii)enée) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets o
' S Component Units .

-~ Primary Government )

Governmental

. Activities © . Activities

- 'quiness‘-typ_e ’

Danbury
- Parking
Authority '

Richter
Park - -

Tarrywile ~

Totvalv' o

- (1851,325)

" Authority - . | Authority - T

(1,851,325): 8. . -0 $ - - . N
(36,993,015) - = T - - (36,993,015) . .- - -
. »(93723,265) . v o B 'v'x ’ (9,723,265):: S . . v_,
(1,230007) e (1,230,007) - - . B
204881 . oo | 204881 - - .
(10313466) . - (10313466) - N .
(1484065). - . .- (1,484,065) - - <
(3,696,603) . - (3,696,603) - K ,
7 (125,086,865) I - (125,086,365) - A -
TUUULT T 0644404 2,644,404 - - R
C. o 2950941 2,950,941 - . .
L 5,595,345 5,595,345 - - -
(125,086,865) 5595345 - (119,491,520) - - - N
- - - 33,590 - -
- - - (224,740) e
- - N N . - (19,244)
- - - (224,740) -

127888936 -

16494459 -
. 494,876

'1,335962

127,888,936

16494459 -
1,830,838 ¢

7215

1,853

(19244

145,719,357 494,876

146,214,233 . -

7,215 .

1,853

20,632,492

113,563,710, - 94,203,040

6,090,221 . -

. 26,722,713
207,766,750 .

40,805

577,687

. (222,887)

3415947 - - - -

100,293,261

234,489,463

. 3 618,492

ary

3,193,060

5

134,196,202 8§ -
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CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

o BALANCE SBEET GOVERNIMENTAL FUNDS
* June 30, 2005

Nonmajor ~

I O I

: ] Centufy 21 - Governmental -  Governmental
: - General =~ T PI Funds " Funds -~ - -
4Assets Ll e L T
Cash and cash equlvalents 12,696,295 § 4,007,631 $° 16154885 ~ § 32,858,811 -
- Receivables (net of allowances for : B e e e
collecnonlosses) i S S
Property taxes. - o - 2,470,434 e 2,470,434
Accounts receivable. . S 6,750,000 - ; 418,806 7,168,806 - -
State and federal governments = 14,796,854 - 85,761 75,973,782, 10,856,397 .
Other . S 1411411 - 63,600 - 1475011~
Inventones SRR - 41,641 . 41,641 -
Other assets . 24,775 - - - 24775
) Due ﬁ-om other funds - 10,581,189 . - - 52,129 10,633, 318
‘ Total assets 38.730.958 - § 4093392 % 22704843 § 65520,193 .
Liabili‘tiesj' i S S
Accounts payable . - - - 5180520 § 547,086 § 40105554 .. $. 9738260 .
Accrued wages , 3516947 -~ . - = 3,516,947
* Due to ather fands - 52,129 - 24,530 - - 6416992 - 6,493,651 -
- Unesrnedrevenues = .. © 10,055,150 S 1,597,221 0 11,652,371 0
Bond anticipation notespayable, - 5,950,000 6,898,000~ 12,848,000 .
' * Total liabilities 18,804,746 6,521,716 18,922,767 44249229
Fund Balances (Deﬁcxts)
Reserved for: S : R
Inventories e s 41,641 . 41641
- Encumbrances - © 1,481,018 - 519,491 CUILISLL - 2,111,690
 Continued appropriations 216,271 B _ - 216271 -
Permarient fund e - 1A77,174 L1477 -
CDBG Projects - - - 891,636 891,636
Unreserved, reported in: . R . o
" General fund . © 18,228,923 C e e 18,228,923
Special revenue funds- . e, 2,229,784 - 2,229,784
Capital projects funds - (2,947,815) (1,011,174) - (3,958 989)
_ Permanent fund e - - 41,834 41,834
" Total fund balances (deficits) 19,926,212 (2,428,324) 3,782,076 21,279,964 .
Total liabilities and fund
balances (deﬁmts) $ 38 730,958 $ 4,0'93,392 k3 22.704,843
Amounts reported for govemmental acnvmes in the statement of
- net assets are different becanse:
Capltal assets, net of accumulated depreclatxon of $130 707,779, purchased by
" governmental funds arereportedasexpcndxmres, however, the statement of - S e
_- net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the City as a whale: - e 186,784,755'_
Other long-term assets are not availzble to pay for current- -period N
" expenditures and, therefore, are notrecogmzed ) 13 162 903

Lcmg—term habllmes, including bonds payablc, are ot due and payable )

* in the current period and therefore are not reported in the fimds. (87 031 420)

T Net _a‘sséts of governmiental activities s 134 195 202

o The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.. - v
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CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT o

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

* For the Year Ended June 30, 2005~ .

: Gel_lLéfal

Century 2}1
) PI ’

- Governmental -
__Funds .

.- Nonmajor -~ .

.. "'T(:)ta‘l e ‘,

- ‘Governmental

Funds -~

Propertytaxes U8 128472200
~State and federal governments o 31,266,830
Licenses and permits ~ ~ ¢ . . - .0 5394512 .
‘Charges forservices - . .. 3368811 -
 Fines and penalties ol 984,552
Investmentincome - . 4 L 1,3359620
" Other - S SR
‘Contributions - . - 2,625,000

32,058

Cao7721

- 22,816,868
Co 153120
15,037,796

984,552 -

1368920
497,721
2,625,000

EXPENDITURES
Current: .

,General@o%mrhent e aa6262:
Public safety - - S T 21,196,989
Public works, . L 7,600,601 -
Healhand welfre -~ - - 3958011 -
Culture and recreation - - =~ -~ - 2,705,599 ..

Educaion . . - L 93,430,267

~ Pension and otheremployeebeneﬁts,.', - leomgor o
Come o mes

Debt service: :

Principal retirements . oo o 6322511
Interest and other charges .-~ = 2,877,558, o
. 11,266,910

Capital outlay T R . 1,329,999

Totalrevenues Lo T 173,447,957

28,400,655 -

asbens
2,071,275
. 97,7300 ¢

2,367,259

1,197,535 .

" 21,196,050

2525787

201934373 -

7,698,331

114,626,317

19,073,801
896,108 -

6,322,511

2877558
15,122,696

11,266,910

- 208,910,855

Total expendltures S 166,837,706

Revenues over (under)

(11,181,149)

30,806,239

expendltures , - 6610251 -

OTBER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) o
Transfersin - . S o
Transfers out. ~ S '. (682 468)

- Bond anticipation notes 1ssued RN L ECREE

Bond proceeds - o L T e
Repayment of bond anhmpanonnote R

Loan proceeds =~ - . L BT
Lease financing - EER =0 1,156,397 -

- 9,050,000

682,468

(0,405,584)

T1152,000
3,615,000 R
- (3,615,000) -

L et (3615000
© 1,500,000

U (6,976,482) -

682,468
| (682,468)
110,202,000
3,615,000 - -

1,500,000 -

1,156,397

- 9,050,000

. Total other ﬁnaucmg sources o © 473,929

Netchangemfundbalances : . 7,084,180 o

(2,131,149)

(297,175)

3,334,468 .-

928,884

12,858,397 -

FUN‘DBALANCES (DEFICITS), begmnmg . 12,842,032

FUNDBALANCES (DEFICITS), endmg S35 19926212

2,853,192

3782.076 -

15,398,049

The notes to the ﬁnancxal statements are an 1ntegral part of this statement

s

(2.428324) $

21279964

128472290 . -
54,169,459
5,400,824 -
8,406,607 . -

8,796,865 =
23,268,264

6520
3,903,134

5881915



B CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

o VRECONCILIATION OF TBE STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES
-/ AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS L
' TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES: =

" For the Year Ended June 30,2005

v ”Amounts reported for governmental act1v1t1es in the statement of act1v1t1es are d1fferent because -

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds -k . : | _>

- Governmental funds report caprtal outlays as expendltures However
_ in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over ;
' their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. - -
‘This is the amount by which caprtal outlays exceeded deprecratron in

the current penod

. Thenet effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital -
S assets (1 e, sales trade-ms and donatrons) is to increase net assets.

b 'Revenues in the statement of activities that do not prov1de current
ﬁnancral resources are not reported in the ﬁmds '

1 “The issuance of 1ong~term debt (e g bonds leases) prowdes current -
" financial resources to governmental finds, while the repayment of

 the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial -

" resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has -

| $ 5881 915‘,'.»'1'15:“‘-‘:

11563207
© 433003

5119782

- any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect .~ -

. of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt
- is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortizedin =~ -

~ the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these ...
- differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

(6787,930)

* Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not reqﬁire the

- use of current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as

expendltures n governmental ﬁmds

i ;-:: 'Cha.nge m net assets Of governmental actrv1t1es e

- Thenotes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.

I R

523 495

$ 20 632, 492




CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

STATEN[ENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED ;

V For the Year Ended June 30 2005 -

- ~ FUND BALANCES - BUDGETARY BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND

‘ 'REVENUES R

*General property taxes R
Federal and state govemments
Licenses and perrmits -
Charges for services _
Fines and penalties ..
Investment in'come'f._ '
Other =~ - - 7.

" Total revenues .

' EXPENDITURES
Current: . .. -

General government
Public safety
Public works .
Health and welfare - -
Culture and recreanon
Educa‘aon .
Pension and other employee beneﬁts

. Ofther-

" Capital outlay

Contingency -

" Debtservice: . -
Principalreﬁrerhentsﬁ -
Interest -

Total expendltures

Revenues over (under) expenditures :

' s UNRESERVED BUDGETARYFUND
BALANCE begmmng : :

. Actual |

" Variance With -~

‘Total unreserved budgetary fund balance ) BN

Less Nonbudgetary accruals and reserves‘ o

UNR.ESERVED FUND BALANCE endmg.f“l o

Budgeted Amounts - . **" 'Budgetary . Final Budget -
Original = - Final " Basis . Positive (Negative) . -
§ 128446048  §128446,048  § 128472200  § - 26242
24,497,027 125,710,064. 26,541,876 T 831812 .
3,872,312 3,872,312 . 5394,512 . 1,522, 200‘[‘-_3 S
3,000,308° 3,939,659 ©  5993811° . - 2054152
1,176,000 1,176,000 - 984,552 © . (191,448)
200,000 200,000 13359627 1,135,962
- 37,500 37,500 - e o (37,500)
161,229,195 163,381,583 - 168, 723 o3 5,341,420
TS0L112  TOBLTAS . 7660774 . 320975
20,658,871 . 21,542,681 21,148,464 - 394217 .
6,940,646 7,689,344 7,596,982 . .. 92362 .
2,450,299 2,510,297 2434731 75,566
2,650,189 1 2,702,976 ©2,693,560. .. 9416 .
89,708,575~ 90,708,575 90,694,338 14,237
19,704,312 - 19,430,650 19,073,439 357211
945,781 | 963,981 870,021 . 93,960
- 162,062 162062 - -
1,428,754 553,310 - 553,049 - - 261
| 6232350 . 6269462 6269462
3,008,306 2,971,194 2,877,558 93,636
161,229,195 163,486,281 162,034,440 1,451,841
S - 5 (104698) 6688563 § 6793261
S 12,039357
18,727,020
' (498907)
$ 18228023 "

_The nbtesvto the financial tatements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

= STATEN[ENT OF NET ASSETS PROPRIETARY FUNDS

. June 30, 2005

Busfnes;s-Typé Activities - Entcrpfiéé Funds® = .

Water - . "'Sewer" o Tota}s",‘:

o ASSETS -

, Cashandcasheqmvalen’ts o g T ATI6I69 8t 3885670 5 8,601,839

, Recelvables (net ofallowances for co]lectmn losses) , IR L ) T S )
 Unbilled services . LU 1189528 (1094626 2284154
" Special assessmentsrecewable o CLa o 1357260 - ¢ 307,324 © 443,050

‘ Duefromotherfunds R T C P P T 36,000 =~ . 36,000

CInvemtories s Tioeonto e L 341804 s . 341,804 -

Totalcurrentassets S 1069516 . 6466705 13,536,221

Noncurrent assets

Capital assets (met of accumulated deprecmnon) : - S 66,343;605' o 79,472,684 145,816,289 - :

- Special assessments receivable S e 1,030,960 3,363,774” - 4394734

' Other assets (et of accumulated amomzatxon) I : 916,325 ’ 81,367 997, 692 .

Totalnoncurrentassets S ‘_ R 68,290,890 82,917,825 = 151,208, 715

Totalassets e 75360406 89384530 164744936.

| LIABILITIES -

}Cum:nthabﬂmes ST B T R AN
Accrued Habilities . T s55856 0 0 234150 . 790,006

Accommtspayable - . .. .. .0 810853 . 171990 .. . 982,843 .

Duetootherfunds = o 0 1,819,906 2,350,000° - 4,169,906 : i
. Uneamedrevenues . .- S S e 6,124969 0 0 6,124,969
: Notespayable current. R 2,619382 . . 2619382

Totalcurrenthabllmes ST 3,186,615 11,500491 14,687,106
Noncm'renthabﬂmes , e ‘ S U o
Notes payable (netofunamortxzeddlscount) B . Sl 18107078 18,107,078
Bonds payable (net of unamortized discount) . - TR 20,734,400 10,111,000 - 3(‘),845,400']{:‘

.- Otherhabﬂmes(netofaccmnulatedamornzanon) I 738371 - 737200 . 812,091
. Total noncurrent liabilities ~ L o 21,472,771 28,291,798 49,764,569

Totalhabﬂmes T oa659386 39792289 GAASLETS

B NET ASSETS

Investedmcapltalassets(netofrelateddcbt) S 48 793205 - 51622914 - 100416119
Umesmcted(deﬁcn) S e e s 1907,815 - (2,030,673) . (122,858) ..

Totalnetassets e v 7% 50,701,000 § - 49,592,241 _ $ 100,293,261

The notcs to the ﬁnancxal statements are an mtegral paIt of ﬂllS statement
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"'CITY.IOF DANBURY' CONNECTICUT» .

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - ; .
PROPRIETARY FUNDS =~ : : T

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Business-Type Activities - bEnt'erpﬂLséFuﬁd‘s S

PR , v ‘Water . ' Sewer - - Totals
OPERATINGREVENUES. .~ RSN
. Chargesforservices ... S 6724942 § 9283296 § 16,008,238
Septic and comnection fees © .. - " C - 926,059 926,059

Total operatmgrevenues T 6724942 10,209,355 16,934,297 -

OPERATINGEXPENSES = S e
Salaries, b_eneﬁtsand‘claams R 2,053,813 . .. - . . 2053813 °

~Materialsa;ndsupp1iesf’ o AT R ; __414,69»8", b el 414,698 -

‘Depreciation . . o . 1271149 2,671,439 3,942,588
Utilities . . T S N T o 254,582 - 254582
Adxmmstranon and operatlon s - PO S ‘ ‘ 635,310 - 5,023,728 5,659,038

Total operatmg expenses o : .- 4,629,552 7,695,167 12,324,719

: Operatmgmcome  ; _ . , 2,095,390 - 2,5144133 ‘ 4,609,573 .

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) _ B o .
Interestincome -~ - . S 1494700 - 345406 ¢ 494 876 -
Interest expense = - ' R o . (913,339)  (780,729) (1,694 068)

Total nonoperating

- Tevemnes (expenses) ... AT (763.869)  (435323)  (1,199,192) .

Netmcome(loss)before » : R o o PR L
capltalcontnbutmns L S 1,331,521 2,078,865 - 3,410,386 -

‘ .CAPITALCONTRIBUTIONS R 1,768,890 010045 2679835 .

Changemnetassets o . . 3,100=‘4,HE » 2:989;31(5 6>090,2.215‘v

FUNDNETASSETS begmmng L U 47600609 46602431 94203,040 .

FUNDNETASSETS endmg o ,v o s 5070 5 49592241 $100293.261

, The notes to the ﬁnancxal statements are an mtegral part of thxs statement.



CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPR]ETARY FUNDS

B For the Year Ended June 30 2005

Cash Flows From Operatmg Actlvmes e
' Recelpts from customers and users S
' Payments to suppliers © . il

- Payments to employees -

: Net cash provxded by operatmg actwmes o

B Cash Flows From Capltal and Related Fmancxng Actmtles e

- Pnnclpal payments on debt
" Interest paid on debt
- . Capital contributions - R
© Purchase of capital assets . .
B Net cash used i in capltal and related
V ﬁnancmg actlvmes ' '

©Cash Flows From Investmg Achvmes
. Interest recexved on investments -

- Net cash prowded by mvestmg actmtles‘,;v ;

i Net decrease in cash and‘ :
- cash equlvalents R

: Cash and Cash Eqmvalents '
' Begmmng '

Endmg

, i Reconcmatmn of Operatmg Income to Net Cash
" Provided by Operating Actmtles o
Operating income ‘

- Adjustrents to reconcile operatmg income to net : » ;

cash provided by operatin g actmues
Depreciation : ;
~ Changesin assets and habﬂmes
Increase in accounts receivable B »
Increase in other receivables.
" Increase in inventories -~ -
Decrease in other assets *~
- Increase in accrued expenses
" Increase in due to other funds
o Decrease in deferred revenue
" Decrease in other liabilities

‘ Net cash provxded by operatxhg actxvmes

" The notes to the financial statemerits are an integral part of this statement.” -
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Busmess-Type Actmtles Enterpnse Funds

o Water -

Sewer . - Totals
§ 6171373 S 8199221 § 14,370,594,',"“ L
(527,698) ~  (4,857,383) . (5,385,081)
(2223,785) - . - (2,223,785) -
T3.419.800 3,341,838 6,761,728
(233797 (2963382) - (4,197,179)
(913339) . - (780,729) - (1,694,068)
1,768,890 - 910945 - 2,679,835 &
(3,720,077) -~ (2,544318). - (6,264,395) .
(4,098,323) (5377484) ~ (9.475,.80T)
149470 345406 494876
149,470 345 406 494,876 -
(528963) (1,690240)  (2,219,203)
5245132 5575910 10,821,042
$ 4716160 S 3885670 $ - 8.601.839
§ 2095390 S 2514188  § 4609578
C1271,149 0 2,671,439 3,042,588
(173,645) (963873) (1,137,518)
(379,777) (558462) (938239)
- (45.323) R TR CX:7) R
137444 12205 - 149649
605,502 - 175467 780,969
19906 . - 19,906:
C - (s00004)  (500,004)
S (10756) o (9,122) (119,878)
$ 3419890 $ 3341838 S 6.761,728



' .CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

- STATEIV[ENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2005 -

" ASSETS..

Cash and cash equwalents

Investments, at fan' Value
Common stock
Bond_s and notes o
Mutual funds
. Private hedge fund

Total mvestments o

Cdntnbutlon reccwable

Accrued interest and dl’VldCﬂdS -

Pendmg sales - o
Total assets -

LIABILITIES

" Pending pu;rchases
" QOther liabilities - -
Due to other funds -

Net Assets Held in Trust for ?ehsibﬁ‘ L

Benefits and Other Purposes

B The notes to the ﬁnanc1a1 staternents are an mtegral part of this statement

o Pensibn:}_“»‘ o
. TrustFunds

anate

Purpose i
TrustFund = . -

' Agency v E ) o

1,263

$ 3097316 .

3

16,293,823

s

101,249,555

1,156,201

44,354,496 - -
34,120,387 - -
34,505,222 - -
214,229,660 - -
3,911,000 . - -
660,807 - -

236,251,491 -

292461

T3,097316

3,001,555

5,761

2,922,461

233,329,’030'

$

e

3,097,316

Y



o CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT
, ’ STATENIENT OF CHANGES IN F[DUCIARY NET ASSETS FIDUCIARY FUNDS
: For the Year Ended June 30 2005 o

anate B

Pensmn ‘ ' Purpose

" “Trust Funds : Trust Fund

'Addmons -
Con’mbunons

_ Employer : . : ; . $ 3,911,000 $A’ -
 Planmembers . . oo 617410 0 Coooe e

Total contrlbntmns N L o 4528410 . - - S

Investment Income e T
. Netapprccmnonmfauvalue Coe T e e T e T
Cofinvestments . 206770000 -

Interest and dlwdend,vs".} G o o 5184,594 o2

Less investment expenses: R

- oBseled ;o L

.Invesmentmanageméntfecs’},‘:: L : '  E S 1605 9865‘ S .. o

Neti‘,njves‘tm‘entfihcdmje: v o 24,255,708 B

Total additions . . 28784118 . 22

ﬁednétidns, o

" Benefits Paid R 10787979 102 e "

' Chaﬂg’éiﬁnetésséts_ v S ‘1‘7,996,13.9_' (80)

: ‘-"Net Assets o

Bcgmmng ofyear e o 215332801 - 1343

Endofyear ’v ) : : o $2v33,329‘,'(v)30"' g -"‘1,263

L Thc notes to‘the ﬁﬁaricial ététémcn_tsv are an intégrai part bf this Statémént. o
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o CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005 :

B the 1 Summal'y of slgmﬁcant Accountmg POhCleS :

- :_}"Reportmg entlty

" The C1ty was’ created in 1889 and operates under an elected Mayor/Councﬂ form of govemment
~ The City’s major operations include education’ services, health, social services, public safety,
-~ public roads, culture: and recreat1on pubhc 1mprovements planmng and zonmg, and general Co
adm1mstrat1ve semces . : :

| 'Accoun’ong prmmples generally accepted in the Umted States of Amenca requn'e that the'-f.fs-. L

~ reporting entlty include (1) the primary government (2) organizations for which the primary

o government is ﬁnanc1a.11y accountable and (3) other organizations for which the nature and o

significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusmn would. N

“cause the reportmg enttty s ﬁnanc:lal statements to be nnsleadmg or mcomplete

- As requn'ed by accountmg prmmples generally accepted n the Umted States of Amerlca, these
. financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is

considered to be financially accountable. The City’s component units are discretely presented .

' component units, which are reported in separate columns in the combined financial statements to-~ .
o emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. Each component unit has a June 30 year- -
- end, except the Stanley L. Richter Memonal Park Authonty (‘Rlchter Park”), Wthh has a.

o | »December 31 year—end

: Dlscretely Presented Component Umts

, The Redevelopment Agency of the C1ty is govemed by members who are appomted by the‘» S
" Mayor with the approval of the Common Council. - The Redevelopment Agency has the absolute -

- authority (including the right to exercise eminent domain) to acquire, ‘renovate, and resell -

- property within a blighted area legally designated as the redevelopment district. The-

Redevelopment Agency does mnot. have any assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, nor |

expenditures. ' As such no ﬁnan01a1 statements emst or are avaﬂable for T.hJS component unitasit -~

has no act1v1ty

. .“The Tarrywﬂe Park Authonty (“Tarrywﬂe”) is responszble for admlmstenng, operatmg and ’

o maintaining Tarrywile Park, including all structures and land. The land and original buildings .
~are owned by the City. - Tarrywile is govemed by members that are appointed by the Mayor and - -

~ confirmed by the Common Council on a rotating basis. The City is potentially liable for any
_operating deficits and prov1des substantial funding to Tarrywile to- support its operatmns

B Tarrywile is presented as a govemmental fund type The mformatlon presented for Tarrywﬂe 1s

for the year ended June 30, 2005

) _— .



‘, CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

 NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEN[ENTS Contmned o e

R June 30, 2005

The Danbury Parkmg Authonty (‘Parkmg Authonty’) is responsﬂ)le for estabhshmg and AT
* operating parking facilities within the City in a manner similar to a private business enterprise. .

where the costs of provrdmg services to the general public are financed through user charges. .- B

~ The Parking Authonty is governed by members which are appointed by the Mayor and -~

confirmed by the Common Council. - The Parking Authorrty has the potential to provide specific T

financial benefit to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the City. The Parking Authorityis =~ '

presented as a propnetary fund type.. The mformatlon presented for the Parkrng Authonty is for o
the year ended June 30 2005 »

Rlchter Park is respons1ble for mdependent control over the operatlon of the Stanley L Rmhter: o

 Memorial Park. = Richter Park was donated to the City of Danbury for use as a recreational -~ = -

' facility in 1971. The board members are selected on a rotating basis by the Mayor and =~
~ confirmed by the Common Council. The City is potentially liable for any operating deficits and . =~

provides substantial funding, in the form of operating and capital grants, to Richter Park to-

. support its operations. Richter Park is presented as a proprietary fund type. The mformatron R

- presented for Richter Park is  for the year ended December 31, 2004 -

B Complete financial statements for each of the md1v1dua1 component umts may be obtamed at the .
.entrtles adnnmstratrve offices: o e S .

o fTarrlele Park Authorlty h f - Stanley L. Rlchter Memonal Park Authonty
- 70 Southern Boulevard E 100 Aunt Hack Road :
_Danbury, CT 06810 " Danbury,CT 06811

. Danbury Park.mg Authonty | - BREEE
21 Delay Street '

f, Danbury, Cr 06810

k . 1 omt ventures and related orgamzatlons

' The Candlewood Lake Authonty, ‘the Housatomc Resources Recovery Authonty, and the’ o o
Housatonic Area Regional Transit District are joint ventures of the City. The Housmg Authonty; ST

- isa related orgamzanon See Note 15 in. the notes to ﬁnancral statements.

o Government-Wlde and Fund Fmancml Statements

"“The government~Wlde ﬁnanmal statements report mformanon on all of the non—ﬁdumary L
‘activities of the primary government and its component units. _For the most part, the effect of -~ © .
~interfund activity has been removed from these statements Governmental activities, which - .~
-~ normally are supported by taxes and mtergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from

business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

- Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component’ L o

A umts for Wthh the pnmary government is ﬁnancrally acconntable

. 3_0::.. e



. CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT -

- ‘NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Contmued
' June30 2005 N :

o ; vThe statement of actlvrttes demonstrates the degree to Whlch the dlrect expenses of a g;ven: .

 function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly -

’_ identifiable with a specific function or _segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or apphcants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods; services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2)- grants and contributions that are restricted to

meeting the operational or capital reqmrements of a particular function or segment. - Taxes and

v_ ~ other’ 1tems not properly mcluded among program revenues are reported mstead as generalr', k
revenues o : L :

, ‘:Separate fund ﬁnanc1a1 statements are prov1ded for governmental funds propnetary funds and ‘{,

fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide - financial

_ statements.. Major individual governmental funds and major md1v1dua1 enterpnse ﬁmds are
: reported as separate columns n the fund ﬁnancral statements

Measurement Focus, Basxs of Accountmg, and Fm_a_ncml Statement "'l“’resentativoni »: o

" The government-wide financial ~statements are reported using the economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary -

" fund financial statements. Agency funds have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded
‘when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of

 related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
 levied for. Grants and similar items are recogmzed as revenue as soon as all ehg1b1hty o

requlrements nnposed by the provrder have been met '

' Governmental fund ﬁnanc1a1 statements are reported usmg the current ﬁnanc1a1 resources ;]

‘measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. ‘Revenues are recognized as . -
~ soon as they are both measurable and. available. Revenues are considered to be available when =

~ they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to bé available if they are collected

~within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when B

a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well’
 as expenditures. related - to compensated absences, landfill closure costs and cIaJrns and
Judgments are recorded only when payment 1s due (matured) .

N Property taxes When 1ev1ed for mtergovemmental revenues When ehglblhty reqmrements are

met, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period, if

‘available.. All other revenue items are con31dered to be measurable and avatlable only when cash -
is received by the C1ty ' .



FCITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT |
 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued
' vJune 30, 2005 .

B The Crty reports the followmg maj or governmental funds

" The General Fund is the govemment’s pnmary operatmg fund It accounts for all ﬁnanc1al '_ b_ |
resources of the general govemment except those requ1red to be accounted for in another S

s fund.

S »The C'entury 2] P] Fund accounts for the proceeds of specrﬁc general obhgatron bonds for SRR

o vanous pl‘OJ jects throughout the Crty

The C1ty reports the followmg maj or propnetary funds

‘: .:The Water Fund accounts for the operatlon of the Crty s water supply system It is |

- a ’ mdependent in terms of its relationship to other City ﬁmctrons Its operatrons are ﬁnanced o
ﬁom drreet eharges to the users of the service. y . L

- _The Sewer Fund accounts for the operatrons of the C1ty s Wastewater treatment system The

City, through Veolia Water North America - Northeast, LLC (“Veolia Water”), operates its L
own sewage treatment plant, sewage pumping stations, and collection system.:- It is =

- independent in terms of its relationship to other City functions. Veolia Water finances all : |
~ - aspects of the sewage system operatlons and recovers such costs through direct charges bllled
B through the C1ty to the users of the semce - :

Addrtronally, the Clty reports the followmg fund types

} ) : The Przvate—Purpose T yust Fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for use
" bya not—for-proﬁt organization devoted to educating the public about the government’s

“historic city hall by means of gmded tours, pubhcatrons and special events. All resources of

- the fund, including any earmngs on invested resources, may be used to support the
orgamzatlon s activities. There is no reqmrement that any portron of these resources be-
. preserved as caprtal T : 3

. The Penszon T rust Funds account for the actl\llttes of the Ctty s six deﬁned beneﬁt pensmn

‘ - plans, which accumulate resources for pension beneﬁt payments to quahﬁed employees LT S

o _Pens1on ﬁJnds follow the accrual bas1s of accountmg
 The Agency Funds account for monies held as a custodran for outsrde student groups -

Agency funds have no- measurement focus and are reported on the accrual basis of
o accountmg ' : : s

R R
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- June 30, 2005 o

anate—sector standards of accountmg and ﬁnanc:1a1 reportmg issued pnor to December 1 1989 IR

. generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to.

the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental =
- Acoountmg Standards Board. = Governments’ also have the option of followmg subsequent

‘private-sector guidance for the proprietary fund financial statements, subject to this same -
hm;ttatron The government has elected not to follow subsequent pnvate -sector gmdance Lo

. As a general rule thie effect of mterfund act1v1ty has been ehmmated from the government-vsude .

financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the enterprise funds °

and various other functions of the government E]Jmmatron of these charges Would drstort the o

direct costs and pro gram revenues reported for the vanous functlons concerned

Amounts reported as pro gram revenues include 1) charges to customers or apphcants for goods

services, or pnvrleges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and - -

contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as: '
general revenues rather than as program revenues leewrse general revenues mclude all taxes '

Proprietary ﬁmds drstmgulsh operatmg revenues and | expenses from nonoperatmg 1tems |

- Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the - B
- fund’s principal ongomg operations. The principal operating revenues of the funds are charges
to customers for services. Operatmg expenses for the funds include the cost of operatlons and

maintenance, provision for doubtful accounts, and depreciation on caprtal assets. All revenues -
and expenses not meeting thls definition are reported as nonoperatmg revenues and expenses

" When both restncted and unrestncted resources are avaﬂable for use, 1t is the C1ty ] pohcy to use '. R
- restricted resources ﬁrst, then unrestricted resources as they are needed _ -

Accountmg estlmates

" The preparatlon of ﬁnanc1al statements in oonformlty thh accountlng pnnc1p1es generallyf .
accepted in the United States of America requires ‘management to make estimates and -

- assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of -

' contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts -

of revenues;. expenses dunng the reportmg penod Actual results could drffer from those

esumates B

Property taxes

o Property taxes are assessed as of October 1 and levred on the followmg July 1 Taxes are due n.

four installments on July 1, October 1, January 1 and April 1. Supplemental motor vehicle taxes
are due i in full T anuary 1. Lrens are reeorded during the month of J une. :

T
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Cash equlvalents

o ,:: The Crty consrders all hrghly hquld mvestments and those Wrth or1g1nal matuntres of three."‘

- months or less to be cash eqmvalents

o Investments

L "'Investments all of Wthh are held in the pens1on trust ﬁmds are. stated at fa1r value based on _' ’

_ | - quoted market prices. ‘The pension funds allow for investments in certain hedge funds. All such. .
. assets are carned at fau value losses are mcurred only up to the assets mvested -

_ i 'The Connectrcut State Treasurer s Short-Term Investment Fund is an mvestment pool managed ,
" by the State of Connecticut Office of the State Treasurer. Investments must be made in-

. instruments authonzed by Connecticut - General Statutes 3-27c¢c through 3-27e. Investment . |

- guidelines are adopted by the State Treasurer The fair Value of the posmon in the pool is the-
_' same as the value of the pool shares g , :

The balanoe of the pooled ﬁxed mcorne mvestments were mvested ina pool s1mllar to a 2a—7 . -
T The farr Value of the posmon in the pool 1s the same as the value of the pool shares : 3

: Inventorles

: Inventones of governmental fund types are stated at the lower of cost or market usmg the .. -
T 'consump’uon method on the ﬁrst~m, ﬁrst—out basis. : L

N Inventones of proprretary ﬁmds are stated at the lower of cost (ﬁrst-m ﬁrst—out) or market

B 'Capltal assets

Caprtal assets whlch mclude property, plant eqmpment and mt'rastructure assets (e g, roads N

- bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business- . .-

type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in proprietary fund -~
~ financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,: =~

‘individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.

Purchased and constructed assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if ~ =

- purchased or constructed Donated caprtal assets are recorded at estrrnated fair value at the date -
o ofdona‘non » : SR :

| The costs of norrnal mamtenance and repan's that do not add to the Value of the asset or - -
1 matenally extend assets hves are not capltahzed L : ’
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Ma]or outlays for capltal assets and nnprovements are capltahzed as pl‘O_] ects are constructed
. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of busmess-type act1v1t1es 1s
included as part of the capltahzed value of the assets constructed :

. ~_'.Cap1ta1 assets of the C1ty are depremated usmg the stra1ght—11ne method over the followmg
estlmated useful hves ‘

'Buﬂdmgs andlmprovements j R o 15-45 |

:-+~ - Landimprovements = .~ - . - 20
- Distribution andcollectlon systems 50 100 .
- Infrastructure - R 10-100 .
vMachlneryandequlpment oo 5200
 Other lfk;541~ﬂ_1}3f-10*:hg1;a-;
Furmture andﬁxtures | " o - e 20}2 e

: vCapltal assets are reported as expendrtures and no deprec1at10n expense 1s reported 1n the o
‘ governmental fund financial statements. S '

Compensated absences

'C1ty employees accumulate vacatmn and s1ck leave hours for subsequent use or for payment f
~ upon termination or retirement. Vacation and sick leave expenses to be paid in future penods are

- accrued when incurred in the government—vvlde and proprietary fund financial statements. A B ‘.
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only for the amounts that have .

h become due. Amounts for compensated absences are generally llqmdated by the general ﬁlnd
» Long~term obhgatxons | | | | |

In the government—mde and propnetary fund ﬁnan01a1 statements long-term debt and other S
- long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,

business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.” Bond premiums’ and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds usmg"
the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
- discount. Bond i issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortlzed over the term of -
© ‘the related debt ' ST L » -

In the fund ﬁnanc1al statements governmental fund types recogmze bond prermums and,' ,
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued, including capital leases, is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
"debt issuances are: reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other ﬁnancmg uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds rece1ved are reported as debt serv1ce expendltures :
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" Pensron Trust Funds

T Employee conmbutlons are Teco gmzed n the penod in Wh1c:h the contr1but1ons are due ,
~ Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and the City has made a formal
~ commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and reﬁmds are recogruzed when due and L

' payable m accorda;nce w1th the terms of each plan ‘ ‘ '

o Governmental Funds e

‘ 'Expenchtures are recogmzed when they are pald or are’ expected to be pard wuh current IR

ava:llable resources o

| ‘ Fundmg pohcy

© The City funds the contr1but10ns to 1ts pensron plans based on the actuarlal requn‘ed o

contnbutlon o

- 'Encumbrances

:Encumbrances represent commltments related to unperformed contracts for goods or semces o

- Encumbrance accountmg, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commltments for the .

.‘ expenchture of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is . =~
utilized in the governmental funds. - Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported asa L

. reservatmn of fund balance as they do not constrtute expendltures or habﬂmes

- vFund Equlty and NetAssets '

. In the Government—W1de Fmanc1al Statements and in the Proprletary Fund Statements, net assets o
. are classnied in the followmg categones e : _ c

FInvested in Capztal Assets, Net of Related Debt - ThlS category groups all caprtal assets b;b

- including infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated deprec1atron and the o
- outstanding balances of debt that are attnbutable to the acqmsrtron, construcﬁon or .

nnprovement of these assets reduces thls category

Restrzcted Net Assets - Tlns category represents the net assets of the C1ty, Wlnch are .
restncted by donors fora specrﬁc purpose. Lo »

Unrestrzcted Net Assets or Deﬁczts - Thls category represents the net assets of the Clty, o :
. wl:uch are not restncted fore any prOJect or other purpose DeﬁCIts reqmre future fundmg :
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In the fund ﬁnanc1a1 statements fund balances of governmental funds are classﬁied in two‘_ e

separate categones The two categones and then' general meamngs are as follows
i Reserved Fund Balance - md1cates that por’uon of fund eqmty Whlch has been legally -
- segregated for specxﬁc purposes - , -

| ._ - Unreserved Fund Balance/Def cu‘s mdacates that pomon of fund equlty Whlch 18 avatlable o '-
for appropnatlon and expendtture in future penods A deﬁc1t will requ;u‘e future fundmg h

o Note 2 Reconcmatmn of Government—Wlde and Fund Fmanc1al Statements .

Explanatmn of certam dlfferences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the =
. government—wxde statement of net assets ' - - : T

The governmental fund balance sheet mcludes a reconc111at10n between fund balance - total

‘governmental funds, and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-\mde o

' statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities; -
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not: -
reported in the funds ”? The detatls of this ($87 031 420) difference are as follows ’

' Bondspayable - ’ ’ . (66 211 450) o
. Less: Deferred charge for issuance costs (to be amoruzed S
_ overlifeofdebt) = SR 949,850 '
-~ Add: Issuance premium (to be amomzed over hfe of debt) S (1,899,212)
- Deferred revenue, not related to debt D : - 1,936,528
~  Capital leases payable - T (3,451,078)
. Notes payablé T (37,112)
' Compensated absences = - ..o - (525,998)
- Landfill closure L e M - (13,789,243) -
Accrued expenses . oo oo 1(2,503,705)
-YHUD Sectton 108 loans o S o (1,500,000)

vNet ad;ustment to reduce fund balanee total vovernmental funds o o
to arrive at net assets governmental act1v1t1es j - :‘ ‘ (87 031 420)‘~ ”

Explanatlon of certam dlfferences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, .
expendltures, and changes in fund balances and the government—vnde statement of
actlwtles R : '

The governmental fund statement of Tevenues, expendltures and ehanges in fund balances_
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and }
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of o
activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds Teport capltal o
outlays as expend1h1res However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
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. allocated over their estnnated useful hves and reported as deprematron expense ” The detarls of L

thls $11 563 207 drfference are as follows

o Deprecnatron expense L T o ';vv(6,811,2‘70)' .

. Net adjustment to increase net changes in ﬁmd balances total
' - governmental funds to arnve at changes in net assets of e
governmental act1v1t1es __'.‘ R f o R »j’f.i*: .$_7 ll 563 207

. Another element of that reconc1hat10n states that “the issuarice of long—term debt (e g bonds

" leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the - S o

principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

* Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the " .
- effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued; . =

 whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The detalls of -
thls $(6 787 930) dtfference are as follows : - S .

Debtrssued ormcurred e e r D T e
- Issuance ofbonds S P S ) $; , (10,2025000):__. :
Premiums (331618

| ,Bond1ssuanc'e costs. o PR f ' (569,077) - - o

o Capltal leases - P (l 156 397)",“ o

Pnnc1pal repayments :

st debt_ e I o 5,769,462 |
Capltal leases N T U N R C._ o 1204700 0 0

Net adJustrnent to decrease net changes in fund balances D .
- total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of L
governmental actrvrtres Y . .8 (6 787 930)

Another element of that reconcrhatlon states that “Sorne expenses reported in the staternent of R

activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as - -

expendrtures n governmental ﬁmds ” The details of this $(523 495) dlfference are as follows '
Cornpensated absences _ : $ 609 772
Other hab1hﬁes ” :i ST T Cne e (86,277);,

Net adJustment to decrease net changes in ﬁmd balances total
governmental funds to arrive at changes n net assets of

3g
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Note 3 Budgets and Budgetary Accountmg

i The C1ty follows procedures in estabhshmg the formal (as amended) budgetary data reﬂected m o

 the ﬁnan01a1 statements for the General Fund The procedures are as. follows

L V Pnor to Apnl 7 the Mayor subn:uts proposed operatlng budgets to the Comrnon Counc11 :
. for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The Board of Education has the
. same duties and follows the same procedures with respect to the budget of the Board of

" Education as ‘those required of the Mayor. The operating budgets include proposed; o
‘expenditures and the means of financing them; however, capital lease acqmsmons and: -

state on—beha]f payments are not mcluded in the operatmg budget

2. Upon recelpt of the proposed budgets the Common Counc11 pubhshes a nouce of the L -
o proposed budgets and a pubhc heanng to be held no later than May 1 : R

3. No later than May 15 the budgets are legally enacted through Common Councrlb v
B resoluuon ’

4. The legal level of budgetary control is at the department level. The Mayor 18 authonzed 3
' ' to transfer budget amounts within departments and the Common Council is authorized to
transfer budget amounts between departments within any fund as well as any
supplemental appropriations that amend the total expenditures of any budgeted fund.

During the year, several supplemental appropriations were necessary; the effect of the o

amendments increased budgeted expenditures by apprommately $2 257 ,086 and alsoh
.mcreased budgeted revenues approxnnately $2 152 388. o

- 5. : o Formal budgetary accountmg is employed as a management control thhm the C1ty for. |
" the General Fund and certain spec1a1 revenue funds. - Annual operating budgets are

*adopted each fiscal year through passage of an annual budget ordinance and amended as o
required. The General Fund budget is adopted on a modified accrual basis of accountmg, o
except that encumbrances and continued - appropriations are treated as budgeted

- expenditures in the year of incurrence of the commitment to purchase and certain .

employee benefits are budgeted on the cash basis of accountmg (non-GAAP basis).

- Budgetary comparisons in- the financial statements are - presented pursuant to theyi y :

. apphcable budgetary bas1s referred to above -

S 6. Except for purposes Wthh are to be ﬁnanced by the issuance of bonds or by specral -
- assessment, no money can be disbursed without an authorized appropriation in any fiscal -
~ © year. A contingency fund may be used for emergency appropnatlons however, -
. expendltures may not be charged directly to this fund. ' An appropriation and transfer to.
the expendlng fund rnust be approved by the Common Councﬂ o
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A All unencumbered appropnatrons except for contmued appropnatlons lapse at the end of S -

'each fiscal year

: 8. Contmued appropnatlons represent approved appropnatlons ﬁom the current or pnor.;[ P

years’ budgets for construction or other permanent improvement projects. In accordance

o with the City’s Charter, these appropriations do not lapse until the purpose for which the .

‘appropriation was made has been accomplished or abandoned.: - Any such project is .
deemed to be abandoned if three years have elapsed without any expendlture from, or::

* encumbrance of, the appropnatlon At June 30 2005 there was $216 271 in contmued RS .

- appropnatmns

A reconcrhatldn of Generalb Fund cperatron"s’v”presented on a budgetary basis to the amounts = o
presented in the fund financial statements in accordance with accountmg prmcrples generally%. _

accepted in the United States of Amenca (“GAAP”) is as follows

B General Fund

- Expendltures
-+ Encumbrances -

and Transfers . |

_ S : _ Revenues’ - Out :
vBalance budgetaryba515 L3 168723003 § 162,034,440
v_Encumbrances and contmued appropnatlons} S 1_; - >' o

- June 30, 2004 -l 01,080,103 S
June 30, 2005 e (897289
B State Teachers® Refirement onbehalf R b
‘ payments notrecogmzed forbudgetary B A R
. purposes. - 3,203,000 - 3,203,000 . - o
o _v‘kOn-behalfpayments pard du'ectlybythe F T S
. Department of Public Health to WIC
rec1p1ents not recogmzed forbudgetary LI S T S S T
~purposes - s 1,521,954 0 1,521,954
»vb'bPurchases ofequlpmentundercapltallease t o T R
- obligations, notrecogmzedforbudgetary.
puposes . - o0 L156397 . - L156397
Net ofaccruals not recogmzed for budgetary{”i':». . -

’Bala.nce GAAPbas15 8 174604354 $ 167,520,174
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Specxal revemxe funds . .

o The Clty does not have legally adopted annual budgets for 1ts specral revenue funds Budgets for : o
the various special revenue funds that are unhzed to ‘account for spec1ﬁc grant programs are '

established i in accordance with the requirements for the grantor agenc1es Such budgets are non— o
lapsmg and may compnse more than one fiscal year : _ e -

Caprtal prOJects funds

- Legal authonzatmn for expendrtures of cap1tal prOJects ﬁmds 18 prowded by the related bond 'b; : |
- ordinances and/or intergovernmental grant agreements Capital appropnatlons do not lapse untrl, PR

completron of the apphcable proj jects.

h ‘Note 4. Cash and Investments

‘Degoszts The C1ty has a pohcy that depos1ts can mclude demand and savmgs accounts and"
~ certificates of deposit with Connecticut’ banks. City policy adopts the State of Commecticut
requirements that each depository maintain segregated collateral in an amount equal toa deﬁned' -

- percentage of 1ts pubhc deposrts based upon the bank s nsk based cap1ta1 ratio.

“Invesnnents The mvestment and cred1t nsk pohc1es of the Clty conform to the poh01es as set o

forth by the State of Connecticut. The C1ty policy allows investments in the following: (1) -
obligations of the United States and its agencies; (2) highly rated obligations of any state of the -

United States or of any political subdivision, authority or agency thereof; and (3) shares or other -

interests in custodial arrangements or pools maintaining constant net asset values and in hlghlyﬂ o

rated no-load open end money market and mutual funds (with constant or fluctuating net asset -
* values) whose portfolios are limited to obligations of the United States and its agencies, and
repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such obligations. The Statutes (Sectlons 3-24f and

~ 3-27f) also provide for investment in shares o: of the Conneetrcut Short Term Investment Fund and o

the Tax Exempt Proceeds Fund

‘Other prowsmns of the Statutes cover specrﬁc mumcrpal pensmn funds wrth parncular'

investment authority and do not specify permitted investments. Therefore, mvestment of such . ,’
funds is generally controlled by the laws applicable to fiduciaries (i-e., prudent person rule) and
the provisions of the applicable plan. Their approved policies target an asset mix to provide the - -

probability of meeting or exceeding the return Ob_] ectives at the lowest possﬁ)le nsk They set
’ asset allocatron parameters as follows . » . S

| Range Target

Cash and short—tenn mvestments o 0%20% 5%

Equltysecuntres o ASY%T5% 60% B

Fixed income securities o 20%-60%  C 40% -
- Alternative strategles (hedge funds) C0%-20% - 15%

4
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S NOTES TO F]NANCIAL STATEMENTS Contmued
: June 30, 2005 ‘ :

o Interest Rate stk The C1ty does not have a pohcy that hm1ts its exposure to fau‘ value losses L

B arising from changes in mterest rates. The City’s pension funds do have a policy to limit their -

o “exposure to fair value losses arising from changes in interest rates by struetunng the mvestment.',_ :

: ~ portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash reqmrements for ongomg operatlons and. .
"»momtonng the hquldlty of the ﬁmds onan ongomg bas1s : L

Concentrations: The C1ty does not have a formal pohcy, however thexr practlee is to mamtam a- L
 diversified portfoho to mmlmlze the risk of loss resultmg from over—concenh'atlon of assets m a
- spec1ﬁe 1ssuer : B

’. 'The pensmn plans pohcy is that no more than 10% (at market) may be mvested in any one

o company and no more than 20% exposure to any one industry. In addition, the POl'tfoho cammot. S

- ~ have more than 20% invested in foreign bonds and no more than 20% mvested in. prefen‘ed_ " : )

: v'stoeks and convernbles

' Custodzal Credzt rzsk

- Deposfcs This is the nsk that in the event of fallure of a deposrcory ﬁnanelal mstltu’uon A

government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral -
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2005 $49 859,854 of the .

C1ty S bank balance of $60 853 051 was umnsured and uncollaterahzed

' Investments ThlS is the risk that in the event of the faﬂure of the counterparty (e g, broker—h

o dealer) to a transaction, a govemment ‘will not be able to recover the value of its investment or

‘collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The C1ty and the pensmn ﬁmds,:{ e
- do not have custodlal oredlt risk policies for mvestments S

Cash and mvestments of the Clty consmt of the followmg at June 30 2005

' ’Cash and Cash Equivalexits f

. DepoSitsWithFinancialInsﬁtuﬁohs Lo s 60,631,515

: TaxExemptProceedsFund S o T L o 170,620 - . . 1
Munxc:lpalBackedInvestmentFund L T s0916

Total cash and cash equlva]ents o T60,853,081

', Investments R o
» PensmnTmstFunds R R
U.s. GovemmentSecuntles ST ’ PRI B 2',957,4’09 ¥

U.S. Government Agencies | | .. 00 30,762,058 %

e CorporaieDebt o R R S U 10,635,027 * .
CommonStocks . C i o oot 101,249,555 %
 Mutual Funds - e 34120388
 PrivateHedgeFund ~ .o 0 34505093

' Totalpenswn investments LT e I 214,229,660
, Totalcashandmvestments ' o P s '775082711 :

x These investments are lmmsured and unreglstered wrch secuntles he]d by 1ts agent but not in the Clty's name.
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" Cash and investments arexclass’iﬁed in the éccenipaﬁying financial s’tavfenientebae follows o

Government -

S‘te'témexit'efNefAsfs’efs;_ o B S o i}
. Cash and cash equivalents: - . < .. - T A B

41,460,649

?deumary Funds
. Cashand cash eqmvalents
Investments ‘

41,460,649

19,392,402

214,229,660 ¢ -

233,622,062 -

" “Total cash and investments ch o S R

275082711 -

" Interest rate risk: This is the risk that chahges in market interest rates will adversely affect the

fair value of an investment. Genera]ly, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the - -
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Informatlon about the exposure of .
the City’s debt type investments to this risk usmg the segmented tlme dlstnbu‘uon model is as

follows

Investment Maturitiés (in Years)

RS S  Fair. LessThan . . 15 6-10
Type of Investment o % Vale ™ . 1Year  Years Years

© 10 Years .-

| US. Government Agencies - $n3o,'762,05‘8'_ $ 3179908 § 9230000 $ 2369075
U.S. Govemment Securities - .~ - 2,957409 . " o 549,540 1 222829
Corporate Bonds - - o 10,635,027 547,205 6203438 © 3014120 -

§ 15983075
- 2,185,040 L
870,264

Pooled Fixed Income ~ -~ . 221,536 221,536 R -

TOTAL - © . § 44576030 § 3948640 § 15082078 § 5606024

$ 19,038,379

Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will not. -

fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by assignment of a rating -
by a nationally recognized rating organization. U.S. government securities or obhgatxons

explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk exposure
, Presented below is the minimum ranng as requlred for each debt type mvestment
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US Govemment T
B Corporate © Agency - Pooled = .
Average Rating’ ~~ Bonds ~ .~ Obligation.~ - Fixed Income = -
© AAA 5 514335 0§ 19,197,505 8 -
AN - e 750916 0 -
AA- - TOLT28 . L e e
© A+ 73011905 . 300574 . -
AL 3,705,052 e e
- 18 § &
OBBB+ 0 17241457 R T S
CBB+ 96377 ¢ - =
CUBBB.. - T061 - oS e
" Unrated - - 11,263,979 . 170,620 o
: ‘ 10635027 _§ 30762058 § 221536 -~ =

]

E '_NoteS Recelvables-Fund Ba51s.*
_:’Recewables at June 30, 2005 mcludmg the apphcable allowances for collectlon losses are as. -

»‘ Noriﬁajmj‘: v
o oo andOther R
General . Century21P1. -~ Water = - Sewer -~ Funds - " Totals .

Propertytaxes . $ 40435 - 0§ oo - § - 8 . 5 4740434
Accountsrecewable S o V;";_ " ‘ - - -_‘ o 5‘18,806 _‘ .. 518,806
Note receivable®- © =~ . 6650000 .. L e 6650000
- Unbilledservices = e o T L18958 - L 1094626 - L 2284154

Special assessments .- 0. . a0 1323183 . 3,757,049 . . .- 5080232 .- ‘

- Federal and state govemmentsf_?f!f 4796854 ogsT6L e . 5973782 . 10856397

’ Other S S 1,411,411 Lo 686280 - 1,143,085 63,600 3,304,385

Total gross recenvables V.7 17,598,699 - - 85,761 3,199,000 - -~ 5,994,760 -~ 6,556,188 ° 33,434,408 . ‘

_ Allowance for couectwn losses o @ar0000y o = (156497 . - (85.951) . (100000) . (2,612,448) .

Totalnetreceivables - 8 1538699 § 85761 § 3042503 S S908809 S 6456188 5 30,821,960

(1) n ﬁscal year 2004/2005 the Clty negotlated an agreement w1th a t}:urd party n whlch the thlrd o

party- agreed to pay the City in four installments of $2.5 million for the development of
- property located in the Planned Nelghborhood Development Zone. The ‘amount has been:
' vrecorded at its present Value S : : o
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Note 6 Interfund Recelvables, Payables and Transfers

2 As of June 30 2005 mterﬁmd recelvables and payables that resulted from vanous mterfund : - o

' transactlons were as follows

Due From DueTo -
© Other Funds  Other Funds -

. GemeralFund - . . - $10,58L,189  § - 52,129 -
S Water oo T 1,819,906 ¢

© o Sewer . oo oo 36000 - 2,350,000 N

. Cemtury2lPI . . - 24530 0

. ,NonmajorandOtherFunds o 52129 6416992
AgencyFunds © - o o . 5761

“Tetals . . $10,669,318 $10,669,318

The balance of $10 581 189 due to the General Fund isa result of short-term advances from the ,: o
General Fund to the other funds ' ' A R

Interﬁmd transfers durmg the year ended Tune 30 2005 were as fonows -

Transfers In

- General ~ Nonmajor -~ - o
Fund Governmental  Total -

GeneralFund - =~~~ - § - - 682,468 § 682,468
' N T $' 682,468 § 682,468 -

Transfers are. used to account for unrestncted revenues collected mamly in the general fund to'
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in acc_ordance with budget authorizations.
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Note 7 ’ Capltal Assets

R 'Capltal asset act1v1ty for the year ended June 30 2005 was as follows

Governmental actmtxes »

" Capital assets, not bemg deprecxated
Land - ‘
Constmctxon in progress

o Total capltal assets, ot bemg deprec1ated -

Capxta.l assets bemg deprecxated
Land mprovements R
Buildings and 1mprovements
Machinery and eqmpment

. Infrastructure

o - Total cap1tal assets bemg deprec1ated R

: Less accumulated deprecmtmn for:
" Land improvements
 Buildings and unprovements
Meachinery and eqmpment
~Infrastructure :
Total accumulated deprecxatxon o

 Total capltal assets bemg deprec:ated net

"Governmental acnvmes cap1ta1 assets, net. . . >, L

Begmmng

= Eneling

46

Balance - Increases B "‘Decfe‘ases Balance
5 39382873 $6129599 § - : § 45512472
| 44890986 11,732,178 - (1)377.414) 14,844,750 .
43,.872.859 17,861,777 (1377414) 60,357,222
7377888 676,380 - - 8,054,228
. 107,695295  70L148 - . - 108396443
20,743,559 3438905 (815,565) 23366899
115,803,935° 1,513,807, S 117317742
251,620,637 6,330,240 (815.565)  257,135312 -
656,831 324,937 - 981,768
| 40386720 2,087,195 . . o 42473915
14259042 2376781 - . (707464). 15928359
69301380 - 2022357 1 . . - 713237737
124,603,973 6,811,270 (707,464) 130,707,779
127016664 (481,030) . (108,101 126,427,533
| $170,889,523 ~ $17.380,747 $ (1485,515) $ 186784755
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. Busmess-type actmtles. L
. Capital assets, not bemg deprecxated
. Land ) :
Construchonmprogress o -
Total capital assets, not bemg cleprecxated -

Ny Capital assets, being depremated
~ Buildings and improvements
' Machinery and equipment -
. Distribution and collecnon systems
" Vehicles . :
Other ‘ .
, Furmture and ﬁxtures -
~ Total capltal assets, being deprecxated

© Less accumulated depreciation for .
* Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment. -
Distribution and collection systems .
Vehicles' » :
Other - ,
o Furmture and ﬁxtures ,
- Total accumulated deprecxa‘aon

- Total capltal assets, bemg deprecxated netv .

Business-type capxtal assets, met

. Beginning .

 Edme

823287 .

Balance : Increases . Decreases © - Balance .. .

s 1,031,946 S S8 - s 1031946

1,681,218 15882223 - - 3563441 .
2,713,164 1,882,223 - 4,595,387

100314994 . 58075 100,373,069

- 1,080,710 . 30,088 1,110,798

84,433,702 4,294,009 - 88,727,711 -

838,250 - - 838,250 -

918,561 - - 918,561
: 287,704 L - - 287,704

187,873,921 4,382,172 - 192,256,003

28,085,173 2425615 . - 30,510,788

704,343 - 31,966 - 736,309 -
16,581,953 1,389,252 <o 17,971,205

795,530 27,757 - )

706,658 - 50,378 - . 757,036 -
218,946 17,620 - 236,566
47,092,603 3,942,588 - 51,035,191
140,781,318 439,584 - 141,220902

_§ 143,494,482 $ - $145,816,289

$ 2,321,807

Deprec1at10n expense Was charged to ﬁmcmons/programs of the pnmary government as follows: _ |

Governmental actxvmes.
B General govemment
Public safety -

Public works, mcludmg deprema’aon of general

- infrastructure assets’
" Health and welfare -

- Culture and recrea‘aon f o

' Education
Other L

Total deprema’aon expense governmental actlvmes ’

Busmess-type act1v1t1e5° :
Sewer -
" Water

Total deprematmn expense busmess—type act1v1t1es .

47

605"552,_ o
921,227

2434 925:' B

- 440,931

2324328
15,714

6,811,270

2,671,439

1,271,149

3,942,588
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' 'stcretely presented component umts |
- Act1v1ty for the Danbury Parkmg Authon’fy for the year ended June 30 2005 was as follows* .

Begmnmg S S Endmg
Balance -~ Increases - Decreases, V Balance

Capital assets, 't_jéing depreciated: . -

Machineryandequipmentf T 442,716 ' Lo - e :" ,442;716
Computer equipment: - oo 20670 - e oo 20,670

Tota] cap1ta1 assets, bemgdepreclated T e 526293 0 < S 526,293

o Less”accumulateddeprecxaﬁonfor;- L R S e
" Buildings and improvements . .. . .. 57378 . 12600 . . - . 58638
Machinery and equipment .~ © -+ . ... 331,168 . 37461 - -0 . -368,629 -
Computer equipment . .- ... ...~ 19065 1605 - . -~ 20670 )

Total accmnulated depreciation - L A07e1l 40,326 -~ - . 447937,

""TCta_ll capitél‘assets,beihgdepréciafebd;hét gl 118682 § >40;‘325 S g ?'78,3.5:6

o Act1v1ty for the Rlchter Park Authonty for the year ended December 31 2004 was as follows - o

Begiming . Eadng
" Balance . - ’»Increases - " Decreases . - Balance

Capl’cal assets bemg deprecmied

- Buildings =~ . o s ngé’%s ' $ o _ g . E B g f’983’355 '
Improvements oo " ’;. . 3373595 - 33=990. S - B o 3,407,585
Machinery and eqmpment e 781,628 - 6000 - i .- 787628

. Totals, capltal assetsbemgdepremated T 6,144,088 39990 - - 6,184,078 .

Lessaccumu]ateddeprematlonfor . R R
Buildimgs . .- ..o . . . B2LB44 79902 .-t 901746
Improvements - - S 1279874 982820 4t 1378156
'Machinery and equipment . . S 559498 - 54324 - <. 7 613822 -

- Total accumulateddepremanon o T 2.661,216 22508 - 2893704

_fTotal'.capitalassets,bemgdep_reméfed, net . § 3482872 8 (192518) § - s 3200354
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_ 'Aet1v1ty for the Tarrywﬂe Park Authonty for the yea.r ended June 30 2005 Was as follows '- .

Begmmng ) ‘ Endmg
. , Balance .  Incréases - = Decreaes | Balance
" Capital assets, being depreciated: .. S L L
' Buildings and improvements -~ - . . . 8§ . 84,985 §. - %, -8 84985
. Machinery and equipment ~ . - - - 22,745 .. - (600) - 19,145
Furniture and fixtures ~~ -+ S 830420 - - g3042 -
' Computer equipment -~ . - 4,625 . - = 4,625
'Totals capital assetsbemgdepremated o i 195,397 - " (3,600) 191,797
Less accumulated deI'BCla'L'IOD for - - R o IR
Buildings and improvements =~ . . . .~ 58821 - 4156 . - 62977
Machinery and equipment * - © . . 20,771 301, - (3600) - 17472 -
Furniture and fixtures  ~ . . - . 8471l .. - .- - %) S U
. Computerequipment - D 4,629 B 4,629
Total accumulated deprecxatlon D - 168,932 4,457 (3,600) 169,789
- Total capltal assets, bemg deprecxated net o $ 26465 §  (445T) 'S S s

22,008 -

: Note 8 Bond Antmpauon Notes Payable and Subsequent Event

o ‘The C1ty has $32, 300 000 of bond anticipation notes outstandmg as of June 30 2005

antlc1pat1on notes bear interest at 3. OO%

_ Bond ant101pat10n note transactlons for the year ended June 30 2005 were as follows

" Outstanding, July 1, 2004
~ Borrowings.
Repayments

s Outstanchng, Iune 30, 2005 L

Reported as: :
- Bond antlclpatlon notes
- Long-term debt -

: ) Subsequent event

s 35,450,000

The bond }_

32,300,000
(35,450,000)

22,098,000 .

In August 2005, the Clty 1ssued $lO 940 OOO in general obl1gat10n bonds S
" interest of 3.00% to 4.25% and mature serially from Angust 1, 2007 to August 1, 2025. Of the : -
~$32,300,000 bond anticipation notes outstandmg, $10,202,000 was financed with the August
- 2005 issue and is considered long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements, and = =

0§ 10202000

Tbe:bonds bear S

other financing sources in the Governmental Fund financial statements as all conditions of FAS 6
o had been met. In addmon the C1ty also issued $36, 600 0001 n BANS i in August 2005
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i ‘Note 9 Long—Term Llablhtles

Long—term hab111ty aCthl'fY fOl’ tbe year ended June 30 2005 was as follows-: R

X Begmmng

Governmental activities:
. Bonds and notes payable: I
General abligation bonds S
- Notes payablc
" Bond anticipation notes -
- Plus deferred amounts‘ o
. Unamortized prexmums oL
Total bonds and notes payable

Caplta} leases - e .
Landfill post-closure momtormg
Compensated absences .

Governmental actlwty
lﬂn_g—term liabilities . - .

: Busmess~type actmtles
" Bonds and notes payable: -
General obligation bonds
- Notes payable
' Plus deferred amounts: -
© Unamortized premiums -
Total bnnds and notes payable

' Busmess-type actnvxty
long-term llabmt;es ,

. Decreases - .

Endmg

Balance - .

. DueWithin,

Balance ™ -

5 58,126,800 -
L TA224
3,615,000

1,567,594 .

- $ 3,615,000
1,500,000
10,202,000

© 480,193

- Increases’

$ 5,732,350
VAR
3,615,000

148,575

§56,009,450
1,537,112
- 10,202,000

1899212

. OneYear .

: $ 5482 350_ LR
' 92 700

63,383,618 .

3496381
13,968,712

- 15,797,193

- 1,156,397

5,533,037

11,201,700 . -
179,469

69,647,774

3451 o78f ,

13,789, 243

1237,028°
2,068386
52600

1,135,770

62,061

671,833

525,998

81,984,481

21,873,200
23,345,842

933,651

- $17,015,651

'$1,300,000

$11,586,039

$ 1,577.800

2,619,382

121,560

$87,414,093 -

21,595,400
20,726,460 - -

812,091

'$ 8933 964' -

'$ 1,642,650
2619382

46,152,693

1,300,000 -

4,318,742 -

: 46,152,693

$°1,300,000

$ 4318742

43,133,951

'$43,133,951 -

$ 4262032

50

5575050 - -
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| 7'Mesg@_&bl_ DU

. 5 .The Clty s notes payable W]:uch are payable ﬁ'om its govemmental act1v1t1es are as follows at

| ”'»'-,June 30, 2005:

o
: S . v o A‘mount:
S HUD Sectlon 108 1oan due in annual mstallments w1th anv:-’. D R
' mterestrate of3% L o . $15000000

‘ General obhgatlon promlssory note at an mterest rate of 6% : PR
' ‘per annum, payable quarterly The note financed the =
o - Triangle St. Bridge project.. Equal principal payments are" S e

o mademDecemberofeachyearuntll 2005. B SRR /A § VA
R T o ©$ 1,537,112

- General obhgatlon bonds _

As of June 30 2005 ‘the outstandmg general obhgatlon bonded mdebtedness of tbe C1ty, payable '
from its govemmental actlvmes was as follows : o » ; v
| o O_utsta.nding

" Amount

J $4 800 000 CD Parks Property general obhgatlon bonds 1ssued
September 15, 1985 due in annual installments of $240, 000 e L
ﬁnal matlmty September 15, 2005; interest at 8.1%to 8. 3% Co$.. 240,000 -

$13 290 OOO Pubhc Improvement general obhgatlon bonds 1ssued-v:’ o
August- 1, ‘1986 due in annual installments of $700,000 -
($260,000 final mstal]ment), ﬁnal matunty August 1, 2005 Sl :
mterest at6 80% 10 7.00% - o 260,000

$8 250 000 School Code Comphance and Pubhc Improvementﬁ' -
.~ general obligation bonds ($400,000 used for special assessment
projects) issued February 1, 1988 due i in annual installments of S
© $415,000 to $450,000; ﬁnalmatuntyFebruaryl 2007; mterest S
o at62%to67% S , - _ S 7350000

$16 350, 000 School Addmons and Improvements/Pubhc Improve- .
ments general obligations bonds issued Aungust 15,1992 due in .
" annual installments of $815,000 to $820,000; final matunty T e o
AugustlS 2012; mterestat413%to613%- 6,520,000
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s o Outstanchng

. »i;$2 705 OOO Pubhc Improvement general obhgatlon bonds 1ssuedf:'v' o

February 1,71994 due in annual installments of $80,000 to- P

- $220,000; ﬁnal matunty February 1, 2014; mterest at 3 20% to

510%

L 817, 740 OOO School Addltxons general obhgatlon bonds 1ssued'f: L

" February 1, 1994 due in annual installments of $880,000 to =~

- $890,000; ﬁnalmatuntyFebruaryI 2014 mterest at320% tof. S

5. 10%

S $1 695,000 Public Improvement general obhgatron bonds 1ssued: R

February 1, 1995 due in annual installments of $70,000 to: -

- $115,000; ﬁnal rnattmty February 1, 2015; mterest at 5 O% to
O% B : -

$4, 100 OOO Pubhc Improvement general obhga’uon bonds 1ssued':n" |
- August 1, 1997 due in annual installments. of $180,000 to .
$230,000; final matunty August 1, 2017 mterest at 4 1% to’_v’j

575%v

- -~ $10, 100, OOO Pubhe Improvement general obhgatron bonds 1ssued>""-’ SRR
_ August 1, 1998 due in annual installments of $505,000; ﬁnal e
2,020,000

maturity February 1, 2019 interest at4 0% to 5. 5% ;»’ IR AR

$3, SOO 000 Public Improvement general obhga’uon bonds 1ssuedt~; ‘,

690000

August 1, 1999 due in annual installments of $175, 000; ﬁnal»”ﬁ, : o e

matunty August 1,2019; mterest at 4.15% to 6 O% o

o $11,792,000 Public Improvement general obhgauon bonds 1ssued4,:,- o
. May 15, 2002 due in annual installments of $522, 350 to
- $652, 350 ﬁnal matunty May 15, 2022 mterest at 3. 5% to 5. 0% .

| "«$1 190,000 General refundmg bonds 1ssued May 1 2003 due m; S
- annual installments of $135,000 to $195 OOO ﬁnal matunty

B February 1, 2010; interest at 2. 0%m40% RS

- $12 925 000 Pubhc Improvement general obhgatron bonds 1ssued
- August 1, 2003, due in anmual installments of $535,000 to-

860,000 -

$760,000; final matun‘ry August 1 2023 mterest at 3 25% to S

475% .

_Amount - e

Casesasn
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' Outstanding’
_Amount o

$11,770,000 General Refumding bonds, issued March 1, 2004, due =
in annual installments of $35,000 to $2,540, OOO final matunty‘; Sl eanes T
Augustl 2021 interest at 2. 00% to 5 OO% e 11,770,000

o $2 278 OOO General Obhgatlon Refundmg bonds 1ssued March 1, B
2004, due in annual installments of $35,000 to $2,540, OOO ﬁnal' R
matuntyAugustl 2021; mterest at200% toSOO% -5 02,278,000 o

$3 615,000 General Obhga’uon bonds 1ssued August 1 2004 due" i
in annual installments of $235,000 to $260,000; final matlmty' L
Augustl 2024 interest at 1. 40% to 4 65% .. .. 3,615,000

o $' 560094507

. At June 30 2005 the outstandmg general obhgauou bonded mdebtedness of the Cxty, payable
from 1ts busmess—type activities, was as follows ' - v

"'Outstandiug‘
Amount. .. .

© $1,310,000 Lateral Sewer Systems general obligation bonds
~ issued February‘ 1, 1994 due in annual installments of
- $65,000 to $70,000; final matlmtyFebruaryl 2014; mterest_ P
' at320%t0510% I o % 585,000
$3 100 000 Waste Water Treatment general obhgatlon bonds- } |
(includes $1 million for water- general obligation bonds).
issued February 1, 1994 due in annual installments of .
- $50,000 to $105,000; final matunty February 1, 2014; 7_' S SRR KO
mterest at320%t0513% S o o S 1,395,000 -

.82, 000, OOO Water general obhgatlon bonds 1ssued February 1 L
1994 due in annual installments of $100,000; ﬁnal matlmty SR
Februaryl 2014 mterest at 3. 20% to 5. 10% o e e - 900,000

$2 100 000 Water general obhga‘uon bonds 1ssued February 1 o
1995 due in annual installments of $105, 000; final matunty A
: Februaryl 2015 interest at 5. 0% to70% s SR R 1,050,000 -
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 Ousmang
L o , i - S _Amount .-
R $1 500 000 Lateral Sewer Systems general obhgauon bonds L

issued. February 1, 1995 due in annual installments of -

$75 000; ﬁnal matunty February 1, 2015 interest at 5. O% to Sl

,, o o T1500000

B ‘ $6 000, OOO Water general obhgatlon bonds 1ssued August 1 : e | |
'1997 due in annual installments of $280,000 to $320,000; -
-~ final matuntyAugust 1 2017; interest at 4. 1% t0 5.75% G

7.0%

0o

' $12,395,000 Water general obligation bonds issued Angust 5,

1998 due in annual installments of $615,000 to $620, OOO
ﬁnal matunty Februaryl 2019; mterest at4.1% to 5.5%

: $1 000, 000 Water general obhga’uon bonds issued August 1 o )
© 1999 due in annual installments of $50, 000; ﬁnal matunty ST e
' -+ 250,000

_ August 1,2019; interest at 4. 15% to 6. O% v
. ’$1 600,000 Lateral Sewer Systems general obhgaﬁon bonds

issued August 1, 1999 due in annual installments of $80, OOO e
ﬁnal matunty August 1,2019; mterest at4.15% to 6 O% 5 o |

| -;.f$953 000 Water and Sewer general obhgatlon bonds 1ssued
‘May 15, 2002, due in annual installments of $19,000 to. .
$28,650; final matunty May 15, 2022; mterest at 3. 5% to o
I : L . S 33400
$11:312,000. Water and sewé'r*g‘eneral' obligation" feﬁmamgf LT

5.0%

2,480,000

400,000

‘bonds issued March 1, 2004, due in annual installments of - _' Ll e
'$35,000 to $2,540,000; final- ‘maturity August 1, 2021 T

mterest at 2. 00% to 5. OO%

SR | o 11312000
$1 300 000 Water and Sewer general obhgauon refundmg-'f o ‘

bonds issued August 1, 2004, due in annual installments of 3 o

1$35,000 to $2,540,000; final matunty August 1, 2024 D
| 1,300,000

- interest at 1.40% to 4.50%.
~ Total general obhgatmn bonds

s4

21,595,400 -
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Outstanding

o S L Soees foooe o Amount o
' $2,296,859 Clean Water Fund 103-D note payable signed May. '
1, 1990 due in annual installments of $114 843 ﬁnal'f P
) matuntyMayl 2009 mterestatZ 0% o S 459,372
$47,373,853 Clean Water Fund 103-C note payable Slgned wy
30 11994 due in annual installments of $2,482,473 ($206, 873' L S
» m2014), ﬁnal matunty Iuly 30 2013 mterest at 2. 0% R S 20,066,654
- $441 322 Clean Water Fund 305 C note payable 51gned January S
31, 1995 due in' annual installments of $22,066 ($1,840in o
' 2015); final maturity January 31, 2014 mterest at20% Ge 200434 0
Totalnotespayable UL e 20,726,460«
s s 86'0’3?]‘:

The annual debt service reqmrements of the Clty ] bonded mdebtedness and notes payable are as
follows (excludmg BAN S payable) B ' ' S R :
Governmental Activities "~ . - Co : Business-Type Actiﬁtié's L
Princlpal " Interest - TotalPaymentS‘ -+ Principal - ‘Interest -~ Total Payments

. 2006 § 5575050 S 2;487,920 § 8062070 S 4262032 § 15349303 § 5611335
2007 4944629 . 2234466 © . 7,179,095 - 4282032 1224288 . 5506320

2008 4621371 2,006,589 . 6,627,960 . - 472820320 - 1,097,765 = 5379,797
2009 4,552,166 - 1,799,880 6,352,046 . 4318032 969,270 . 5287302
2010 . 4544016 1,593,716 - 6,137,732 . 4,203,189 839,100 ~ = 5,042,289
2011 - 4385922 1,392,498 5778420 - 4,203,189 - 711,355 . = 4914544
2012 4385886 1,199,761 5585647 4,200,189 - 583,756 4,783,945 .
2013 4,263,559 . 993,193 - 5256752 .  4,194389 ~ . 455198 4,649,587
2014. . 3444,645 818950 4,263,595 - . 1919938 343,645 2,263,583
2015 2276793 - 666,839 . 2,943,632  1377,838 259,424° 1,637,262

2016 2,191,008 561,525 2,752,533 1,189,000 ~ . . 190,096 1,379,096 ..
2017 . 2,195,289 462,210 - . 2,657,499 1,192,000 132,630 . 1,324,630

2018 2,191,640 371,536 . 2,563,176 1,183,000 - - 82,580 . 1,265580
2019 - 1,997,062 290,584 2,287,646 - 855000 . 44,247 . 899247 . .
2020° . 1,488,558 - 231,477 - 1,710,035 . 241,000 - 23,083 264,083
20210 1315130 164,050 1479,180 = 112,000 . 15948 127948 -
2022 1,307,780 . - 108911 . 1,416,691 - 112,000 - 11,201 - 123201
2023 - 797511 - 63,938 . 861,449 - 65000 7312 . 72312
2024 . 800,325 29399 0 829,724 65000 - 4387 7 69,387
2025 268222 6813 275035 - 65000 ' 1,462 - 66,462

Total _§$57,546,562.  $17,474,255 $ 75,020,817 ~ $42,321,860 § 8346,050 8§ 50,667,910
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v vThe State of Connecucut rennburses the C1ty for ehg1ble prmc1pal and interest costs of the o
- portion of the capital improvement bond issues used for school construction. The amount of ==
‘such reimbursement for the year ended June 30, 2005 was approximately $757,000. Addmonal' g

I payments aggreganng approxrmately $5,206, OOO are expected to be rece1ved through the bonds’

o fmatunty dates

‘ln-Substance Defeasance Pnor Years -

- _ In pnor years the C1ty has defeased various bond issues by creatmg separate 1rrevocable trust o

. funds. New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government. © .
securities that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the -
investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures.

For financial reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and therefore removed as - .

: a habrhty from the City’s government-wide financial statements - As ‘of June 30, 2005, the - -

‘, amount of defeased debt outstanding, but removed from the C1ty ] government—w1de ﬁnancral -
:‘,statements was approx1mately $25, 905 OOO :

Landﬁll postclosure momtormg

State and federal laws and regulatrons requ1re that the C1ty place a ﬁnal cover on 1ts closed o
landfill and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site- for thirty o
years after closure. The landfill’s closure project was completed during the year ended June 30,

© 1999. The estimated total current cost of the landfill postclosure care, aggregating $13,789,243,
is based on the amount estimated to be paid for all equipment, facilities and services required to

‘monitor and maintain the landfill as of June 30, 2005. However, the actual cost of postclosure - o

- care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landﬁll laws and”:f
' regulanons These costs will be pa1d from the General Fund ' oo

o Compensated absences o

” ‘,‘Included m the Long—Term Debt in the govemment—mde is the estlmated obhgatlon for s

. employee compensated absences in the amount of $525,998 as of June 30, 2005. The general AR
- fund has typlcally been used to hqmdate the l1ab111ty for compensated absences ' ’

- ,'Cap1tal lease obhgatxons

e ’f_‘The Clty has various cap1tal leases in wlnch they acquire cap1tal assets. Interest rates on these

.  leases range from 2.1% to 6.0%. The capital leases are for various computer equipment and O

“vehicles. The leases are payable in monthly installments through 2011 Ongmal cost of caprtal E

. assets under such lease agreements are as follows

Mach]nery and eqmpment o $ ”'v9,1?9>6,115~ o

Accumulated deprecranon (181103

Netbookvalue v 7§ 2015012 -
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= Futute mlmmum 1ease payments under capltal leases are as follows '

006 o BEEENETI $f,’1 237, 928

2008 779805
C2009 0 e oo 539209 0
So2010 0o 3722

02011 T 184,119
e 4,147,023
Less amount representing interest -~ (695, 945)

. § 3451078 .

| Stan]ey L Rlchter Park Authorlty

, The following is a summary of the component umt s bonds and notes payable transactmns for’
~ the year ended December 31 2004 - : T

Begmmngbalance o $ 1‘8;")-,990 -

Deductions 59127
Endingbalance -~ $ 123863

' The Authonty 1ssued a long-term bond amountmg to $325 OOO in November 1993 to ﬁnance the |

greens construction project. The bond principal is payable in annual installments of $21 667 on' k o

November 15 of each year unt11 2008 with mterest payable seml-annually at 6. 25% :

' ’In 1997 the C1ty of Danbury advanced to the Authonty $299,423 from the C1ty s long—term‘” '

capital improvement bond proceeds Tl:ns loan i is payable to the Czty n elght annual mstallments o
- of $37, 461 until 2005 . v o ‘

: On J anuary 26 2004 the Authonty entered mto an agreement W1th Wachowa Bank for a CI’GdIlZ ,: j

~ line in the amount of $100,000 bearing interest at the Bank’s Prime Rate plus .75%. The line of * |

credit is used for workmg cap1tal needs of the Authonty At December 31 2004 the credlt lme,-
.balancewas$ 0-. : o B o

: The $299, 423 pronnssory note W1th the C1ty of Danbury is non-mterest bearmg, however the: .

' note requires the Authority to make payments in addition to the note principal in the amount of -+ |
~ 15% ofits yearly net surplus. Payments based on net surplus to date have totaled $29,795, or 2%
o annually over the current life of the note o y S v e
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o The ﬁxture pnncnpal amortlzatlon is as follows
J'Year endngecember31" e T
2005 o 858863
2006, e 21667 0
20070 e 21,667
2008 21,666

et "_Authorlzed but umssned bonds D
. Bonds authonzed but umssued at J une 30 2005 are as follows

" General Purpose s 34443000{ T
St Sewers .. o0 011,009,0000
o Water . 4962000

. Toal -8 50414090

e Legal Debt LLmlt

T The Clty S mdebtedness (mcludmg authonzed but not umssued bonds) net of pnn01pa1

- reimbursements expected from the state, does not exceed the legal debt limitation as reqmred by
‘_ the Connectlcut General Statutes as reﬂected m the followmg schedule: -~

. Category : 3 - Debt L1m1t Indebtedness Balan'oe.‘ )
R 7;289,443,303 | 220,843,153
385,924,404 -

o General purpose . $ $

578,886,606 - $ 38,458,694 § 540,427,912_‘
$ $
$ $

- Unfunded Pension Beneﬁt Obhgatmn i

. Schools - : '
' Sewers .
o "tUrbanrenewal

| 68,600,150

482,405,505 - $- 30,837,460 $ 451,568,045 .
‘ 418 084 771» , o ’ 418, 084 771 :

e e m'w_

’ »The fotal overall statutory debt 11m1t for the C1ty is equal to seven tnnes annual recelpts from C

- taxation, or $900 490, 276

f bNote 10 Commmnents and Contmgencxes B
- 1 | 'Lawsmts

: ' There are several personal mJury neghgence personnel and other related 1awsu1ts pendmg o
- against the City.. The outcome and eventual hab1hty of the City, if any, in these cases is not

" known at this time. For certain cases, where there is a reasonable possibility that a loss has been = -

' meurred and therefore not accrued, the City estimated its _poss1b1e exposure could be $6. 0
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' mrlhon as dlscussed the followmg paragraph Based upon consultatton thh legal counsel the '1

o City’s management estimates that potential claims against the City not covered by insurance, =

' ‘resulting from such 11t1gat10n Would not have a materlal adverse effect on the ﬁnanc1a1 pos1t10n f f, .
of the Crty ' . : v .

. In Aprﬂ 1998 Metca]f & Eddy, Inc., the C1ty s constructlon manager on the landﬁll closure_,fj .
project, had asserted a possible claim against the City ranging from $0 to $6, 000,000, and - -

therefore not accrued. The claim is associated with the completion of their work. The City is

. actively negotiating with Metcalf & Eddy, Inc. to resolve aH outstandmg clanns and beheves -

, they Wlll reach an amrcable resolutlon

' | Mumclpal Sohd Waste Semce Agreement

The City has entered into ‘a mumc1pa1 sohd Waste agreement as amended (the service-,j L

- agreement”) with the Housatonic Resources Recovery Authority (the “Authonty’) pursuant to
. which it participates with nine other Connecticut municipalities (the five constituting the =
- “Contractmg Mummpahtres”) in the Housatomc Resources Recovery System (the “System”) '

| Under the service agreement the City is requlred to dehver or cause to be dehvered to the

System solid waste generated within its boundaries up to its minimum commitment of 44, 500
tons per year and to pay a umform per ton dlsposal service payment (the “service payment”)

The current fee is $72 per- ton.. The aggregate minimum commitment of the nine Contractmg =

Mumc1paht1es is 103,800 tons per year. The City’s service payment commitment is a “put-or-
 pay” commitment, in. that if the aggregate minimum commitment of the Contractmg_

- Municipalities is not met by the total deliveries of all the Contracting Municipalities in any year, s -
- the City must pay the service payment for its proportionate share of the shortfall of the aggregate o
- minimum cornmrtment (even if 1t d1d dehver its full portlon) : o

o Servme payments shall be payable $0 long as the System is acceptmg sohd Waste dehvered by or
on behalf of the C1ty, whether or not such sohd waste is processed at the facrhty '

I any Contracting Mumcrpahty shall default n the payment of any service payments the other :
Contracting Municipalities shall pay their share of the amounts unpald by the nonpaying
* Contracting Municipality. If a Contracting Municipality fails to meet its minimum reqmrement

, the effect to the Crty of Danbury Would not be matenal to the ﬁnanc1a1 statement as a whole. -

- Waste Water Treatment

» f The Clty has a 20—year agreement through June 2018 (the “Agreement”) W1th Veoha Water to : :
* manage its waste water collection and treatment system. As consideration for such Agreement &

: - the City received a $10 million up-front concession fee. If the Agreement is terminated pnor to.
“the end of the 20 year term, the City has to repay the unamortized balance of the concession fee

- (calculated using the stralght-hne method over the term of the Agreement). The unamortized |
" balance of the concession fee at June 30, 2005 is $6 124, 969 and is recorded as unearned revenue '
- inthe Sewer Enterpnse Fund o v _
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- Under the Agreement the Clty pays an annual base fee of approx1mately $3 300 OOO plus an -

annual adJustment equal to the change in the consumer pnce mdex e
- Heart and hypertensmn

o ’.”The C1ty pays beneﬁts under the Heart and Hypertens1on Act on a pay—as—you—go bas1s to“'t . -.

retirees whose disabilities are claimed to be job related. ‘During the year ended June 30, 2005, _' -- B
19 retired employees received benefit payments Payments totaled_» approximately $595‘392-‘;:“' RN

. dunng the year ended June 30, 2005

| ‘T..Notell FundDefic1ts o

thefutureasfollows R

" The C1ty has the followmg fund deﬁc1ts at June 30 2005 and expects to eln:mnate the deﬁmts 1n g o

Fund -~ June30,2005 Plan for Eliminating Deficit -

* Capital Projects: .
City Projects oo

- City Works/lerary Reconstructlon
Century21P1 o

921,409 - Through future debt issuance
194,027 Through future debt issuance -~~~ -
2,428,324 Through future debtissuance’?‘ o

e

M15cellaneous Spec1al Revenue | : C %7 16,608 Through futnre revenue

- Note 12 Employee RetlrementPlans S

R The C1ty mamtalns six separate smgle—employer pensron plans covenng substantrally all of 1ts~_ : o .
employees (collectively, “the City’s plans™), except those public school teachers covered under = - = -

- the State of Connecticut Teachers” Retirement System. The General Employees Plan is a non-

" contributory defined benefit plan covering all full-time employees not quahﬁed under one of the =
City’s other plans or the State Teachers’ Retirement System. The remaining five plans: Pre-
1967 Policemen, Pre-1967 Firemen, Post-1967 Policemen, Post-1967 Firemen, and Post-1983 -

" Policemen are contributory defined beneﬁt plans, and cover all paid members of the City Police
- and Fire Departments The Ctty s pensmn plans do not however 1ssue stand-alone ﬁnancxal '
reports o : . : _ ‘

B The plans assets are consohdated and treated as’ one combmed trust (“Master Trust”) for the‘i o
o Ctty s retirement plans. - Although the assets of the plans are commingled for mvestment-f‘ s
purposes each plan s assets may be used only for the payment of beneﬁts to the members of that_ Dol

plan in accordance with the terms of the plan
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3 ._':'Master Trust 11ansact10ns other than cash and cash eqmvalents employer and employee !

o COD.lIIbU.tIOIlS and payments to separated participants by pammpatmg plans are allocated to each o

plan based upon procedures established by the trustee and the plans’ actuary. Earnings from the B
Master Trust include inferest and dividend income, and net appreciation in the fair value of - o
investments. Master Trust earmngs are. allocated to the City’s plans based upon the relatwe fau‘-, L

o values of the assets of each plan. -

. The Clty S plans mcludmg the employer and employee obhgatlons to contnbute are estabhshed g
“under the authority of Chapter 14 of the City’s Code of Ordinances. The City’s plans, by policy,

(i) require biennial actuarial valuations (as of July 1), with yearly updates, and (ii) require annual . '
City contributions based on actuarial determinations. During the year of actuarial valuation, the

- City has historically contributed the annual required contribution (“ARC™) for each of the -
- pension plans. - Any difference between the ARC and the actual contribution made has been
 settled by the next actuarial valuation date, and thus the City has never actually had, or had need
‘' to report, a net pens1on obhga‘uon (“NPO”). - The required contributions are calculated to cover -

o normal cost and the amortlzatlon of unfunded actuanal accrued liabilities. '

F S
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Provisionsof =~ |
- PensionPlans - - - Employees

Generai R

Post-1967

Police :

. Pre1967 .

Fire

Pohce

Fu-c .

Post-1983 ¢
Police

YVEmISI‘oye_e"s’ce\iered; -
e not covered by -
another plan. -

" Number of refirees . :
: receivingbeneﬁts'*

Terminated employees : f I
 Entitled to future benefits - - 147.

" Current employees
Totalnumberef, S e
P’mﬁcipants;-» B
Normal Benefit - -
provisions ¢ °
average . .- -

S compensaﬁon
times years of -

- credited service '

‘ o7 excessof 25,

Definition of - ‘ »
“Compensation” . . = years
50% vested after

Eligibility 0% vested.
years an

requirements’

each year

thereafter until

10 years -

. Disability Benefits:
Line of Duty - 1

' o compensation’

times years of

1.5% of average’
compensanon
times years of -
credited service

Non-Line of Duty
(Years 1-10)

1.5% of average
compensation .
times years of .
credited service

_ Non-Line of Duty -
(10+ Years) - o

- Al employees -

Caas

' 1274'

After attammg
“age 65,1.5% of
' Af/erége of last 3 ,
increasing 10%

L 15% of average -

credited service

All police

- employed :
bcfore 1967 before 1967

All firefighters - -
) “ ‘employed after

1967 but before'
» 1983 '

employed.

39

-~ After attainin g

age 65, 50% .
of final pay -

plus 2% for - -
each year of

-service in -

but no
greater than
68%

Fma] base
salary .

10 yea}s ofi

service, fully
vested after
15 years

©66.7% of final

pay

2% of final
pay for each

year of
_service: -
25% of final

pay plus 2%

for each year

. ofservice .-

4

After attaiﬁing :

age 65, 50%
of final pay

plus 2% for -

each year of
service in -

excess of 25; -
- butno

greater than
68%

g FinalbaSe B

salary

. 10'years of

service, .

fully vested_ -

after 15
years -

' 66.7% of final

pay

2% of final
- pay foreach
-+ - yearof .

service .

25% of final

pay plus 2% -
_ for each year
of service-

All pohce i

After attaining .
" age 65,50%o0f -
. final payplus’ -

2% for each

year of service

in excess of
25,butno
greater than
68%

Fmalbase . -

- salary

10 years of -

" service, fully

vested after 15.
years-

66.7% of final,

pay

2% ‘of final pay-
for each year - -

~of service " ..

. 25% of final

pay plus 2%
for each year -

of service

105';: B

All ﬁreﬁghters -

" employed - .
aﬁer 1967

45 a0 . S

After attaining

age 65,50% -
of final pay -

plus 2% for

_each year of -
‘servicein

. - excessof25, .

butno

greater than

68% .
Final base .
10 yess of -

service, fully
vested after

. 15years -~

66.7% of final -

2% of final

_ pay for each

year of C
service -

©25%of ﬁnal :
payplus 2% .
for each year . -

" of service - -

All police = -
hired after -
Clems

123 -

After attaining

-age 65, 2% of

- average - -

-compensation

* for each year - -

of service, "
butnot
greater than
68% - -

- Finalbase = |
salary =

salary -

10 yearsof .|
service, fully
vested after -
15 years ¢

50% ofﬁnal L

o Pax.: .

| 2%offinal
- payforeach - .-

year of -~

service -
25%of final -

pay plus 2%

for each year - - -

‘of service
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" Provisionsof - "
. Pensmn Plans

- General |
Employees

Pre- l 967

Post-1967

Pohce Fire 5

" Post-1983

Police

Obhgatlon to'contributein

_ accordance with fundmgpolicy‘ S

i Employee .

Employer

; : Authonty under which beneﬁt e o

provxsmns established. |

Fundmg Status and Progl_'ess
Date of actuarial valuanon._ :

Significant actuarial assumptions o

investrrient 'ré.tebof_ return’

' Projected annual salary 'iocréases'*» o

Post retirerhent benefit increases®

* mcludmg mﬂa’aon of o i
Mortahty table :

Actuarial asset valuéti'on"ixiethod_ :
~ Funding Policy ‘ ‘
 Actuarial cost method - o

. Amortization method . V ‘

Remammg amortlzmg penod

Authonty under which con‘nﬂ)utxons
. are estabhshed

: cost.

$—0-

Cxty code of -
- ordinances -

" ROV

8.5%
5.5%

4.5%,15%
every 5 years

L 4.0%-5.0%

1983 GAM
Set back 6 -

years for

vfemales

* Fair value’

smoothed . ’

) Actuanal -

Projéc‘:‘tiec:l:‘
unit credit -

Level

Dollar

" Amount
Open -
fi9y"ea1js" ‘

" Common. ..

Council

81, 007 ooo $919 ooo

C 08

“years for
. Fair vaiuel.

* Actuarial

“ Proj ected

 Dollar -
. Amount -

.. Common -
" Council

Pohce : Fire"i‘v"':

4% of 5% of -

eamin'gs' §

City code of Cxty code of .b :
ordinances

ordinances

6.0%._, | . | 6.6%_. : L

45% . 45U

Csew o osow
1983 GAM 1983 GAM |

Setback 6 Setback 6
. years for-
females' - females |
‘ Fair value
smoothed.  smoothed
Actuarial

-Projected
unit credit
cost .. cost

Level Level” T
Dollar -

Amount

Closed - ’Closed? )

11years ~ 11years

Council’

=R

o 4% Olf‘:.:'.

earmngs Veamings :

E S & osz 000 18298, ooo

e 04 -

. Fair i/alué

unit credit

- 8 yearsy :

"Common . - - Common

5% of
" eammgs

Clty code of , C1ty code of
- - ordinances

_ordinances -

55%  5.5%
50% - s.p%‘)

50% - 5.0%-

1983 GAM 1983 GAM
Setback 6 Set back 6

yeéars for  years for
females - . females. -

smoothed - smoothed
Actuarial . Actuarial
Projected  Projected .
unit credit  unit credit -
cost - cost

" Level: - Level

Dollar
Amount
Closed

Dollar:
Amount
Closed

14 yearsl'

) Common

Council .- 'Cotmcﬂ

s

Fair value - ~

' q‘:’A%of';

eamings o

| '-__‘$605 000

City code of

- ordinances

RV T

55%

1983 GAM -

Setback 6 .
years for

: femalgs

Fair value
smoothed

. Actuarial”

_Proj ected

unit credit

“cost

Lévél- )

' Dollar . -

Amount

- ~Closed -
18 years

‘ACofnmon:'» ‘
Councillk o
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' SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
‘ o Lo Annua]

v_iYéar Ended: R Reqmred, ‘. vPerEentage'_ﬂ' S

hune30, - - . Conftribution ~ - ° Contributed ’

General Employees:.- - - 2005 8 e

20000 e 2350000 - 100

1999 - ot 2820000 . - 100:

©  Pre-1967 Police: : . S 020050 0 0 % 1,007,000 0 100% L
IR o 2004 o 972,000 - 100
20037 ’ 971,000 - - 100

2002 . 820,000 - - 100

2000 - . 1,1330000 . 1000

2000 11,082,000 - - 100 -

1999~ - 1,090,000 100

"Pref1'967Fir¢:'v S C 20050 . 8 919,000 - '100%]1,‘ e

2004 . - 918000, . - 100

2003 877,000 . 100

2002 - . . 761,000 100

2000 996000 - . 100 -

2000 - 1933,000 100 -
T 1999 - 9BL000 - - 100
. Post-1967Police: . . 2005° . § 1082000 - ',100%[
ST 2004 . - gg4w00 . 1000
2003 v 635000 - 100

2002 . 765,000 - 100

2001 . . 808,000 . . 100

2000 - - 986,000 - C100

1999 .o " 711,240,000 f Coo100-

' Post-1967 Fire: . L2005 0 . 0§ 298,000 s 100%
2004 . . 0020000 - 100
2003 - . - 639,000 - 100 -

2002 . . . 560,000 100

2001 - ¢ 472,000 . 100
2000 .07 821,000 . . 100 . .
1999 Lo 992,000 - 100 -

' Post1983Police: . - 2005 .- . § 605000 . 1100%'

20040 T 4040000 o 100
003 - 310000 1000

120020 0 341,000 0 100
2000 . . 263,000 S 100¢ L
1999 - . 0 256000 0. - 100 .c
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CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT
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SCHEDULE OF PLAN NET ASSETS: L

JUNE30 2005
Gemerml  Prel967. . Pre1967 . Post1967 - Post1967 | Post1983 .
Employees Pohce - Fie" .- Police = - Fire .~ Police . - “Totals
Cash and cash eqmvalents, 8 7177,104 § 479,201 § - 391,866 §- 3,598,654 5 3,983,188  §° 663,810  § 16,293,823
‘ Invesments',atfairvalu(‘:, - l - - R e o C T
Common Stock - . .. - 44508404 - . 2,977,749 2435052 . 22361,977 . 24751466 - 4,124,907 101,249,555
‘BondsandNotes - .- - 19,537,268 - - 1,304,466 1,066,726 . 9,796,134~ 10,842,900 - 1,807,002 - 44,354,496
Mutual Funds "~ C 7 15029348 1,003480 < 820,595 . 7535829 8,341,070 -~ 1,390,065.": 34,120,387
Private Hedge Fund ~ ~ 15,198,860 1,014,799 . 829,851 . 7,620,823 8435146 - 1405743~ 345505222
 Totalinvestments . - 94,363,880 6,300,494 5,152,224 . 47,314,763 52,370,582 8,727,717 214,229,660
' Contributions recéivable . C0 = 1007000 ¢ 919000 . 1082000 - 298000 - 605000 . 3,911,000
Accrued interest and dividends - - - 291,073 - 19434 15892 - 145946 161,541 26921 . 660,807
Pending Sales .. 509283 - - 34004 . 27807 - 255358 282645 . 47,104 1156201
Total Assets - - v © 102,341,340 7,840,133 6,506,789 . 52,396,721 57,095,956 10,070,552 236,251,491
Pending Purchases \. . = - __ - 1,287,285 -~ 85950 .- 70,285 - 645455 | 714425 119,061 - 2,922,461
 Net Assets Held in Trust - T T B o N
for Pension Benefits ~_§ . 101054055 - § 7,754,183 § 64365504 - § 51,751,266 8 56381,531 § 9,951,491 § 233,320,030
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"CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT :
':NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Contmued
June 30, 2005 _ -

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LR
" PLANNETASSETS .
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

. Genmeral . Pre1967  Pro-1967. - Post1967 . - - Post-1967 - Post-1983 <

' Employees: - ‘Police. . - Fire* - Police. - Fire - . Police. : . Totals .
Employer 1’7.: o087 - 810070000 S 919,000 - § 1,082,000 - §: 298000 . § 605000 § - 3,911,000
Planmembers © . . . S . . g7p200 ¢ - 28TAS8 242732 . . . 617410

. Total contnhutlons‘ :’: i o - ... 1,007,000 - 919,000 1,169,220 - 585458 - . 847,732 . 4,528,410

‘mve's'tment'mcome Sl
' Netappreciation in fair = - e T P
| valueofinvestments - - 7,512,048 . | 1432567 - 1278221 4776990 ' 4434034 . 1243240 - - 20,677,100
' ’mterestand dividendsf. S 2313262 139,660 113,837 - 1,139,656 . - 1274483 © 203,696 5,184,504 =

. 9825310 . 1,572,227 1,392,058 - 5916646 5,708,517 1,446,936 - 25861,694
: Less InvestmentExpenses : - S ‘ : s S
’Investmentmanage— ) R T S o o

mentfees .. - . 724739, - " " 48071 |~ 38523 . 351,323 - 387,133 . 56,197 © 1,605,986

) Investmentincdmé"' S 9,100,571 - 1,524,156 1,353,535 5,565,323 - 5,321,384 1,390,739 . 24,255,708

© Totaladditions . . 9100571 2,531,156 - 2272535 6734543 5906842 2238471 . 28784118

 Bemefitspaid’ . .. v, 3765198 1410551 1,359,344 2,490,791 . 1,613,887 '~ 148208 = - 10,787,979

* Total deductions T 3765198 1,410,551 1,359,344 2490791 1613887 148208 10,787,979
Netincrease  ~  © . 5335373 L120,605 913191 . . 4243752 . 4202953 2,090,263 17,996,139

" Net Assets Held in Trust for
Pension Benefits °

Begmnmgofyear © 095718682 . 6633578 5523313 - 47507514 - 52,088, 576 7861228 215,332,891

Endofyear T g 101,054,055 $ 7,754,183 & 6436504 8 51,751,266 556, 381, 5317 g 0051491 §- 233,329,030
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CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS Contmued
. June 30, 2005 o

~ SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS_ '_

Actuanal -

(Over) E

(Over)

o Undexfunded

67 .',’l :

“Actuarial ' Actuarial .. . Accrued . Underﬁmded S S Percentageof." '
Valuation Value of - ‘Liability = - . AAL.. Funded?}f“ “Covered ©. - Covered " =~ |
D'ate e Assets: o (AALY : (UAAL)‘ - Ratio Payroll " Payroll-

L GeneralEmployees sl o SR o IR e R
U3 . S 9TM8T25C 5 74,647,619 5 (22,801,106) 1305 % § 23576524 - (96D %
Cuz 95940971 71,836,054 (24,104917) . 1336 % - 21,547,768 CQILe) %

C1100 86,363,384 - 60,128299  (26235085) 1436 %. 20334025 (129.0) %
108 . 69,607,623 - 57,592,398 (12,015225) 1209 % 20024974 .. . (60.0)% . -
1196 -+ 53,783,848 47,838,592 (5,945,256) 1124 % 19,141,532 - @Bl % -
LU 47,244,021 44,662,512 (2,581,509) 1058 % 19,288,723
‘Pre-19671>ohce , e R S R
103 8 6993981 § 14,173,012 % 7,179,031 . 493 % §. . - CONA L
/102 7833857 . 15,189,737 - 7355880 516 % .- . . NAS L
1/1/00 - 7,720242 15,955,616 8235374 484 % . 48330 17,039.9 % . -
1/1/98. 6,509,190 17,026,404 10,517,214 © 382 % 102,700 © 102407 % -
17196 - 5,664,009 16,837,404 11,173,305 33.6 % = 428958 2,604.8. % .
1194 . 5,099,454 16518397 - 11,418943 309 % = 429055 = . 2,6614 % .
Pre-1967F1re B o R S R S
71003 - -8 5864207 § 13,091,400 5 7,227,193~ 448 % $ - CNA
1/1/02,, - 6558299 13355820 6,797,521 - 491 %. L NA
11400 64217630 | 13,844,201 7422528 464 % . - . NA
1/1/98 . 54756660 - 14,739,221 9,263,555 372.%  °120,025 - 77180 % - -
1/1/96 - 4730352 . 14,561,842 9,831,490 325 % 161,406 - 6,091.2 % . " . .
1194 4,179,621 14,402,324 10,222,703 29.0 % 386,730 - 2,6434 % . .
_ Post—1967Pohce o R R L R i RN
71104 ' § 50,324,387 51,774,948 1,450,561 ~  97.2 % $ . 2,146,668 676 %
1/1/03 . 48,161,141 - 53371318 . 5210177 902 % - 2,541,819 . 205.0 %
VoL 44924489 45301753 % 377,264 992 % .. 2,532,599 149 %
1199 36,880,541 40,634,158 3,753,617 .~ 908 % = 2,724,359 " 137.8 % -
1197 . 27464027 . 34113354 . 6,649327 805 % 3,026,816 2197 %
1165 - 21,339,684 29,568,847 8229163 722 % 3,095662 2658 %
Post-1967F1re e R T S
7/1/04 . -§ 54985734 § 48,112,254 5 (6873480) 1143 % $ 6330894  (108.6)%
1/1/03 " 50,848,678 47,808,052 - (3,040,626) - 1064 %  6,065277 - (50.1) % -
© L - | 45969,156 . 41,475,040 . (4,493216) ' 1108 % 5379669 . (835) %
11799 37,127,622 35250799 - - (1,876,823) 1053 % . 4733503 . (396 %
1187 . . 27,099,001 - 29,002,474 1,903,473 934 % - 4619988 - 412 %
1195 . 720768169 . 23,548837. - 2,780,668 882 % . 4301797 . - . 646 %
Post-1983 Police: T P L
04 $ 8268316 § 9,038,173 769,857 915 % $.5993,120 . . 128 % . .
1/1/03 6,979,088 - - 7,629,489 650,401 915 % 5,333,425 122 %
101 5383342 - 5,121,615 - (261,727) 1051 % 4,370,060 60 %
1199 - 3665977 36032817 (62696) 1017 % 4,029,030 16 %
e 2045888 2,382,676 0 1 136788 - 943 % - 3,143,200 - 44 %
17185 - 1391378 1,555,404 - 164,026 - 89.5 % . 2,147,373

76 % -

wH%



CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT -

 NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Contlnued B A IR

" June 30, 2005

= ._fConnectrcut State Teachers Retrrement Svstem SR

 The faculty and professronal personnel of the Board of Educatron partlcrpate ina contrrbutory -

B defined benefit plan, established under Chapter 167a of the Connecticut General Statutes, which - o

- is administered by the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement Board. ‘A teacher is eligible to . R

o - receive normal retirement benefits if he or she has attamed age sixty and has accumulated twenty
.. . years of credited service in the publi¢c schools of Connecticut or has attained any age and has =~

accumulated thirty-five years of credited service, at least twenty—ﬁve of which are service in the

o public schools of Connecticut. The financial statements of the Plan are available from the 3

- Connectlout State Teachers Retrrement Board 21 Grand Street Hartford CT 06105

o Certam part-trme and full—tlme certlﬁed teachers are ehgrble to part1c1pate in the plan and are j o

o - required to contribute 7.25% of their annual earnings to the plan The Crty does not and ismot
: legally responsrhle to, contnbute to the plan ‘ v - . L

: 'The State of Connectlcut contmbutes based on actuanally determmed amounts The ﬁtnding’ ’

" level was determined based on an actuarial valuation of the plan-as a whole Wthh does not o

provrde actuanal mformanon on an mdrvrdual crty/town basrs

- In addrtron the Crty has recogmzed revenues and expendrtures for on-behalf payments for'
pension contributions paid directly to the Connectlcut State Teachers® Retirement System by the
State of Connectlcut Such on—behalf payments were approxnnately $3 203 OOO for the yearv o
ended June 30, 2005 L . , , . . o

: .MNote 13 Constructron Commltments

' The Clty is currently in the mlddle of various capltal proJ ects mcludmg street repavmg, school o

" t._'_renovatrons park improvements and other various prOJects At June 30, 2005, such amounts :

- : Were approxrrnately $28 967 028.

Note 14 RlSk Management

The C1ty is exposed o various nsks of loss related to torts theﬁ of damage to and destructron of S

T assets; errors and omissions; and- ‘natural disasters for Wthh the City carries commerelal""

" insurance.- Coverage has not been materially reduced, nor have settled claims exceeded SR
. commercial coverage in any of the last three years. The City is self-insured for the first =~

$250,000 per claim and maintains aggregate stop loss on workers’ compensation claims of $1.5

R million. The City is fully self-insured for all heart and hypertensron liability. Effective Julyl - >

2004 the Clty was no longer self—msured for medrcal or dental nsurance cla:lms

- 'Durmg the fiscal year ended June 30 1994 the Board of Educatlon estabhshed a minimum ' riv_: o
premium insurance plan for its basic health care, major medical and dental programs, including

~ hospitalization, for Board of Education employees and retirees. These benefits are provided =

e



R CITY OF DANBURY CONNECTICUT

‘ NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS Contmued

' June 30, 2005

through msurance compames and mclude deduetlbles and other hmrtatrons and may be i

- ‘amended or changed penodlcally - The plan covered approx1mate1y 200 Board of Education "

- refirees, the cost of which is covered i in full by the State of Connectrcut Teachers Retrrement o -
o _'_Board and/or 1nd1v1dual retn‘ees ', L : . S

- ‘Changes in the balances of clarrns habrhtres recorded by the Clty dunng the past two years are as’ | .

- follows: -
SRV IR »Clajms_: ' Claimsand Clarms »»
© Fiscal Year = Payable Changesin ~  Claims  Payable -~
Ended - July 1 | Estrmates S Paid'- 3 _-hme 30 -
2005 5 364614 S - S 364614 §

- 2004 ,$,__l 202,947 8. 1781 667 $ 1,620,000 8 364614 -
'Note 15 J omt Ventures and Related Orgamzatlons

The Candlewood Lake Authorlty (“Candlewood”) is a Jomt Venture of ﬁve mumclpahtres o
including the City of Danbury. Candlewood is under joint control, comprised of three delegates

from each member municipality selected for three-year terms. The City of Danbury has an . -

'~ ongoing financial responsibility but no equity interest. The City remitted approximately $54,112°

" to supplement Candlewood’s operating revenues for the year ended June 30, 2005 as

: Candlewood Would expenence ﬁnanc1a1 stress wuhout such revenue supplement

: Complete ﬁnancral statements for Candlewood can be obtamed by request from the Caudlewood o
7 Lake Authonty, P. O Box 37, Sherman, CT 06784—0037 : v

‘The Housatomc Area Reglonal Transrt Drstnct (“HART”) is a Jomt Venture of erght -

rnummpa]mes including the City of Danbury. HART is under joint control, comprised of at - - T
least one director from each member municipality selected for four-year terms. - The City of

Danbury has an ongoing financial responsibility, but no equity interest. The City remitted

~ approximately $632,040 to supplement HART’s operating revenues for the year ended June 30 o -

) 2005 as HART Would expenence ﬁnanc:1al stress wrthout such revenue supplement

o Complete ﬁnanc1al statements for HART can be obtamed by request from HART 107 Newtown-.. : :

o Road, Suite 2C, Danbury, CT 06810..

o The Housatomc Resources Recovery Authonty ( ‘HRRA”) isa Jomt venture of Whrch the Crty of }

| o Danbury is a member. The HRRA was established as a separate political subdivision of the State -
- in 1986 with the adoption of a creatmg ordinance by local municipalities, mcludmg Danbury.

- HRRA. was created for the purpose of prov1dmg solid waste management and disposal services
for the member municipalities. There are nine participating municipalities in HRRA with the
board bemg compnsed of one member from each mumc1pahty To avord ﬁnancral stress the-

L6
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' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Contmued S

© June30,2005

: »":""C1ty has an ongomg ﬁnanc1al respons1b1hty to supply a certam level of tonnage to HRRA m
oL "aocordance W1th the agreement between the Clty and HRRA but the Clty has 1o eqmty mterest "

o Complete ﬁnanmal statements for HRR_A can be obtamed by request ﬁom HRRA, Old Town cE

o Hall, Routes 25 and 133, Brookﬁeld Center CT 06804 or at Clty Hall 155 Deer Hlll Avenue |

Danbury, CT 06810.

o : The Ctty s ofﬁcrals are respon51ble for appomtmg the board members of the Housmg Authonty - o

o The City’s acoountablhty for the Housmg Authonty does not extend beyond makmg the: o

appomtments
" Note 16 Pronouncements Issued Not Yet Effectlve

’ The Governmental Accountmg Standards Board (GASB) has 1ssued several pronouncements o

o } pnor to June 30, 2005 that have effectrve dates that may 1mpact ﬁlture ﬁnancral presentatlons

B . Management has not ourrently determmed What 1f any, nnpaot nnplementatlon of the followmg ’
statements may have on the ﬁnanc1a1 statements of the C1ty : 3

. . “GASB Statement Number 42 “Accountmg and F1nanc1a1 Reportmg for Impalrment of o
. :Cap1ta1 Assets and Insurance Recovenes ' o R

L , . GASB Statement Number 43, “Fmanc1al RGPOrtmg for Postemployment Beneﬁt Plans Other -
Than Pensmn Plans ' S

. 0 ' GASB Statement Number 45 “Accountmg and Fmancral Reportmg by Employers for e N
- Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.” Pl

- 0 g GASB Statement Number 46, “Net Assets Restncted by Enab]mg Leg151atron An
. Amendment of GASB Statement Number 34.” U .

) 0 GASB Statement Number 47, “Aocountmg for Termmatlon Beneﬁts » Ry h

) Addmonally, the Governmental Accountmg Standards Board 1ssued Statement Number 44 : -
© “BEconomic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section,” which amends portions of previous - -
. guidance related to the preparation of a statistical section When presented as a requn'ed part of a

E comprehensrve annual ﬁnanc1al report (CAF R)
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FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

280 Trumbull Street

ROBINSON & COLE.» Hartford, CT 06103-3597

Main (860) 275-8200
Fax (860) 275-8299

City of Danbury
Danbury,
Connecticut

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have examined certified copies of the proceedings of the City of Danbury, Connecticut (the
“City”), a Tax Regulatory Agreement of the City dated August 4, 2006, (the "Tax Regulatory
Agreement") and other proofs submitted to us relative to the issuance and sale of $31,620,000 City of
Danbury, Connecticut General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2006, dated August 1, 2006 (the "Bonds"),
maturing on August 1 in each of the years in the principal amounts and bearing interest payable on
February 1, 2007 and semiannually thereafter on August 1 and February 1 in each year until maturity, or
earlier redemption, at the rates per annum as follows:

Year of Principal Interest Rate
Maturity Amount Per Annum
2007 $ 1,620,000 %
2008 1,620,000
2009 1,620,000
2010 1,615,000
2011 1,615,000
2012 1,615,000
2013 1,610,000
2014 1,610,000
2015 1,610,000
2016 1,610,000
2017 1,550,000
2018 1,550,000
2019 1,550,000
2020 1,550,000
2021 1,550,000
2022 1,545,000
2023 1,545,000
2024 1,545,000
2025 1,545,000
2026 1,545,000

with principal payable at the principal office of U.S. Bank National Association, in Hartford, Connecticut,
and with interest payable to the registered owner as of the close of business on the fifteenth day of July
and January in each year, or the preceding business day if such fifteenth day is not a business day, by
check mailed to such registered owner at his address as shown on the registration books of the City kept
for such purpose. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as therein provided.



The Bonds are originally registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository
Trust Company ("DTC"), to effect a book-entry system for the ownership and transfer of the Bonds. So
long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner, principal and interest payments on the Bonds will be
made to DTC.

We have not been engaged or undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of
the Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds (except to the extent, if any, stated
in the Official Statement) and we express no opinion relating thereto (excepting only the matters set forth
as our opinion in the Official Statement).

We are of the opinion that such proceedings and proofs show lawful authority for the issuance
and sale of the Bonds under authority of the Constitution and statutes of the State of Connecticut and that
the Bonds are a valid and binding general obligation of the City of Danbury the principal of and interest
on which is payable from ad valorem taxes which may be levied on all taxable property subject to
taxation by the City without limitation as to rate or amount except as to classified property, such as
certified forest lands taxable at a limited rate and dwelling houses of qualified elderly persons of low
income or of qualified disabled persons taxable at limited amounts. We are further of the opinion that the
Tax Regulatory Agreement is a valid and binding agreement of the City.

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), establishes certain requirements
that must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds in order that interest on the Bonds
remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The City has covenanted in the Tax
Regulatory Agreement that it will at all times perform all acts and things necessary or appropriate under
any valid provision of law to ensure that interest paid on the Bonds shall be excluded from gross income
for federal income tax purposes under the Code.

In our opinion, under existing statutes and court decisions, interest on the Bonds is excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not treated as an item of tax preference for purposes
of computing the federal alternative minimum tax. Interest on the Bonds is, however, includable in
adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain
corporations. We express no opinion regarding any other federal income tax consequences caused by
ownership or disposition of, or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.

In rendering the foregoing opinions regarding the federal tax treatment of interest on the Bonds,
we have relied upon and assumed (i) the material accuracy of the representations, statements of intention
and expectations, and certifications of fact contained in the Tax Regulatory Agreement, and (ii)
compliance by the City with the covenants and procedures set forth in the Tax Regulatory Agreement as
to such tax matters.

We are further of the opinion that, under existing statutes, interest on the Bonds is excluded from
Connecticut taxable income for purposes of the Connecticut income tax on individuals, trusts and estates,
and is excluded from amounts on which the net Connecticut minimum tax is based in the case of
individuals, trusts and estates required to pay the federal alternative minimum tax. We express no opinion
regarding any other State or local tax consequences caused by ownership or disposition of, or receipt of
interest on, the Bonds.

The rights of owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds and the Tax Regulatory
Agreement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws
affecting creditors rights generally and by application of equitable principles, whether considered at law
or in equity.

Respectfully yours,

ROBINSON & COLE LLP



FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

280 Trumbull Street

ROBINSON & COLE.wr Hartford, CT 06103-3597

Main (860) 275-8200
Fax (860) 275-8299

City of Danbury
Danbury,
Connecticut

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have examined certified copies of the proceedings of the City of Danbury,
Connecticut (the “City”), a Tax Regulatory Agreement of the City dated August 4, 2006 (the
"Tax Regulatory Agreement") and other proofs submitted to us relative to the issuance and sale
of $27,900,000 City of Danbury, Connecticut General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes,
dated August 4, 2006, and maturing August 3, 2007, consisting of Note No. R-1 in the aggregate
principal amount of $ , bearing interest at the rate of % per annum, Note
No. R-_ in the aggregate principal amount of $ , bearing interest at the rate of % per
annum, and Note No. R-_ in the aggregate principal amount of $ , bearing interest at
the rate of % per annum, with principal and interest payable at maturity (the "Notes"). The
Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Notes are originally registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The
Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), to effect a book-entry system for the ownership and
transfer of the Notes. So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner, principal and
interest payments on the Notes will be made to DTC.

We have not been engaged or undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness or
sufficiency of any Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Notes (except to
the extent, if any, stated in the Official Statement) and we express no opinion relating thereto
(excepting only the matters set forth as our opinion in the Official Statement).

We are of the opinion that such proceedings and proofs show lawful authority for the
issuance and sale of the Notes under authority of the Constitution and statutes of the State of
Connecticut and that the Notes are a valid and binding general obligation of the City of Danbury
the principal of and interest on which is payable from ad valorem taxes which may be levied on
all taxable property subject to taxation by the City without limitation as to rate or amount except
as to classified property, such as certified forest lands taxable at a limited rate and dwelling
houses of qualified elderly persons of low income or of qualified disabled persons taxable at
limited amounts. We are further of the opinion that the Tax Regulatory Agreement is a valid
and binding agreement of the City.



The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), establishes certain
requirements that must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Notes in order that
interest on the Notes remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The
City has covenanted in the Tax Regulatory Agreement that it will at all times perform all acts
and things necessary or appropriate under any valid provision of law to ensure that interest paid
on the Notes shall be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under the
Code.

In our opinion, under existing statutes and court decisions, interest on the Notes is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not treated as an item of tax
preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax. Interest on the Notes
is, however, includable in adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative
minimum tax imposed on certain corporations. We express no opinion regarding any other
federal income tax consequences caused by ownership or disposition of, or receipt of interest on,
the Notes.

In rendering the foregoing opinions regarding the federal tax treatment of interest on the
Notes, we have relied upon and assumed (i) the material accuracy of the representations,
statements of intention and expectations, and certifications of fact contained in the Tax
Regulatory Agreement, and (ii) compliance by the City with the covenants and procedures set
forth in the Tax Regulatory Agreement as to such tax matters.

We are further of the opinion that, under existing statutes, interest on the Notes is
excluded from Connecticut taxable income for purposes of the Connecticut income tax on
individuals, trusts and estates, and is excluded from amounts on which the net Connecticut
minimum tax is based in the case of individuals, trusts and estates required to pay the federal
alternative minimum tax. We express no opinion regarding any other State or local tax
consequences caused by ownership or disposition of, or receipt of interest on, the Notes.

The rights of owners of the Notes and the enforceability of the Notes and the Tax
Regulatory Agreement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
and other similar laws affecting creditors rights generally and by application of equitable
principles, whether considered at law or in equity.

Respectfully yours,

ROBINSON & COLE LLP
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT
CITY OF DANBURY, CONNECTICUT

Dated As Of August 4, 2006

In Connection With The Issuance And Sale Of
$31,620,000 City Of Danbury, Connecticut
General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2006, Dated August 1, 2006

WHEREAS, the City of Danbury, Connecticut (the “Issuer”) has heretofore authorized
the issuance of $31,620,000 in aggregate principal amount of its General Obligation Bonds,
Issue of 2006 (the "Bonds"), to be dated August 1, 2006 and to mature in the principal amounts
and on the dates set forth in the Issuer's final Official Statement dated July 26, 2006 describing
the Bonds (the "Official Statement"); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has offered the Bonds for sale through competitive bid pursuant
to its Notice of Sale dated July 19, 2006 (the "Notice of Sale"); and

WHEREAS, in the Notice of Sale the Issuer has heretofore acknowledged that an
underwriter may not purchase or sell the Bonds unless it has reasonably determined that the
Issuer has undertaken in a written agreement for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the
Bonds to provide certain continuing disclosure information as required by Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) as amended from time to time (the "Rule"), and the
Issuer desires to assist the underwriter of the Bonds in complying with the Rule; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized pursuant to Section 3-20c of the Connecticut
General Statutes to make representations and agreements for the benefit of the beneficial owners
of the Bonds to meet the requirements of the Rule; and

WHEREAS, in order to assist the underwriter of the Bonds in complying with the Rule,
this Continuing Disclosure Agreement is to be made, executed and delivered in connection with
the issuance of the Bonds and to be described in the Official Statement, all for the benefit of the
beneficial owners of the Bonds, as they may be from time to time;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE ISSUER HEREBY REPRESENTS, COVENANTS AND
AGREES AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Definitions. In addition to the terms defined above, the following capitalized
terms shall have the meanings ascribed thereto:

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and
as described in, Sections 2 and 3 of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

“Fiscal Year End” shall mean the last day of the Issuer’s fiscal year, currently June 30.

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 4 of this Continuing
Disclosure Agreement.

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant to
Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor thereto.



"NRMSIR" shall mean any nationally recognized municipal securities information
repository for purposes of the Rule.

"SID" shall mean any state information depository established or designated by the State
of Connecticut for the purposes of the Rule. As of the date of this Agreement no SID has been
so established or designated by the State of Connecticut.

Section 2. Annual Reports.

(a) The Issuer shall provide or cause to be provided to each NRMSIR and to
the SID the following annual financial information and operating data regarding
the Issuer:

(i) Audited financial statements as of and for the year ending
on its Fiscal Year End for the general fund, capital projects funds and
special revenue funds, prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board from time to time or mandated state statutory principles
as in effect from time to time; and

(ii)  Financial information and operating data as of and for the
year ending on its Fiscal Year End of the following type to the extent not
included in the audited financial statements described in (i) above:

(A) the amounts of the gross and net taxable grand list;

(B) a listing of the ten largest taxpayers on the grand
list, together with each such taxpayer's taxable valuation thereon;

(C)  the percentage and amount of the annual property
tax levy collected and uncollected;

(D)  aschedule of the annual debt service on outstanding
long-term bonded indebtedness;

(E)  acalculation of the net direct debt, total direct debt,

and total overall net debt (reflecting overlapping and underlying
debt);

(F)  the total direct debt, total net direct debt and total
overall net debt of the Issuer per capita;

(G)  the ratios of total direct debt and total overall net
debt of the Issuer to the Issuer's net taxable grand list;

(H) a statement of statutory debt limitations and debt
margins; and

(I)  the funding status of the Issuer's pension benefit
obligations.

-



(b)  The above-referenced information is expected to be provided by the filing
of and cross reference to the Issuer's audited financial statements. The
information may be provided in whole or in part by cross-reference to other
documents provided to each NRMSIR and the SID, including official statements
of the Issuer which will be available from the MSRB.

(c) Subject to the requirements of Section 8 hereof, the Issuer reserves the
right to modify from time to time the specific types of information or data
provided or the format of the presentation of such information or data, to the
extent necessary or appropriate; provided that the Issuer agrees that any such
modification will be done in a manner consistent with the Rule. The Issuer also
reserves the right to modify the preparation and presentation of financial
statements described herein as may be required to conform with changes in
Connecticut law applicable to municipalities or any changes in generally accepted
accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board from time to time.

Section 3. Timing. The Issuer shall provide the information and data referenced in
Section 2(a) not later than eight months after each Fiscal Year End subsequent to the date of
issuance of the Bonds, provided, however, that if such financial information and data for the
Fiscal Year End preceding the date of issuance of the Bonds is not contained in the Official
Statement for the Bonds or has not otherwise been previously provided, the Issuer shall provide
such information and data no later than eight months after the close of such preceding Fiscal
Year End. The Issuer agrees that if audited information is not available eight months after the
close of any Fiscal Year End, it shall submit unaudited information by such time and will submit
audited information within 60 days of receipt.

Section 4. Event Notices. The Issuer agrees to provide or cause to be provided in a
timely manner, to (i) each NRMSIR or to the MSRB, and (ii) the SID, notice of the occurrence
of any of the following events, if material:

@)
(ii)
(iif)
(iv)
)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
)

principal and interest payment delinquencies;

non-payment related defaults;

unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the security;
modifications to rights of security holders;

bond calls;

defeasances;

release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities; and
3.



(xi) rating changes.

Section 5. Notice of Failure. The Issuer agrees to provide or cause to be provided, in a
timely manner, to (i) each NRMSIR or to the MSRB, and (ii) the SID, notice of any failure by
the Issuer to provide the annual financial information described in Section 2(a) of this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or
payment in full of all of the Bonds.

Section 7. Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage an agent to
assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and may
discharge any such agent, with or without appointing a successor agent.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer may amend this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and any
provision of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such amendment or
waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal
requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature or status of the Issuer, and is
supported by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws, to the effect that (i) such
amendment or waiver would not materially adversely affect the beneficial owners of the Bonds
and (ii) the Agreement as so amended would have complied with the requirements of the Rule as
of the date of the Agreement, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule
as well as any changes in circumstances. A copy of any such amendment will be filed in a
timely manner with (i) each NRMSIR or the MSRB, and (ii) the SID. The annual financial
information provided on the first date following adoption of any such amendment will explain, in
narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change in the type of
operating or financial information provided.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement
shall be deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means
of dissemination set forth in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement or any other means of
communication, or including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence
of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Continuing Disclosure Agreement.
If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of
a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this Continuing Disclosure Agreement to
update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a
Listed Event.

Section 10. Indemnification. The Issuer agrees to indemnify and save its officials,
officers and employees harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which they may incur
arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the
costs and expenses (including attorney's fees) of defending against any claim of liability
hereunder, but excluding any such liabilities due to any such person's malicious, wanton, or
willful act. The obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive, notwithstanding that
such person may no longer be serving in such capacity.
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Section 11. Enforceability. The Issuer agrees that its undertaking pursuant to the Rule
set forth in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement is intended to be for the benefit of and
enforceable by the beneficial owners of the Bonds. In the event the Issuer shall fail to perform
its duties hereunder, the Issuer shall have the option to cure such failure after its receipt of
written notice from any beneficial owner of the Bonds of such failure. In the event the Issuer
does not cure such failure, the right of any beneficial owner of the Bonds to enforce the
provisions of this undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement of the
Issuer's obligations hereunder. No monetary damages shall arise or be payable hereunder nor
shall any failure to comply with this Agreement constitute default of the Issuer with respect to
the Bonds.

Section 12. Miscellaneous. Any filing under this Agreement may be made solely by
transmitting such filing to the Texas Municipal Advisory Council (the “MAC”) as provided at
http.//www.disclosureusa.org unless the SEC has withdrawn the interpretation advise in its letter
to the MAC dated September 7, 2004.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Continuing Disclosure Agreement
to be executed in its name by its undersigned officers, duly authorized, all as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF DANBURY,
CONNECTICUT

By
Mark D. Boughton
Mayor

By
Daniel P. Jowdy
Treasurer

By
Dena Diorio
Director of Finance
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT
By The CITY OF DANBURY, CONNECTICUT
Dated As Of August 4, 2006
In Connection With The Issuance And Sale Of
$27,900,000 City Of Danbury, Connecticut
General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes, Dated August 4, 2006

WHEREAS, the City of Danbury, Connecticut (the “Issuer”) has heretofore authorized the
issuance of $27,900,000 in aggregate principal amount of its General Obligation Bond Anticipation
Notes (the "Notes") dated August 4, 2006, maturing August 3, 2007, said Notes as more fully
described in the Issuer's final Official Statement dated July 26, 2006 (the "Official Statement"); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has offered the Notes for sale through competitive bid pursuant to its
Notice of Sale dated July 19, 2006 (the "Notice of Sale"); and

WHEREAS, in the Notice of Sale the Issuer has heretofore acknowledged that an
underwriter may not purchase or sell the Notes unless it has reasonably determined that the Issuer
has undertaken in a written agreement for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Notes to
provide notices of material events as required by Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-
12(b)(5) as amended from time to time (the "Rule"), and the Issuer desires to assist the underwriter
of the Notes in complying with the Rule; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized pursuant to Section 3-20c of the Connecticut General
Statutes, to make representations and agreements for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the
Notes to meet the requirements of the Rule; and

WHEREAS, in order to assist the underwriter of the Notes in complying with the Rule, this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement is to be made, executed and delivered in connection with the
issuance of the Notes and to be described in the Official Statement, all for the benefit of the
beneficial owners of the Notes, as they may be from time to time;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE ISSUER HEREBY REPRESENTS, COVENANTS AND
AGREES AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Definitions. In addition to the terms defined above, the following capitalized
terms shall have the meanings ascribed thereto:

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 2 of this Continuing
Disclosure Agreement.

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant to
Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor thereto.

"NRMSIR" shall mean any nationally recognized municipal securities information
repository for purposes of the Rule.



"SID" shall mean any state information depository established or designated by the State of
Connecticut for the purposes of the Rule. As of the date of this Agreement no SID has been so
established or designated by the State of Connecticut.

Section 2. Event Notices. The Issuer agrees to provide or cause to be provided in a timely
manner, to (i) each NRMSIR or to the MSRB, and (ii) the SID, notice of the occurrence of any of
the following events, if material:

@)
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

)
(vi)
(vit)
(viii)
(ix)
x)

(xi)

principal and interest payment delinquencies;
non-payment related defaults;

unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the
security;

modifications to rights of security holders;
bond calls;
defeasances;

release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
securities; and

rating changes.

Section 3. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this

Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or
payment in full of all of the Notes.

Section 4. Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage an agent to assist it
in carrying out its obligations under this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and may discharge any
such agent, with or without appointing a successor agent.



Section 5. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer may amend this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and any
provision of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is
made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature or status of the Issuer, and is supported by an
opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws, to the effect that (i) such amendment or waiver
would not adversely affect the beneficial owners of the Notes and (ii) the Agreement as so amended
would have complied with the requirements of the Rule as of the date of the Agreement, taking into
account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule as well as any changes in circumstances. A
copy of any such amendment will be filed in a timely manner with (i) each NRMSIR or the MSRB,
and (ii) the SID.

Section 6. Additional Information. Nothing in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall
be deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement or any other means of
communication, or including any other information in any notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in
addition to that which is required by this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. If the Issuer chooses to
include any information in any notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is
specifically required by this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer shall have no obligation
under this Continuing Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

Section 7. Indemnification. The Issuer agrees to indemnify and save its officials, officers
and employees harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which they may incur arising out
of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and
expenses (including attorney's fees) of defending against any claim of liability hereunder, but
excluding any such liabilities due to any such person's malicious, wanton, or willful act. The
obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive, notwithstanding that such person may no
longer be serving in such capacity.

Section 8. Enforceability. The Issuer agrees that its undertaking pursuant to the Rule set
forth in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement is intended to be for the benefit of the beneficial
owners of the Notes and shall be enforceable by them. In the event the Issuer shall fail to perform
its duties hereunder, the Issuer shall have the option to cure such failure after its receipt of written
notice from any beneficial owner of the Notes of such failure. In the event the Issuer does not cure
such failure, the right of any beneficial owner of the Notes to enforce the provisions of this
undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement of the Issuer's obligations
hereunder. No monetary damages shall arise or be payable hereunder nor shall any failure to
comply with this Agreement constitute default of the Issuer with respect to the Notes.

Section 9. Miscellaneous. Any filing under this Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be
made solely by transmitting such filing to the Texas Municipal Advisory Council (the “MAC”) as
provided at http://www.disclosureusa.org unless the SEC has withdrawn the interpretive advice in
its letter to the MAC dated September 7, 2004.



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Issuer has caused this Continuing Disclosure Agreement to
be executed in its name by its undersigned officers, duly authorized, all as of the date first above
written.

CITY OF DANBURY,
CONNECTICUT

By

Mark D. Boughton
Mayor

By

Daniel P. Jowdy
City Treasurer

By

Dena Diorio
Director of Finance
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Notices of Sale & Bid Forms
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NOTICE OF SALE

$31,620,000
CITY OF DANBURY, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
ISSUE OF 2006

Sealed proposals and electronic bids (as described herein) will be received by the CITY OF DANBURY, CONNECTICUT
(the "City"), until 11:00 A.M. (E.D.T.) Wednesday,

JULY 26,2006

for the purchase of all, but not less than all, of $31,620,000 City of Danbury, Connecticut General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2006
(the “Bonds”). Sealed proposals will be received at Danbury City Hall, Finance Department, Conference Room, 155 Deer Hill
Avenue, Danbury, CT 06810 (See "Sealed Proposal Procedures”). Electronic bids must be submitted via PARITY® (See "Electronic
Bidding Procedures").

The Bonds

The Bonds will be dated August 1, 2006, mature $1,620,000 on August 1 in each of the years 2007-2009, both inclusive,
$1,615,000 on August 1 in each of the years 2010-2012, both inclusive, $1,610,000 on August 1 in each of the years 2013-2016, both
inclusive, $1,550,000 on August 1 in each of the years 2017-2021, both inclusive, and $1,545,000 on August 1 in each of the years
2022-2026, both inclusive, bear interest payable on February 1, 2007 and semiannually thereafter on August 1 and February 1 in each
year until maturity, or earlier redemption, as further described in the Preliminary Official Statement for the Bonds dated July 19, 2006
(the “Preliminary Official Statement”).

The Bonds maturing on August 1, 2014 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the election of the City,
on and after August 1, 2013, at any time, in whole or in part and by lot within a maturity, in such amounts and in such order of
maturity as the City may determine, at the respective prices (expressed as percentages of the principal amounts of Bonds to be
redeemed) set forth in the following table, together with interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date:

Redemption Dates Redemption Price
From: August 1, 2013, and thereafter 100%

The Bonds will be issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of bond certificates made to the
public. The Bonds will be issued in registered form and one bond certificate for each maturity will be issued to The Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), registered in the name of its nominee, Cede & Co., and immobilized in their custody. A
book-entry system will be employed, evidencing ownership of the Bonds in principal amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof,
with transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by DTC and
its participants. The winning bidder, as a condition to delivery of the Bonds, will be required to deposit the bond certificates with
DTC, or its custodian, registered in the name of Cede & Co. Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the City of
Danbury or its agent in same-day funds to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the Bonds. Transfer of principal and interest
payments to participants of DTC will be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial owners by
participants of DTC will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial owners. The City will not be
responsible or liable for payments by DTC to its participants or by DTC participants to beneficial owners or for maintaining,
supervising or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting through such participants.

Nature of Obligation

The Bonds will be general obligations of the City payable, unless paid from other sources, from ad valorem taxes which may
be levied on all taxable property subject to taxation by the City without limitation as to rate or amount except as to classified property
such as certified forest lands taxable at a limited rate and dwelling houses of qualified elderly persons of low income or of qualified
disabled persons taxable at limited amounts.



Bank Qualification

The Bonds shall NOT be designated by the City as qualified tax exempt obligations under the provisions of Section 265(b) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for purposes of the deduction by financial institutions for interest expense allocable
to the Bonds.

Electronic Bidding Procedures

Any prospective bidder intending to submit an electronic bid must submit its electronic bid through the facilities of
PARITY®.

An electronic bid made through the facilities of PARITY® shall be deemed an irrevocable offer to purchase the Bonds on
the terms provided in the Notice of Sale, and shall be binding upon the bidder as if made by a signed, sealed bid delivered to the
City. The City shall not be responsible for any malfunction or mistake made by, or as a result of the use of the facilities of,
PARITY®, the use of such facilities being the sole risk of the prospective bidder.

If any provisions of this Notice of Sale shall conflict with information provided by PARITY® as the approved provider
of electronic bidding services, this Notice of Sale shall control. Further information about PARITY®, including any fee charged,
may be obtained from PARITY®, 1359 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10018, Attention: Customer Service
Department (telephone: (212) 849-5021 — email notice: parity@i-deal.com.

For purposes of both the written sealed proposal process and the electronic bidding process, the time as maintained by
PARITY® shall constitute the official time. For information purposes only, bidders are requested to state in their electronic bids
the true interest cost to the City, comoputed and rounded to four decimal places, as described under “Basis of Award” below, and
in the written form of Proposal for Bonds. All electronic bids shall be deemed to incorporate the provisions of this Notice of Sale
and the form of Proposal for Bonds.

Sealed Proposal Procedures

Bids will be accepted in written form on the form of Proposal for Bonds at the place and time indicated above. Bids must
be enclosed in sealed envelopes marked "Proposal for Bonds” and addressed to Mr. Daniel P. Jowdy, City Treasurer, City of
Danbury.

Bid Specifications/Basis of Award

Each bid must be for the entire $31,620,000 of Bonds and must specify the rate or rates of interest therefor in a multiple of
1/20 or 1/8 of 1% per annum, provided such bid shall not state (a) more than one interest rate for any Bonds having like maturity, or
(b) any interest rate for any Bonds which exceeds the interest rate stated in the proposal for any other Bonds by more than 2%.
Interest shall be computed on the basis of twelve 30 day months and a 360 day year. No bid for less than all of the Bonds or for less
than par and accrued interest will be considered. The right is reserved to reject any and all proposals and to waive any irregularity or
informality with respect to any proposal. Unless all bids are rejected the Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering to purchase
them at the lowest true interest cost.

For the purpose of determining the successful bidder, the true interest cost to the City will be the annual interest rate,
compounded semiannually, which, when used to discount all payments of principal and interest payable on the Bonds to
August 1, 2006, the date of the Bonds, results in an amount equal to the purchase price for the Bonds, not including interest accrued to
August 4, 2006, the delivery date of the Bonds. It is requested that each proposal be accompanied by a statement of the percentage of
true interest cost computed and rounded to four decimal places. Such statement shall not be considered as a part of the proposal. The
Bonds will be awarded or all bids will be rejected promptly after the bid opening and not later than 4:00 P.M. (E.D.T.) on
July 26, 2006. The purchase price must be paid in Federal Funds.




Closing Documents and Legal Opinion

The Bonds will be certified by U.S. Bank National Association, in Hartford, Connecticut. The legality of the Bonds will be
passed upon by Robinson & Cole LLP, Bond Counsel, Hartford, Connecticut, and the winning bidder will be furnished with their
opinion without charge. The winning bidder will also be furnished with a signature and no litigation certificate, a receipt of payment
satisfactory in form to Bond Counsel, a signed copy of the final Official Statement prepared for the Bonds, a certificate signed by the
appropriate officials of the City relating to the accuracy and completeness of information contained in the final Official Statement, and
an executed continuing disclosure agreement.

The legal opinion will further state that, under existing statutes and court decisions (i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes, (ii) such interest is not treated as an item of tax preference for purposes of computing
the federal alternative minimum tax; but is, however, includable in adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative
minimum tax imposed on certain corporations, (iii) under existing statutes, interest on the Bonds is excluded from Connecticut taxable
income for purposes of the Connecticut income tax on individuals, trusts and estates, and (iv) such interest is excluded from amounts
on which the net Connecticut minimum tax is based in the case of individuals, trusts and estates required to pay federal alternative
minimum tax. In rendering the legal opinion, Robinson & Cole LLP will rely upon and assume the material accuracy of the
representations and statements of expectation contained in the Tax Regulatory Agreement entered into by the City for the benefit of
the owners of the Bonds, and further, will assume compliance by the City with the covenants and procedures set forth in such Tax
Regulatory Agreement. A copy of the opinion will be printed upon each of the Bonds, and a signed opinion and transcript of
proceedings will be filed with U.S. Bank National Association, in Hartford, Connecticut and will be available for examination upon
request.

Continuing Disclosure

The City will undertake in a Continuing Disclosure Agreement entered into in accordance with the requirements of Rule
15¢2-12(b)(5), promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, to provide (i) certain annual financial information and
operating data, including audited financial statements; (ii) timely notice of the occurrence of certain material events with respect to the
Bonds; and (iii) timely notice of its failure to provide such annual financial information. The winning bidder's obligation to purchase
the Bonds shall be conditioned upon its receiving, at or prior to the delivery of the Bonds, an executed copy of the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement for the Bonds.

Settlement of the Bonds

1t shall be the responsibility of the winning bidder to certify to the City before delivery of the Bonds the prices at which a
substantial amount of the Bonds of each maturity were initially offered and sold to the public.

The Bonds will be available for delivery on or about August 4, 2006. The deposit of the Bonds with DTC, or its custodian,
under a book-entry system requires the assignment of CUSIP numbers prior to delivery. It shall be the responsibility of the winning
bidder to obtain CUSIP numbers for the Bonds prior to delivery, and the City will not be responsible for any delay occasioned by the
failure of the winning bidder to obtain such numbers and to supply them to the City in a timely manner. The City assumes no
responsibility for any CUSIP Service Bureau charge or other charge that may be imposed for the assignment of such numbers, which
charges shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the purchaser.

The Preliminary Official Statement is in a form "deemed final" by the City for purposes of SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(1). The
winning bidder will be furnished 100 copies of the final Official Statement prepared for the Bonds at the City's expense. Additional
copies may be obtained by the winning bidder at its own expense by arrangement with the printer. The copies of the Official
Statement will be made available to the winning bidder no later than seven business days after the bid opening at the office of the
City's financial advisor. If the City's financial advisor is provided with the necessary information from the winning bidder by 12:00
p.m.(noon) on the day after the bid opening, the copies of the final Official Statement will include an additional cover page and other
pages, if necessary, indicating the interest rates, rating, yields or reoffering prices, the name of the managing underwriter, and the
name of the insurer, if any, of the Bonds.



Related Information

For more information regarding the Bonds and the City, reference is made to the Preliminary Official Statement. Bid forms
and copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained from the undersigned, or from Matthew A. Spoerndle, People’s
Bank, 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, CT 06601 Tel. (203) 338-4238.

MARK D. BOUGHTON
Mayor

DANIEL P. JOWDY
Treasurer

DENA DIORIO
Director of Finance

July 19, 2006
(See attached for form of Proposal for Bonds)



PROPOSAL FOR BONDS
July 2006

MARK D. BOUGHTON, Mayor
DANIEL P. JOWDY, City Treasurer
DENA DIORIO, Director of Finance
City of Danbury, Connecticut
Danbury City Hall, Finance Department, Conference Room
155 Deer Hill Avenue
Danbury, CT 06810

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Subject to the provisions of the Notice of Sale dated July 19, 2006, which Notice is made a part of this proposal, we offer
to purchase all $31,620,000 bonds of the City of Danbury, Connecticut comprising the issue described in said Notice and to pay
therefor par and accrued interest to date of delivery, plus a premium of $.............coiiiiiiiininnn. , provided that the Bonds
maturing in the several years set forth below shall bear interest from their date until maturity at the respective rates per annum
stated in the following table:

Date of Principal Interest Date of Principal Interest
Maturity Amount Rate Maturity Amount Rate
August 1, 2007 $ 1,620,000 _ % August 1, 2017 $ 1,550,000 _ %
August 1, 2008 1,620,000 . August 1,2018 1,550,000 .
August 1, 2009 1,620,000 - August 1, 2019 1,550,000 .
August 1,2010 1,615,000 L August 1, 2020 1,550,000 L
August 1, 2011 1,615,000 e August 1, 2021 1,550,000 -
August 1,2012 1,615,000 . August 1, 2022 1,545,000 -
August 1,2013 1,610,000 _ August 1, 2023 1,545,000 .
August 1, 2014 1,610,000 _ August 1, 2024 1,545,000 -
August 1, 2015 1,610,000 . August 1, 2025 1,545,000 L
August 1, 2016 1,610,000 _ August 1, 2026 1,545,000 .
(Name of Bidder)
(Authorized Signature)
(Mailing Address)

The following is our computation of the true interest cost, made as provided in the above-mentioned Notice of Sale, but
not constituting any part of the foregoing proposal, for the purchase of $31,620,000 bonds under the foregoing proposal:

Percent True Interest COSt oot %
(Four Decimals)
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NOTICE OF SALE
$27,900,000
CITY OF DANBURY, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES

Sealed proposals and electronic bids (as described herein) will be received by the CITY OF
DANBURY, Connecticut (the “City™), until 11:30 A.M. (E.D.T.) Wednesday,

JULY 26, 2006

for the purchase of $27,900,000 City of Danbury, Connecticut General Obligation Bond Anticipation
Notes (the “Notes”). Sealed proposals will be received at Danbury City Hall, Finance Department
Conference Room, 155 Deer Hill Avenue, Danbury CT 06810 in the manner specified below (See
“Sealed Proposal Procedures”). Electronic bids must be submitted via PARITY®. (See "Electronic
Bidding Procedures").

The Notes

The Notes will be dated August 4, 2006 and will be payable to the registered owner on August 3,
2007 as further described in the Preliminary Official Statement for the Notes dated July 19, 2006 (the
“Preliminary Official Statement”). The Notes will bear interest (which interest shall be computed on a
360-day year, 30-day month basis) payable at maturity at the rate or rates per annum fixed in the proposal
or proposals accepted for their purchase, which rates shall be in multiples of 1/100 of 1% per annum.

The Notes will be issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of note
certificates made to the public. The Notes will be issued in registered form and one note certificate for
each interest rate will be issued to The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”),
registered in the name of its nominee, Cede & Co., and immobilized in their custody. A book-entry
system will be employed, evidencing ownership of the Notes in principal amounts of $1,000 or integral
muitiples thereof, with transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant
to rules and procedures adopted by DTC and its participants. The winning bidder or bidders, as a
condition to delivery of the Notes, will be required to deposit the note certificates with DTC, or its
custodian, registered in the name of Cede & Co. Principal of and interest on the Notes will be payable by
the City or its agent in same-day funds to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the Notes. Transfer
of principal and interest payments to participants of DTC will be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of
principal and interest payments to beneficial owners by participants of DTC will be the responsibility of
such participants and other nominees of beneficial owners. The City will not be responsible or liable for
payments by DTC to its participants or by DTC participants to beneficial owners or for maintaining,
supervising or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting through such
participants.

Nature of Obligation

The Notes will be general obligations of the City payable, unless paid from other sources, from
ad valorem taxes which may be levied on all taxable property subject to taxation by the City without
limitation as to rate or amount except as to classified property such as certified forest lands taxable at a
limited rate and dwelling houses of qualified elderly persons of low income or of qualified disablied
persons taxable at limited amounts.



Bank Qualification

The Notes shall NOT be designated by the City as qualified tax-exempt obligations under the
provisions of Section 265(b) of the Code for purposes of the deduction by financial institutions for
interest expense allocable to the Notes.

Electronic Bidding Procedures

Any prospective bidder intending to submit an electronic bid must submit its electronic bid
through the facilities of PARITY®.

An electronic bid made through the facilities of PARITY® shall be deemed an irrevocable offer to
purchase the Notes on the terms provided in this Notice of Sale, and shall be binding upon the bidder as if
made by a signed, sealed bid delivered to the City. The City shall not be responsible for any malfunction
or mistake made by, or as a result of the use of the facilities of, PARITY®, the use of such facilities being
the sole risk of the prospective bidder.

If any provisions of this Notice of Sale shall conflict with information provided by PARITY® as
the approved provider of electronic bidding services, this Notice of Sale shall control. Further
information about PARITY®, including any fee charged, may be obtained from PARITY®, 1359
Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10018, Attention: Customer Service Department
(telephone: (212) 849-5021 — email notice: parity@i-deal.com.

For purposes of both the written sealed proposal process and the electronic bidding process, the
time as maintained by PARITY® shall constitute the official time. For information purposes only,
bidders are requested to state in their electronic bids the net interest cost to the City, as described under
“Basis of Award” below, and in the written form of Proposal for Purchase. All electronic bids shall be
deemed to incorporate the provisions of this Notice of Sale and form of Proposal for Purchase.

Sealed Proposal Procedures

Bids will be accepted in written form on the form of Proposal for Purchase at the place and time
indicated above. Bids must be enclosed in sealed envelopes marked “Proposal for Notes” and addressed
to Daniel P. Jowdy, City Treasurer, City of Danbury.

Bid Specifications/Basis of Award

Proposals for the purchase of the Notes must be in the form of the proposal for purchase attached
hereto or, if submitted electronically, in accordance with the requirements prescribed herein. A proposal
may be for all or any part of the Notes but any proposal for a part must be for $100,000, or a whole
multiple thereof, and a separate proposal will be required for each part of the Notes for which a separate
interest rate is bid. Proposals for the purchase of the Notes must be in the form of the proposal for
purchase attached hereto. Unless all bids are rejected the Notes will be awarded to the bidder or bidders
offering to purchase the Notes at the lowest net interest cost, computed as to each interest rate stated by
adding the total interest which will be paid at such rate and deducting therefrom the premium offered, if
any. As between proposals resulting in the same lowest net interest cost to the City, the award will be
made on the basis of the highest principal amount of the Notes specified. No bid for less than par and
accrued interest, if any, will be considered and the City reserves the right to award to any bidder all or any
part of the Notes bid for in his proposal. If a bidder is awarded only a part of the Notes bid for in his
proposal, any premium offered in such proposal will be proportionately reduced so that the resulting net




interest cost to the City with respect to the Notes awarded is the same as that contained in the bidder's
proposal with respect to the entire amount bid, carried to four decimal places. The purchase price must be
paid in Federal Funds.

The City reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any irregularity or informality
with respect to any bid. The City further reserves the right to postpone the sale to another time and date
in its sole discretion for any reason, including internet difficulties. The City will use its best efforts to
notify prospective bidders in a timely manner of any need for a postponement.

Closing Documents and Legal Opinion

The full faith and credit of the City will be pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of
and the interest on the Notes. The Notes will be certified by U. S. Bank National Association, Hartford,
Connecticut. The legality of the Notes will be passed upon by Robinson & Cole LLP, Bond Counsel,
Hartford, Connecticut, and the winning bidder(s) will be furnished with their opinion without charge.
Each winning bidder(s) will also be furnished with a signature and no litigation certificate, a receipt of
payment satisfactory in form to Bond Counsel, a signed copy of the final Official Statement prepared for
this sale, a certificate signed by the appropriate officials of the City relating to the accuracy and
completeness of information contained in the final Official Statement and an executed continuing
disclosure agreement.

The legal opinion will further state that, under existing statutes and court decisions (i) interest on
the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (ii) such interest is not treated
as an item of tax preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax; but is,
however, includable in adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax
imposed on certain corporations, (iii) under existing statutes, interest on the Notes is excluded from
Connecticut taxable income for purposes of the Connecticut income tax on individuals, trusts and estates,
and (iv) such interest is excluded from amounts on which the net Connecticut minimum tax is based in the
case of individuals, trusts and estates required to pay federal alternative minimum tax. In rendering the
legal opinion, Robinson & Cole LLP will rely upon and assume the material accuracy of the
representations and statements of expectation contained in the Tax Regulatory Agreement entered into by
the City for the benefit of the owners of the Notes, and further, will assume compliance by the City with
the covenants and procedures set forth in such Tax Regulatory Agreement.

Settlement of the Notes

It shall be the responsibility of the winning bidder or bidders to certify to the City before the
delivery of the Notes the price or prices at which a substantial amount of the Notes were initially offered
and sold to the public.

The Notes will be available for delivery on or about August 4, 2006. The deposit of the Notes with
DTC, or its custodian, under a book-entry system requires the assignment of CUSIP numbers prior to
delivery. It shall be the responsibility of the winning bidder or bidders to obtain CUSIP numbers for the
Notes prior to delivery, and the City will not be responsible for any delay occasioned by the failure of the
winning bidder or bidders to obtain such numbers and to supply them to the City in a timely manner. The
City assumes no responsibility for any CUSIP Service Bureau charge or other charge that may be imposed
for the assignment of such numbers, which charges shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the
purchaser.

The right is reserved to reject any and all proposals and to waive any irregularity or informality
with respect to any proposal.



The Preliminary Official Statement is in a form “deemed final” by the City for purposes of SEC
Rule 15¢2-12(b)(1). Each winning bidder will be furnished 15 copies of the final Official Statement
prepared for the Notes at the City’sexpense. Additional copies may be obtained by the winning bidder(s) at
its own expense by arrangement with the printer. The copies of the final Official Statement will be made
available to the winning bidder(s) no later than seven business days after the bid opening at the office of the
City’s financial advisor. If the City’s financial advisor is provided with the necessary information from the
winning bidder(s) by 12:00 pm (noon) on the day after the bid opening, the copies of the final Official
Statement will include an additional cover page and other pages, if necessary, indicating the interest rates,
rating(s), yields or reoffering prices and the name of the managing underwriter.

Continuing Disclosure

The City will undertake in a Continuing Disclosure Agreement entered into in accordance with
the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5), promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, to
provide timely notice of the occurrence of certain material events with respect to the Notes. The winning
bidder’s obligation to purchase the Notes shall be conditioned upon its receiving, at or prior to the
delivery of the Notes, an executed copy of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement for the Notes.

Related Information
For more information regarding the Notes and the City, reference is made to the Preliminary Official

Statement. Bid forms and copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained from the undersigned,
or from Matthew A. Spoerndle, People’s Bank, 850 Main Street, Bridgeport, CT 06601 Tel. (203) 338-4238.

MARK D. BOUGHTON
Mayor

DANIEL P. JOWDY
City Treasurer

DENA DIORIO
Director of Finance

July 19, 2006

(See attached for form of Proposal for Purchase)



PROPOSAL FOR PURCHASE

July __ ,2006
MARK D. BOUGHTON, Mayor
DANIEL P. JOWDY, City Treasurer
DENA DIORIO, Director of Finance
City of Danbury
City Hall
Finance Department Conference Room
155 Deer Hill Avenue
Danbury, CT 06810

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Subject to the provisions of the Notice of Sale dated July 19, 2006, which Notice is made a part of this
proposal, we offer to purchase the principal amount of the $27,900,000 City of Danbury, Connecticut General
Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes specified below at the stated interest rate (provided not less than $100,000
of principal amount per interest rate is bid and the total of all principal amounts bid does not exceed
$27,900,000) plus the premium specified below, if any, and to pay therefor par plus the premium specified
below, if any, to the date of delivery. We further provide our computation of net interest cost as to each bid,
carried to four decimals, and made as provided in the above-mentioned Notice of Sale, but not constituting any
part of the foregoing proposal.

Principal amount Principal amount

Interest rate Interest rate

Premium Premium

Net Interest Cost % Net Interest Cost %
(Four Decimals) (Four Decimals)

Principal amount Principal amount

Interest rate Interest rate

Premium Premium

Net Interest Cost % Net Interest Cost %
(Four Decimals) (Four Decimals)

The undersigned hereby agrees to accept delivery of and make payment for the indicated principal amount of the
Notes in Federal Funds on the date of the Notes or as soon thereafter (but not later than 30 days thereafter) as such
Notes may be prepared and ready for delivery by the Issuer.

(Telephone Number)
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Appendix E

Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy
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FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY

MBIA Insurance Corporation
Armonk, New York 10504

Policy No. [NUMBER]

MBIA Insurance Corporation (the "Insurer"), in consideration of the payment of the premium and subject to the terms of this policy, hereby
unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees to any owner, as hereinafter defined, of the following described obligations, the full and complete payment
required to be made by or on behalf of the Issuer to [PAYING AGENT/TRUSTEE] or its successor (the "Paying Agent") of an amount equal to (i) the
principal of (either at the stated maturity or by any advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment) and interest on, the
Obligations (as that term is defined below) as such payments shall become due but shall not be so paid (except that in the event of any acceleration of
the due date of such principal by reason of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration resulting from default or otherwise, other than any
advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed hereby shall be made in such amounts and at such
times as such payments of principal would have been due had there not been any such acceleration, unless the Insurer elects in its sole discretion, to pay
in whole or in part any principal due by reason of such acceleration); and (ii) the reimbursement of any such payment which is subsequently recovered
from any owner pursuant to a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction that such payment constitutes an avoidable preference to such owner
within the meaning of any applicable bankruptcy law. The amounts referred to in clauses (i) and (ii) of the preceding sentence shall be referred to herein
collectively as the "Insured Amounts." "Obligations" shall mean:

[PAR]
[LEGAL NAME OF ISSUE]

Upon receipt of telephonic or telegraphic notice, such notice subsequently confirmed in writing by registered or certified mail, or upon receipt of written
notice by registered or certified mail, by the Insurer from the Paying Agent or any owner of an Obligation the payment of an Insured Amount for which
is then due, that such required payment has not been made, the Insurer on the due date of such payment or within one business day after receipt of notice
of such nonpayment, whichever is later, will make a deposit of funds, in an account with U.S. Bank Trust National Association, in New York, New
York, or its successor, sufficient for the payment of any such Insured Amounts which are then due. Upon presentment and surrender of such
Obligations or presentment of such other proof of ownership of the Obligations, together with any appropriate instruments of assignment to evidence
the assignment of the Insured Amounts due on the Obligations as are paid by the Insurer, and appropriate instruments to effect the appointment of the
Insurer as agent for such owners of the Obligations in any legal proceeding related to payment of Insured Amounts on the Obligations, such instruments
being in a form satisfactory to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, U.S. Bank Trust National Association shall disburse to such owners, or the Paying
Agent payment of the Insured Amounts due on such Obligations, less any amount held by the Paying Agent for the payment of such Insured Amounts
and legally available therefor. This policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment premium which may at any time be payable with respect to
any Obligation.

As used herein, the term "owner" shall mean the registered owner of any Obligation as indicated in the books maintained by the Paying Agent, the
Issuer, or any designee of the Issuer for such purpose. The term owner shall not include the Issuer or any party whose agreement with the Issuer
constitutes the undertying security for the Obligations.

Any service of process on the Insurer may be made to the Insurer at its offices located at 113 King Street, Armonk, New York 10504 and such service
of process shall be valid and binding.

This policy is non-cancellable for any reason. The premium on this policy is not refundable for any reason including the payment prior to maturity of
the Obligations.

This policy is not covered by the Connecticut Insurance Guaranty Association specified in Section 7 of the Connecticut Financial Guaranty Act.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Insurer has caused this policy to be executed in facsimile on its behalf by its duly authorized officers, this [DAY] day of
[MONTH, YEAR].

MBIA Insurance Corporation

Attest:

STD-R-CT-7
01/05
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STANDARD FORM FOR MBIA DISCLOSURE FOR OFFICIAL STATEMENTS
[March 31, 2006]
The MBIA Insurance Corporation Insurance Policy

The following information has been furnished by MBIA Insurance Corporation ("MBIA") for use
in this Official Statement. Reference is made to Appendix E for a specimen of MBIA's policy [(the
“Policy™)].

MBIA does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official
Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect
to the accuracy of the information regarding the Policy and MBIA set forth under the heading “Financial
Guarantee Insurance Policy”. Additionally, MBIA makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the
advisability of investing in the Bonds.

The MBIA Policy unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the full and complete payment
required to be made by or on behalf of the City of Danbury to the Paying Agent or its successor of an
amount equal to (i) the principal of (either at the stated maturity or by an advancement of maturity
pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment) and interest on, the Bonds as such payments shall become
due but shall not be so paid (except that in the event of any acceleration of the due date of such principal
by reason of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration resulting from default or otherwise, other
than any advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, the payments
guaranteed by the MBIA Policy shall be made in such amounts and at such times as such payments of
principal would have been due had there not been any such acceleration, unless MBIA elects in its sole
discretion, to pay in whole or in part any principal due by reason of such acceleration); and (ii) the
reimbursement of any such payment which is subsequently recovered from any Owner of the Bonds
pursuant to a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction that such payment constitutes an
avoidable preference to such Owner within the meaning of any applicable bankruptcy law (a
“Preference”).

MBIA's Policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment premium which may at any time
be payable with respect to any Bonds. MBIA's Policy does not, under any circumstance, insure against
loss relating to: (i) optional or mandatory redemptions (other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions);
(ii) any payments to be made on an accelerated basis; (iii) payments of the purchase price of Bonds upon
tender by an owner thereof; or (iv) any Preference relating to (i) through (iii) above. MBIA's Policy also
does not insure against nonpayment of principal of or interest on the Bonds resulting from the insolvency,
negligence or any other act or omission of the Paying Agent or any other paying agent for the Bonds.

Upon receipt of telephonic or telegraphic notice, such notice subsequently confirmed in writing
by registered or certified mail, or upon receipt of written notice by registered or certified mail, by MBIA
from the Paying Agent or any owner of a Bond the payment of an insured amount for which is then due,
that such required payment has not been made, MBIA on the due date of such payment or within one
business day after receipt of notice of such nonpayment, whichever is later, will make a deposit of funds,
in an account with U.S. Bank Trust National Association, in New York, New York, or its successor,
sufficient for the payment of any such insured amounts which are then due. Upon presentment and
surrender of such Bonds or presentment of such other proof of ownership of the Bonds, together with any
appropriate instruments of assignment to evidence the assignment of the insured amounts due on the
Bonds as are paid by MBIA, and appropriate instruments to effect the appointment of MBIA as agent for
such owners of the Bonds in any legal proceeding related to payment of insured amounts on the Bonds,
such instruments being in a form satisfactory to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, U.S. Bank Trust
National Association shall disburse to such owners or the Paying Agent payment of the insured amounts
due on such Bonds, less any amount held by the Paying Agent for the payment of such insured amounts
and legally available therefor.



MBIA Insurance Corporation

MBIA Insurance Corporation (“MBIA”) is the principal operating subsidiary of MBIA Inc., a New
York Stock Exchange listed company (the “Company™). The Company is not obligated to pay the debts of or
claims against MBIA. MBIA is domiciled in the State of New York and licensed to do business in and
subject to regulation under the laws of all 50 states, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, the Virgin Islands of the United States and the
Territory of Guam. MBIA, either directly or through subsidiaries, is licensed to do business in the Republic
of France, the United Kingdom and the Kingdom of Spain and is subject to regulation under the laws of those
jurisdictions.

The principal executive offices of MBIA are located at 113 King Street, Armonk, New York
10504 and the main telephone number at that address is (914) 273-4545.

Regulation

As a financial guaranty insurance company licensed to do business in the State of New York, MBIA
is subject to the New York Insurance Law which, among other things, prescribes minimum capital
requirements and contingency reserves against liabilities for MBIA, limits the classes and concentrations of
investments that are made by MBIA and requires the approval of policy rates and forms that are employed by
MBIA. State law also regulates the amount of both the aggregate and individual risks that may be insured by
MBIA, the payment of dividends by MBIA, changes in control with respect to MBIA and transactions among
MBIA and its affiliates.

The Policy is not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security Fund specified in Article 76
of the New York Insurance Law.

Financial Strength Ratings of MBIA
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. rates the financial strength of MBIA “Aaa.”

Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. rates the financial strength of
MBIA “AAA.”

Fitch Ratings rates the financial strength of MBIA “AAA.”

Each rating of MBIA should be evaluated independently. The ratings reflect the respective rating
agency's current assessment of the creditworthiness of MBIA and its ability to pay claims on its policies of
insurance. Any further explanation as to the significance of the above ratings may be obtained only from the
applicable rating agency.

The above ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold the Bonds, and such ratings may be
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agencies. Any downward revision or withdrawal
of any of the above ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. MBIA does not
guaranty the market price of the Bonds nor does it guaranty that the ratings on the Bonds will not be revised
or withdrawn.

MBIA Financial Information

As of December 31, 2005, MBIA had admitted assets of $11.0 billion (unaudited), total liabilities
of $7.2 billion (unaudited), and total capital and surplus of $3.8 billion (unaudited) determined in
accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory
authorities. As of March 31, 2006, MBIA had admitted assets of $11.2 billion (unaudited), total liabilities
of $7.5 billion (unaudited), and total capital and surplus of $3.8 billion (unaudited) determined in
accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory
authorities.



For further information concerning MBIA, see the consolidated financial statements of MBIA
and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 and for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2005, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 3 1, 2005 and
the consolidated financial statements of MBIA and its subsidiaries as of March 3 1, 2006 and for the three
month period ended March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2005 included in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2006, which are hereby incorporated by reference into
this Official Statement and shall be deemed to be a part hereof.

Copies of the statutory financial statements filed by MBIA with the State of New York Insurance
Department are available over the Internet at the Company’s web site at http://www.mbia.com and at no
cost, upon request to MBIA at its principal executive offices.

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference

The following documents filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) are incorporated by reference into this Official Statement:

) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005;
and
2 The Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2006.

Any documents, including any financial statements of MBIA and its subsidiaries that are included
therein or attached as exhibits thereto, filed by the Company pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d)
of the Exchange Act after the date of the Company’s most recent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or
Annual Report on Form 10-K, and prior to the termination of the offering of the Bonds offered hereby
shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Official Statement and to be a part hereof from the
respective dates of filing such documents. Any statement contained in a document incorporated or
deemed to be incorporated by reference herein, or contained in this Official Statement, shall be deemed to
be modified or superseded for purposes of this Official Statement to the extent that a statement contained
herein or in any other subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by
reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any such statement so modified or superseded
shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Official Statement.

The Company files annual, quarterly and special reports, information statements and other
information with the SEC under File No. 1-9583. Copies of the Company’s SEC filings (including (1) the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, and (2) the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2006 are available (i) over the Internet at
the SEC’s web site at http://www.sec.gov; (ii) at the SEC’s public reference room in Washington D.C.;
(iii) over the Internet at the Company’s web site at http://www.mbia.com; and (iv) at no cost, upon
request to MBIA at its principal executive offices.

This policy is not covered by the Connecticut Insurance Guaranty Association specified in Article
7 of the Connecticut Financial Guaranty Act.

STD-CT
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